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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
' WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K SEC

53 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TOQ SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 Ma]‘ ?mgeag]ng

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 s&mgan
or MRY 0ZF 2513

n} TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 )
For the Transition Period from to . W&nlngtan Dc

Commission file number 333-179521 401

Y

MOODY NATIONAL REIT L, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland 26-1812865
(State or other jurisdiction of {(LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

6363 Woodway Drive, Suite 110
Houston, Texas 77057
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(713) 977-7500
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934:

None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934:

None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes 1 No X
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Act. Yes 01 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes & No O
Indicate by check mark whether the regi has submi 1 Ity and posted on its corporate website, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes & No O

Indicate by check mark if discl of deli filers p to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not ined herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant’s
knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. B3

Indicate by check mark whether the regi is a large 1 d filer, an ) d filer,a 1 d filer or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of “large
accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (check one):
Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer m]
Non-accelerated filer [m] Smaller reporting company =

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes O No &1

There is no established trading market for the registrant’s stock and therefore the aggregate market vatue of the registrant’s common stock held by non-affiliates
cannot be determined. The regi is currently conducting an ongoing public offering of its shares of stock p to a Registration § on Form S-11, which shares
are being sold at $10.00 per share, with discounts available for certain categories of purchasers. There were approximately 906,527 shares of common stock held by non-affiliates at June
29, 2012, the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter.

As of March 19, 2013, there were 1,582,988 shares of the common stock of the registrant outstanding.
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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Repon”) that are not historical facts (including any ing i bjectives,
other plans and ob of for future operations or ic perfc or f¢ related ﬂlereto) are forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Seclmn 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Secuon 21E of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, as ded. These are only predictions. We
caution that forward-looking are not Actual events or our investments and results of operations could differ materially from those expressed or implied in any
forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by the use of terms such as “may,” “should,” “expect,” “could,” “intend,” “plan,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “believe,” “continue,” “predict,” “potential” or the negative of such terms and other comparable terminology.

ions, plans, esti ions and beliefs which involve numerous risks and

The forward-looking included herein are based upon our current exp
uncertainties. Assumptions relating to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive and market conditions and future business
decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict 1y and many of which are beyond our control. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-
looking are based on bl ions, our actual results and performance could differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements. Factors
which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and future prospects include, but are not limited to:

oIl our ability to raise capital in our ongoing public offering;

o  ourability to effectively deploy the proceeds raised in our public offering;

oI  our ability to obtain financing on acceptable terms;

o[ our levels of debt and the terms and limitations imposed on us by our debt agreements;

o  our ability to identify and acquire real estate and real estate-related assets on terms that are favorable to us;

o[  risks inherent in the real estate business, including the lack of liquidity of real estate investments and potential lability relating to environmental matters;
o  adverse developments affecting our sponsor and its affiliates;

o} the availability of cash flow from operating activities for distributions;

o[l adecrease in the level of participation in our distribution reinvestment plan;

L] hanges in i ditions g lly and the real estate and debt markets specifically;

oM  conflicts of interest arising out of our relationship with our advisor and its affiliates;

o  legislative or y changes (including changes to the laws governing the taxation of real estate investment trusts, or REITs);

ol interest rates; and
oI  changes to generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP.

Any of the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements included herein could be inaccurate, and undue reliance should not be placed upon on any forward-looking
statements included herein. All forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Annual Report, and the risk that actual results will differ materially from the expectations
expressed herein will increase with the passage of time. Except as otherwise required by the federal securities laws, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-
looking statements made after the date of this Annual Report, whether as a result of new information, future events, changed circumstances or any other reason.

i
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PARTI
ITEM 1. Business
Overview

Moody National REIT I, Inc. isa Maryland corporation formed on January 15, 2008, to invest in a diversified portfolio of real estate investments. We have elected to qualify as
a real estate investment trust, or REIT, commencing with the taxable year ended December 31,2011, As used herein, the terms *“we,” “our“ and *“us” refer to Moody National REIT I, Inc.
and, as required by context, Moody National Operating Partnership I, LP, a Delaware limited partnership, which we refer to as our “op hip,” and to their subsidi:
References to “shares” and “our common stock” refer to the shares of our common stock. We own, and in the future intend to own, substantmlly all of our assets and conduct our
operations through our operating partnership, of which we are the sole general partner.

On May 2, 2008, we filed a registration statement on Form S-11 with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, for our initial public offering to offer a maximum of
$1,000,000,000 in shara of our common stock to the public at $10.00 per share in our pnmary offering and $100,000,000 in shares of our stock to our stockholders at $9.50 per
share p to our distrit plan. On April 15, 2009, the SEC declared our effective and we commenced our initial public offering. On February
8, 2012 2, we were required to temporarily suspend our initial public offering due to the fact that our previous auditors, Pannell Kerr Forster of Texas, P.C., notified us that they could not
be considered independent for the 2009, 2010 and 2011 fiscal years. We subsequently engaged Frazier & Deeter, LLC to audit our 2009, 2010 and 2011 lidated fi
and to review our 2011 interim lidated financial We d our initial public offering on March 13, 2012.

On October 12, 2012, we terminated our initial public offering and commenced our follow-on public offering (discussed below). As of the termination of our initiat public
offering on October 12 2012, we had accepted subscriptions for, and issued, 1,126,253 shares of our common stock in our initial public offering, including 29,580 shares of our common
stock p to our distrib i plan, resulting in offering proceeds of $10,966,713.

Prior to the termination of our initial public offering, on Febrary 14, 2012, we filed a registration statement on Form S-11 with the SEC to register a follow-on public offering of
up to $1,000,000,000 in shares of our common stock. In our follow-on offering we are offering up to $900,000,000 in shares of our common stock to the public and up to $100,000,000 in
shares of our stock to our stockholders p to our distribution reinvestment plan, On October 12, 2012, our follow-on offering was declared effective by the SEC and we
terminated our initial public offering and commenced our follow-on offering. As of December 31, 2012, we had accepted subscnpnons for, and issued, 1,317,307 shares of our common
stock in our initial public offering and our follow-on offering, including 36,065 shares of our stock p to our it plan, resulting in aggregate offering
proceeds of $12,812,414.

Weare oﬁ‘enng shares to the public in our follow-on public offering at a price of $10.00 per share, with di ilable for certain purch and to our stockhold
p to our distril plan at a price of $9.50 per share. Our board of directors may change the price at which we offer sharw to the public in our follow-on offering
from time to time during the follow-on offering, but not more frequently than quarterly, to reflect changes in our estimated per-share net asset value and other factors our board of
directors deems relevant.

We intend to use substantially all of the net proceeds from our public offering to invest in a diversified portfolio of real properties, real estate securities and debt-related
investments. We anticipate that our portfolio will consist primarily of hotel properties located in the United States and Canada that we own exclusively or in joint ventures or other co-
ownership arrangements with other persons. We may also invest in other property types consisting of multifamily, office, retail and industrial assets located in the United States and
Canada as well as securities of real estate companies and debt-related investments. We may also make opportunistic i in properties that may be under-developed or newly
constructed and in properties that we believe are undervalued.

As of December 31, 2012, our portfolio consisted of (1) a 74.5% joint venture interest in a mortgage note, or the Hyatt Place note, issued by Moody National HP Grapevine
Trust, a Delaware statutory trust, or the trust, in favor of Patriot Bank, a Texas banking association, or Patriot Bank, in the original principal amount of $13,000,000 and secured by a hotel
property located in Grapevine, Texas and (2) a2 91-suite hotel property located in The Woodlands, Texas, commonly known as the Homewood Suites by Hilton — Woodlands, or the
Woodiands property. We began operations on May 27, 2010 with the acquisition of a 75% joint venture interest in a hotel property located in Atlanta, Georgia commonly known as the
Residence inn by Marriot Peri Center, or the Resid Inn property. We sold the Residence Inn property to a third-party buyer on August 23, 2012. For more information on our
real estate portfolio, see “Investment Portfolio” below.




Moody National REIT [, Inc.
6363 Woodway Drive, Suite 110
Houston, Texas 77057

April 30,2013
VI4 OVERNIGHT MAIL

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

450 Fifth Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20549 sy 177 FEY
Re:  Moody National REIT I, Inc. wasningion DG
Commission File Number: 333-150612 401

Annual Report to Security Holders
Dear Ladies and Gentlemen:

On behalf of Moody National REIT I, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the
“Company”), I hereby include, solely for the Commission’s information, seven (7) copies
of the Company’s 2012 Annual Report to Stockholders (the “Annual Report”); which
comprises the Company’s annual report to security holders required by Rule 14a-3(b)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The Annual Report was first sent to stockholders of the Conmipany on or about
Apnl 30, 2012,

If you have any questions about the enclosed document, please feel free to call me

directly at (713) 977-7500.

Very truly yours,
~ Brett C. Moody
Chief Executive Officer and President

LEGALO2/34093505v]
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Subject to certain ictions and limitati our busk is 11 d by Moody National Advisor I, LLC, our external advisor, pursuant to an advisory agreement.
We refer to Moody National Advisor I, LLC as our “advisor.” Our advisor conducts our operations and our portfolio of real estate investments.

Moody Securities, LLC, an affiliate of our advisor, serves as our dealer manager for our continuous public offering. We refer to Moody Securities, LLC as our “dealer manager”
or “Moody Securities.”

Our office is located at 6363 Woodway Drive, Suite 110, Houston, Texas and our telephone number is (713) 977-7500.
2012 Highlights:

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we:

o0 raised $7,670,174 in our initial and follow-on public offerings;

o« sold the Residence Inn property to a third-party buyer for an aggregate purchase price of $9,150,000;

L1 acquired the Woodlands property for an aggregate purchase price of $12,000,000, comprised of a cash payment to the seller of $5,088,578 and the assumption and
modification of $6,911,422 of existing indebtedness on the Woodlands property, plus closing costs; and

oI continued paying a distribution which, if paid each day over a 365-day period, is equivalent to an 8.0% lized distribution rate based on a purchase price of $10.00
per share of our common stock.

Investment Objectives

Our primary investment objectives are to:

o0 preserve, protect and return stockholders’ capital contributions;
o0 pay regular cash distributions to stockholders; and
o0 realize capital appreciation upon the ultimate sale of the real estate assets we acquire.

Investment Strategy

In identifying investments, we rely upon our “Moody Core Plus Plus” investment strategy. “Core” refers to a stable, Class A asset in a major men'opohtan market, which can

provide net operating income stability. However, we believe that a core buying strategy, without a supply-d d imbal offers 1 growth p 1 along with an increased
risk of asset devaluation. “Core Plus” builds upon a foundation of targeting core markets, which are major metropolitan areas with stable populatwn growth high barriers to entry and
multiple derand generators. Our Core Plus strategy seeks to capitalize upon potential supply-demand imbalances that we believe will create a tech on a particular asset or

asset class. We intend to identify these technical pressures created by demographic, business and industry changes which lead to supply and demand 1mbalances ina pamcular market.
By utilizing this Core Plus strategy of purchasing undervalued assets with underlying intrinsic value, we believe a core asset will create greater value at disposition. Our Core Plus Plus
strategy builds further upon the acquisition philosophy of Core Plus to combine our real property investments with real estate securities and debt-related i including (1)
mortgage and mezzanine loans, (2) debt and derivative securities related to real estate, including mortgage-backed securities, and (3) the equity securities of other REITs and real estate
companies. We are not specifically limited in the number or size of our real estate securities and debt-related investments, or the p ge of the net p ds from our public offerings
that we may invest in a single real estate security or debt-related investment. The number and mix of properties we acquire and other investments we make wiil depend upon real estate
and market conditions and other cir existing at the time we are acquiring our properties and making our investments and the amount of proceeds we raise in our continuous
public offering.
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Investment Portfolio
As of December 31, 2012, our portfolio consisted of two investments: (1) a 74.5% joint venture interest in the Hyatt Place note; and (2) the Woodlands property.
Hyaut Place Note

On June 3, 2011, and effective as of May 5, 2011, we acquired a joint venture interest in the Hyatt Place note. As of the closing date, the Hyatt Place note had an outstanding
principal balance of $12,759,199 and all accrued interest and fees due and payable on the Hyatt Place note had been paid by the trust as borrower. The entire unpaid principal balance of
the Hyatt Place note and all accrued and unpaid interest is due and payable in full on February 1, 2018. The Hyatt Place note accrued interest at a fixed rate of 5.15% per annum from the
closing date through August 21, 2012. For the period from August 21, 2012 through August 21, 2015, the Hyatt Place note will accrue interest at a fixed rate equal to 5.15%. For the
period from August 21, 2015 through the maturity date, the Hyatt Place note will bear interest at a fixed rate equal to (1) the variable interest rate per annum published in the Wall Street
Journal as the “prime rate” for the U.S. in effect as of August 21, 2015, plus (2) 1.90%, provided that in no event will the interest rate exceed the maximum rate permitted by law. For more
information on the terms of the Hyatt Place note, see Note 4 to our lidated financial

We acquired the Hyatt Place note through our joint venture, MNHP Note Holder, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, or the note joint venture, for an aggregate purchase
price of $12,759,199, exclusive of closing costs. The note joint venture financed the payment of the purchase price for the Hyatt Place note with (1) the initial capital contribution to the
note joint venture from our operating partnership in the amount of $1,080,000, (2) the initial capital contribution to the note joint venture from the trust members in the amount of
$181,000, and (3) the proceeds of 2 loan from Patriot Bank evidenced by a promissory note in the aggregate pnnc:pa] amount of $11 483 280, or the acquisition note. As of December 31,

2012, our operating partnership’s membership interest in the note joint venture was 74.5% and the trust t ] b mterest in the note joint venture was 11.5%. As
of December 31, 2012, Moody National Mortgage Corporation, or Moody National Mortgage, an affiliate of our sponsor, owned an app y 14% ip interest in the note
joint venture, which Moedy National Mortgage received as ideration for providing a of the note joint venture’s obligations under the acquisition note

The Hyatt Place note is secured by a hotel property located in Grapevine, Texas commonly known as the Hyatt Place Grapevine hotel, or the Hyatt Place property. The Hyatt
Place property contains 125 roomus, is comprised of 70,646 gross square feet and is located on a 2.49 acre parcel of land. The Hyatt Place property is located adjacent to the Grapevine
Mills shopping mall and the Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport is approximately two miles south of the Hyatt Place property. The Hyatt Place property was constructed in 1995 and
was renovated in 2007-2008 in connection with its conversion from an AmeriSuites to a Hyatt Place hotel. Amenities at the Hyatt Place property include a main lobby area, a café serving
continental breakfast and other meals, a lobby area bar and lounge, a commercial kitchen area, service and support areas, three meeting rooms, a business center, a fitness center, a
commercial laundry area and a heated swimming pool. The Hyatt Place property includes paved surface parking for 128 vehicles, including 6 handicapped parking spaces.

Woodlands Property

On November 8, 2012, Moody National Wood-Hou Holding, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of ou i hip, or Moody Holding, acquired fee simple title to the
Woodlands property from unaffiliated third party sellers for an aggregate purchase price of $12,000, 000 (plus closmg costs), comprised of (1) a cash payment to the sellers of 5,088,578
and (2) the assumption and modification of an existing mortgage loan secured by the Woodlands property with a principal balance as of the closing date of $6,911,422 from U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates,
Series 2006-LDP9.

The Woodlands property is a2 91-suite hotel property located in The Woodlands, Texas, a suburb of Houston, Texas. The Woodlands property was developed in 2001 and
features 70 one bedroom/one bath suites and 21 two bedroom/two bath suites. All suites at the Woodlands property have fully equipped kitchens, separate eating and sitting areas and
high speed intemet access. Property amenities at the Woodlands property include a business center, meeting rooms, fitness center and courtyard pool and spa. The Woodlands is the
largest master planned community in Texas and is located approximately 20 miles north of downtown Houston. Over 1,000 companies are located in The Woodlands, including Fortune
500 companies such as Anardarko and Chevron Phillips. Additionally, Exxon Mobil has d that it is developing an office plex in The Woodlands to consolidate its several
separate offices located throughout Houston.
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In ion with the acquisition of the Woodlands property, we formed a taxable REIT subsidiary, or TRS. Upon the closing of the acquisition of the Woodlands property,

Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the TR'3, which we refer to as the “Master Tenant,” entered into a Hotel Lease Agreement pursuant to which
Moody Holding leases the Woodlands property to the Master Tenant. The lease provides for a ten-year lease term, provided that Moody Holding may terminate the lease upon 45 days
prior written notice to the Master Tenant in the event that Moody Holding contracts to sell the Woodlands property to a non-affiliated entity, effective upon the consummation of such
a sale of the Woodlands property.

Moody National Hospitality M: LLC, our affiliate, the Woodlands property p to a Hotel M Ag) b Moody National
Hospitality Management, LLC and the Master Tenant.

Property Disposition

On August 23, 2012, Moody National RI Perimeter Holding, LLC, or Perimeter Holding, a wholly-owned subsidiary of one of our joint ventures and holder of fee simple title to a
128-room all-suite hotel property located in Atlanta, Georgia, ly known as the Residi Inn by Martiot Perimeter Center, sold the Residence Inn property to a third party buyer
for an aggregate purchase price of $9,150,000. Perimeter Holding originally purchased the Residence Inn property for an aggregate purchase price of $7,350,000 plus closing costs,
transfer taxes and certain payments to third parties in connection with fees incurred by the seller of the Residence Inn property.

A portion of the proceeds from the sale of the Residence Inn propery were used to repay the $5,000,000 loan obtained to acquire the Residence Inn property, or the Perimeter
loan. In connection with the prepayment of the Perimeter loan, Perimeter Holding paid $391,232 of the prepayment penalty and buyer paid $291,232 of the prepayment penalty. In
addition, Perimeter Holding has paid Residence Inn by Marriott, LLC the $600,000 franchise ter ion fee payable p to the with Marriott, LLC in
connection with the anticipated termination of the management agreement.

Potential Property Acquisition

On February 11, 2013, we entered into the purchase agreement relating to the acquisition of a Hyatt Place hotel property located in Germantown, Tennessee, a suburb of
Memphis, or the Hyatt Place hotel, from an unaffiliated third party seller for an aggregate purchase price of $11,300,000, plus closing costs. We intend to finance the acquisition of the
Hyatt Place hotel with proceeds from our continuous public offering and approximately $7,600,000 of indebtedness secured by the Hyatt Place hotel.

The acquisition of the Hyatt Place hotel is subject to substantial conditions to closing, including: (1) obtaining appropriate financing for the acquisition of the Hyatt Place
hotel; (2) the sale of a sufficient number of shares of our common stock in our public offering to fund a portion of the purchase price for the Hyatt Place hotel; and (3) the absence of a
material adverse change to the Hyatt Place hotel prior to the date of the acquisition. There is no assurance that we will close the acquisition of the Hyatt Place hotel on the terms
described above or at all.

Borrowing Policies

We use, and mtend to use in the future, secured and unsecured debi as a means of providing additional funds for the acquisition of real property, securities and debt-related
By on: al d basts, we expect that we will have raore finds available for investments. This will generally allow us to make more investments than would
otherwise be possibl 113% ul g in returns and a more diversified portfolio. However, our use of leverage increases the risk of default on loan payments
and the resuhmg foreclosure on a pamcular asset. In addition, lenders may have recourse to assets other than those specifically securing the repayment of the indebtedness. When
debt ﬁnancmg is unattracnve due to high interest rates or other reasons, or when financing is otherwise unavailable on a timely basis, we may purchase certain assets for cash with the
of ob g debt fi ing at a later time.

As of December 31, 2012, our outstanding indebtedness totaled $17,904,671, which consisted of $11,003,658 outstanding on the loan we assumed in connection with the
acquisition of the Hyatt Place note and $6,901,013 outstanding on a loan we assumed in connection with the acquisition of the Woodlands property.

Our aggregate borrowings, secured and unsecured, are reviewed by our board of directors at least quarterly. Under our Articles of Amendment and Restatement, which we
refer to, as amended, as the “charter,” we are prohibited from borrowing in excess of 300% of the value of our net assets. “Net assets” for purposes of this calculation is defined to be
our total assets (other than intangibles), valued at cost prior to deducting depreciation, reserves for bad debts and other non-cash reserves, less total Habilities. The preceding
calculation is generally expected to approximate 75% of the aggregate cost of our assets before non-cash reserves and depreciation. However, we may temporarily borrow in excess of
these amounts if such excess is approved by a majority of our independent directors and disclosed to stockholders in our next quarterly report, along with an explanation for such
excess. As of December 31, 2012, our debt levels did not exceed 300% of the value of our net assets.
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As of December 3] 20]1 our debt to net assets ratio ded 300%. Our independent di approved such excess debt due to the fact that our board of directors believed
that our was adequately secured and we were able to service our outstanding indebtedness under the terms of our financing agreements.

Our advisor will seek to obtain fi ing on the most terms to us. We expect we will refinance assets dunng the term of a loan only in lumted cucumstanc&e,
such as when a decline in interest rates makes it beneficial to prepay an existing loan, when an existing loan matures or if an attractive nd the p
from the refi nancmg can be used to purchase such investment. The benefns of any such refi ing may include i d cash flow resultmg from reduccd debt scmce requlrements,
an increase in distr from p ds of the refi ing and an i in diversification and assets owned if all or a portion of the refi p are

Our charter restricts us from obtaining loans from any of our directors, our advisor and any of our affiliates unless such loan is approved by a majority of the directors
(including a majority of the ind: dent di ) not otherwise interested in the transaction as fair, competitive and ble and no less fz ble to us than
comparable loans between unaﬁ' liated parties.

Economic Dependency

We are dependent on our advisor and our dealer manager for certain services that are essential to us, including the sale of our shares in our continuous public offering; the
identification, evaluation, negotiation, purchase and disposition of properties and other investments; management of the daily operations of our reai estate portfolio; and other general
and administrative responsibilities. In the event that our advisor or dealer manager is unable to provide their respective services, we will be required to obtain such services from other
sources.

Competitive Market Factors

The United States commercial real estate market remains competitive. We face competition from various entities for investment opportunities in our targeted assets, including
other REITs, pension funds, insurance companies, investment funds and real estate companies, partnerships and developers. Many of these entities have substantially greater financial
resources than we do and may be able to accept more risk than we can prudently manage, including risks with respect to the creditworthiness of a tenant or the geographic location of
investments. Competition from these entities may reduce the number of suitable investment opportunities offered to us or increase the bargaining power of property owners seeking to
sell real estate assets. In particular, the hotel industry is highly competitive. The Woodlands property is located in a developed area that includes other hotels and competes for guests
primarily with other hotels in the immediate vicinity and secondarily with other hotels in the geographic market. An increase in the number of competitive hotels in a particular area could
have a material adverse effect on the occupancy, average daily rate, or ADR, and revenue per available room, or RevPAR, of our hotels in that area. We believe that brand recognition,
location, price and quality (of both the hotel and the services provided) are the principal competitive factors affecting the Woodlands property. Additionally, general economic
conditions in a particular market and nationally impact the per of the hotel industry.

Additionally, recent disruptions and dislocations in the credit markets materially impacted the cost and availability of debt to finance real estate acquisitions, which is a key
component of our acquisition strategy. Although access to credit has improved, future limited availability of financing could result in a further reduction of suitable investment
opportunities and create a competitive advantage for other entities that have greater financial resources than we do. All of the above factors could result in delays in the investment of
proceeds from our continuous public offering. Further, as a result of their greater resources, our competitors may have more flexibility than we do in their ability to offer rental
concessions to attract tenants for commercial properties. This could put pressure on our ability to maintain or raise rents and could adversely affect our ability to attract or retain
tenants. As a result, our financial condition, results of operations, cash flow, ability to satisfy our debt service obligations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders may be
adversely affected.

The success of our portfolio of real estate securities and debt-related investments will depend, in part, on our ability to acquire and originate investments with spreads over our
borrowing cost. In acquiring and originating these investments, we compete with other REITS, specialty finance companies, savings and loan associations, banks, mortgage bankers,
insurance companies, mutual funds, institutional investors, investment banking firms, other lenders, governmental bodies and other entities, many of which have greater financial
resources and lower costs of capital available to them than we do. In addition, there are numerous REITs and real estate funds with asset acquisition objectives similar to ours, and
others may be organized in the future, which may increase competition for the investments svitable for us. Competitive variables include market presence and visibility, size of loans
offered and underwriting standards. To the extent that a competitor is willing to risk larger amounts of capital in a particular transaction or to employ more liberal underwriting standards
when evaluating potential loans than we are, our acquisition and origination volume and profit margins for our investment portfolio could be impacted. Qur competitors may also be
willing to accept lower returns on their investments and may succeed in buying the assets that we have targeted for acquisition. Although we believe that we are well positioned to
compete effectively in each facet of our business, there is enormous competition in our market sector and there can be no assurance that we will compete effectively or that we will not

increased petition in the future that could limit our ability to conduct our business effectively.
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Tax Status

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Internal Revenue Code, commencing with the
taxable year ended December 31, 2011. Prior to qualifying to be taxed as a REIT, we were subject to normal federal and state corporation income taxes. We previously determined not to
make an election to qualify as 2 REIT under the Internal Revenue Code because we had a net operating loss for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 and had fewer than 100
stockholders as of December 31, 2009 and 2010.

To qualify as a REIT, we must meet a number of izational and operational i including a requi that we distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income
to our stockholders. As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal income tax at the corporate level. We believe we are organized and operate in such a manner as to qualify for
taxation as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code, and we intend to continue to operate in such a2 manner, but no assurance can be given that we will operate in a manner so as to
qualify or remain qualified as a REIT.

Environmental

All real property investments and the operations conducted in connection with such investments are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection and human health and safety. Some of these laws and regulations may impose joint and several liability on customers, owners or operators for the costs to
investigate or di i d properties, dless of fault or whether the acts causing the contamination were legal.

Under various federal, state and local environmental laws, a current or previous owner or operator of real property may be liable for the cost of removing or remediating
hazardous or toxic substances on a real propeny Such laws often impose liability whether or not the owner or operator knew of, or was ible for, the p of suchh
or toxic sut In addition, the p b or the failure to properly diate these sub may ad 1y affect our ability to sell, rent or pledge such
real property as collateral for future borrowmgs. Environmental laws also may impose restrictions on the manner in which real property may be used or businesses may be operated.
Some of these laws and regulations have been amended so as to require compliance with new or more stringent standards as of future dates. Compliance with new or more stringent
laws or regulations or stricter interpretation of existing laws may require us to incur material expenditures or may impose material envi | liability. Additionally, tenants”
operations, the existing condition of land when we buy it, operations in the vicinity of our real properties, such as the presence of underground storage tanks, or activities of unrelated
third parties may affect our real properties. There are also various local, state and federal fire, health, life-safety and similar regulations with which we may be required to comply and
which may subject us to liability in the form of fines or damages for noncomplxance In connection w1th the acquisition and ownership of real properties, we may be exposed to such

costs in connection with such regulations, The cost of d ding against env 1 claims, of any d: or fines we must pay, of i with env
or of diating any i d real property could materially and adversely affect our business, lower the value of our assets or results of operations and
quently, lower the available for distribution to our stockholders.

We do not believe that compllance wuh exmmg environmental laws will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operanons However, we cannot
predict the impact of unf env ies or new or ch d laws or lations on properties in which we hold an interest, or on properties that may be acquired
directly or indirectly in the future.




Filer: Moody National Form Type: 10-K Period: 12/31/12 Job Number: g13-00480 Rev: -NOT DEFINED- Sequence: 10

Submission: Document Name: mnrt-10k_123112.htm Saved: Printed: 3/28/2013 16:11:35
631@quality Description: Annuai Report -NOT DEFINED- Created using EDGARizerAgent
Seasonality

The hole) mdustry historically has been seasonal in nature. Seasonal variations in occupancy at the Woodlands property and other hotel properties we may acquire may cause
quarterly fl in our . Specifically, busil class hotels tend to draw lower occupancy rates during holidays as there is less business travel. To the extent that cash
flow from operations is insufficient during any quarter, due to temporary or seasonal fluctvations in revenue, we expect to utilize cash on hand or if necessary any available other
financing sources to make distributions.

Employees
We have no paid employees. The employees of our advisor or its affiliates provide management, acquisition, advisory and certain administrative services for us.
Financial Information About Segments

Our current busi ists of owning, ing, leasing, acquiring, developing, investing in, and disposing of real estate assets. We intemally evaluate all of
our real estate assets as one industry segment, and, accordmgly, we do not report segment information,

Available Information

We are subject to the reporting and information requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act, and, as a result, we file periodic reports and other
information with the SEC. Access to copies of our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and other filings with the SEC, including
amendments to such filings, may be obtained free of charge from the following website, http://www.moodynationalreit.com/. Our filings are also available on the SEC’s website,
http://www.sec.gov, free of charge. These filings are available promptly afier we file them with, or furnish them to, the SEC.

ITEM1A.  Risk Factors

The following are some of the risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those presented in our forward-iooking statements. The
risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face but do represent those rzsks and uncertainties that we believe are mater ial to us. Additional risks and
uncermmlzes not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also harm our busi Our kholders or, ! may be referred to as “you” or

“your” in this Item 14.

P

Investment Risks

Since the commencement of our initial public offering in 2009, we have raised a relatively limited amount of offering proceeds, and have made a limited number of investments.

Based upon our operating history to date and our limited portfolio of investments, there can be no assurance that we will be able to ully operate our busi or
achieve our investment objectives. On April 15, 2009, we commenced our initial public offering. On May 18, 2010, we raised the minimum offering amount of $2,000,000 in our initial
public offering and all of the subscription proceeds held in an escrow account, plus interest, were released to us, During the period from the commencement of our initial public offering
on April 15, 2009 to December 31, 2012, we accepted investors’ subscriptions for, and issued,1,317,307 shares of our common stock in our initial and follow-on public offering, including
36,065 shares of our common stock pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan, resulting in gross offering proceeds of approximately $12,812,414. As of December 31, 2012, we had
made only three investments, one of which, our joint venture interest in the Residence Inn property, a Residence Inn hotel located in Atlanta, Georgia, we disposed of in August 2012. If
we are unable to raise sufficient proceeds in our public offering, we will not be able to meet our investment objectives, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations
and ability to make distributions to our stockholders. Further, there is no guarantee that we will be able to sell all of the $900 million in shares of our common stock registered for sale to
the public in our continuous public offering.

We have experienced losses in the past and may experience similar losses in the future.
We incurred a net operating loss for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010. Our losses can be attributed, in part, to the initial start-up costs and operating expenses

incurred prior to making investments in properties. In addition, depreciation and amortization expenses substantially reduced our income. We cannot assure you that we will be
profitable in the future or that we will realize growth in the value of our assets.
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We are subject to compliance with securities law, which exposes us to p ial liabilities, including p ial ission rights.
Pannell Kerr Forster of Texas, P.C., or PKF served as our independent auditor beginning in Ni ber 10, 2010 through February 8, 2012. On February 7, 2012, PKF informed

our board of directors that it could not be id d dent in d with Rule 201 of SEC Regulation S-X for the 2011 fiscal year. On February 10, 2012, PKF informed our
board that it could not be considered independent for the 2009 and 2010 fiscal years. Consequently, from March 31, 2011 (the date PKF first issued a report on our financial statements)
to February 8, 2012, the offer and sale of securities in our continuous initial public offering may have failed to comply fully with Section 5 of the Securities Act which may trigger a right
of rescission under the Securities Act for investors that purchased shares of our common stock during this period. Such stockholders may have the right to rescind their purchase of
shares of our common stock and require us to reacquire their shares at a price equal to the price originally paid for such shares with interest, less the amount of any income received
with respect to such shares. An investor who acquired shares of our common stock during this period who no longer owns the shares they acquired may have the right to collect
damages from us in lieu of the rescission rights described above. If stockholders were successful in seeking rescission and/or damages, we would face financial demands that could
adversely affect our business and operations. Additionally, we may become subject to penalties imposed by the SEC and state securities agencies. As of the date of this Annual Report,
we have not received a claim for rescission. If stockholders seek rescission and/or damages or we conduct a rescission offer, we may or may not have the resources to fund the
repurchase of the securities.

There is no public trading market for shares of our common stock and we are not required to a liquidity event by a certain date. As a result, it will be difficult for you to
sell your shares of common stock and, if you are able to sell your shares, you are likely to sell them at a substantial discount.

There is no current public market for the shares of our commen stock and we have no obligation to list our shares on any public securities market or provide any other type of
liquidity to our stockholders. It will therefore be difficult for you to sell your shares of our common stock promptly or at all. Even if you are able to sell your shares of our common stock,
the absence of a public market may cause the price received for any shares of our common stock sold to be less than what you paid or less than your proportionate value of the assets
we own. We have adopted a share redemption program but it is limited in terms of the amount of shares that may be purchased by us each quarter. Additionally, our charter does not
require that we consummate a transaction to provide liquidity to our stockholders on any date certain or at all. As a result, you should purchase shares of our common stock enly as a
long-term investment, and you must be prepared to hold your shares for an indefinite length of time.

We commenced operations on May 27, 2010 and therefore we have a limited operating history and there is no assurance that we will be able to successfully achieve our
investment objectives.

We commenced operations on May 27, 2010 with the acquisition of our first i have a limited operating history and have made only three investments, one of which,
our joint venture interest in the Residence Inn property, we disposed of in August 2012. As a Tesult, we may not be able to ully operate our busi or achieve our investment
objectives. An investment in shares of our common stock may entail more risk than an investment in the shares of common stock of 2 real estate investment trust with a substantial
operating history. In addition, you should not rely on the past performance of real property, real estate securities or debt-related investments owned by other Moody National affiliates
to predict our future results. Qur investment strategy and key employees differ from the investment strategies and key employees of our affiliates in the past and present and may
continue to do so in the future.

We presently intend to effect a liquidity event within four to six pears from the completion of our initial public offering; however, there can be no assurance that we will effect a
liquidity event within such time or at all. If we do not effect a liquidity event, it will be very difficult for you to have liquidity for your investment in shares of our common stock.

In the future, our board of directors will consider various forms of liquidity events, inchiding, but not limited to, (1) the sale of all or substantially all of our real estate assets for
cash or other consideration, (2) our sale or merger in a transaction that provides our stockholders with cash and/or securities of a publicly traded company and (3) the listing of our
common stock on a national securities exchange. We presently intend to effect a liquidity event within four to six years from the termination of our initial public offering, which occurred
on October 12, 2012. However, there can be no assurance that we will canse a liquidity event to occur within such time or at all. If we do not effect a liquidity event, it will be very
difficult for you to have liquidity for your investment in shares of our common stock other than limited liquidity through our share redemption program.
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Payment of fees to our advisor and its affiliates reduces cash available for investment, which may result in stockholders not receiving a full return of their invested capital.

Becausc a portion of the offering price from the sale of our shares is used to pay expenses and fees, the full offering price paid by our stockholders will not be invested in real
estate assets. As aresult, stockholders will only receive a full return of their invested capital if we either (1) seli our assets or our company for a sufficient amount in excess of the
original purchase price of our assets or (2) the market value of our company after we list our shares of common stock on a national securities exchange is substantially in excess of the
original purchase price of our assets.

If we is lize our ions, your interest in us could be diluted and we could incur other significant costs associated with being self-managed.

Our board of directors may decide in the future to internalize our management functions. If we do so, we may elect to negotiate to acquire our advisor’s assets and personnel.
At this time, we cannot anticipate the form or amount of consideration or other terms relating to any such acquisition. Such consideration could take many forms, including cash
payments, promissory notes and shares of our common stock. The payment of such consideration could result in dilution of your interests as a stockholder and could reduce the
earnings per share and funds from operations per share attributable to your investment.

Additionally, while we would no longer bear the costs of the various fees and expenses we pay to our advisor under the advisory agreement, our direct expenses would include
general and administrative costs, including legal, accounting and other expenses related to corporate governance, SEC reporting and compliance. We would also be required to employ
personnel and would be subject to potential liabilities commonly faced by employers, such as workers disability and compensation claims, potential labor disputes and other employee-
related liabilities and grievances as well as incur the compensation and benefits costs of our officers and other employees and consultants that we now expect to be paid by our advisor
or its affiliates. We may issue equity awards to officers, employces and consultants, which awards would decrease net income and funds from operations and may further dilute your
investment. We cannot reasonably estimate the amount of fees to our advisor we would save or the costs we would incur if we became self-managed. If the expenses we assume as a
result of an internalization are higher than the expenses we avoid paying to our advisor, our earnings per share and funds from operations per share would be lower as a result of the
internalization than it otherwise would have been, potentially decreasing the amount of funds available to distribute to our stockholders and the value of our shares.

If we internalize our management functions, we could have difficulty integrating these functions as a stand-alone entity. Currently, our advisor and its affiliates perform asset
management and general and ini ive functions, including ing and financial reporting, for multiple entities. These personnel have a great deal of know-how and experience
which provides us with economies of scale. We may fail to properly identify the appropriate mix of personnel and capital needs to operate as a stand-alone entity. An inability to
manage an internalization transaction effectively could thus result in our incurring excess costs and suffering deficiencies in our discl Is and p d or our internal
control over financial reporting. Such deficiencies could cause us to incur additional costs, and our management’s attention could be diverted from most effectively managing our real
estate assets.

If we were to internalize our management or if another investment program, whether sponsored by our sponsor or otherwise, hires the employees of our advisor in connection with
its own internalization transaction or otherwise, our ability to duct our b, may be

We rely on persons employed by our advisor and its affiliates to manage our day-to-day operations. If we were to effectuate an internalization of our advisor, we may not be
able to retain all of the employees of our advisor and its affiliates or to maintain a relationship with our sponsor. In addition, some of the ployees of our advisor and its affiliates may
provide services to one or more other i prog These prog or third parties may decide to retain some or all of our advisor’s key employees in the future. If this occurs,
these programs could hire certain of the persons currently employed by our advisor and its affiliates who are most familiar with our business and operations, thereby potentially
adversely impacting our business.
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You are limited in your ability to sell your shares of common stock pursuant to our share redemption program. You may not be able to sell any of your shares of our common stock
back to us, and if you do sell your shares, you may not receive the price you paid.

Our share redemption program may provide you with a limited opportunity to have your shares of common stock redeemed by us at a price equal to or at a discount from the
current offering price per share for the shares being redeemed. Following the termination of the sale of shares to the public in our primary offering, shares of common stock will be
redeemed pursuant to the share redemption program, subject to certain restrictions and limitations, at a price equal to, or at a discount from, a price based upon the per-share net asset
value of the company and other factors our board of directors deems relevant. Shares of our common stock are redeemed on a quarterly basis. However, our share redemption program
contains certain restrictions and limitations, including those relating to the number of shares of our common stock that we can redeem at any given time and limiting the redemption
price. Specifically, we limit the number of shares to be redeemed during any calendar year to no more than (1) 5.0% of the weighted average of the shares of our common stock
outstanding during the prior calendar year and (2) those that could be funded from the net proceeds from the sale of shares under our distribution reinvestment plan in the prior
calendar year plus such additional funds as may be reserved for that purpose by our board of di provided, } that the above limitation does not apply to redemptions
requested within two years after the death of a stockholder. In addition, our board of directors reserves the right to reject any redemption request for any reason or no reason or to
amend, suspend or terminate the share redemption program at any time upon 30 days’ prior written notice. Therefore, you may not have the opportunity to make a redemptmn request
prior to a termination of the share redemption program and you may not be able to sell any of your shares of common stock back to us p to our share red:

Moreover, if you do sell your shares of common stock back to us pursuant to the share redemption program, you may not receive the same price you paid for any shares of our common
stock being redeemed.

Our cash arenot g d, may fli and may itute a return of capital or taxable gain from the sale or exchange of property.

We began paying a distribution in July 2010 at a rate which, if paid each day over a 365-day period, is equivalent to an 8.0% annualized distribution rate based on a purchase
price of $10.00 per share of our common stock. The actual amount and timing of distributions will be determined by our board of directors and typically will depend upon the amount of
funds available for distribution, which will depend on items such as current and proj d cash requi and tax iderations. As a result, our distribution rate and payment
frequency may vary from time to time. To the extent we do not have sufficient funds, or sources, of funds to pay distributions, we may be forced to reduce the rate at which we pay
distributions or stop paying distributions entirely. Distributions payable to our stockholders may also include a return of capital, rather than a return on capital.

We have and may continue to pay distributions from sources other than our cash flow from operations. To the extent that we pay distributions from sources other than our cash
Jflow from operations, we will have reduced funds available for i and the overall return to our stockholders may be reduced.

Our organizationat documents permit us to pay distributions from any source, including net proceeds from our public offerings, borrowings, advances from our sponsor or
advisor and the deferrat of fees and expense reimbursements by our advisor, in its sole discretion. Since our inception, our cash flow from operations has not been sufficient to fund all
of our distributions, and as a q we have funded a significant portion of our distributions with the net p ds of our public offerings. Of the $1,162,313 in total distributions
we paid during the period from our inception through D ber 31, 2012, including shares issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan, approximately 61% was funded from
cash flow from operations and approximately 39% was funded from offering proceeds. In the future, our cash flow from operations may not be sufficient to fund our distributions and we
may continue to fund all or a portion of our distributions from offering proceeds or other sources other than cash flow from operations. Until we make substantial investments, we may

inue to fund distributions from the net p ds from this offering or sources other than cash flow from operations. We have not established a limit on the amount of offering
proceeds, or other sources other than cash flow from operations, which we may use to fund distributions.

If we are unable to consistently fund distributions to our stockholders entirely from our cash flow from operations, the value of your shares upon a listing of our common
stock, the sale of our assets or any other liquidity event may be reduced. To the extent that we fund distributions from sources other than our cash flow from operations, our funds
available for investment will be reduced relative to the funds available for investment if our distributions were funded solely from cash flow from operations, our ability to achieve our
investment objectives will be negatively impacted and the overall return 1o our stockholders may be reduced. In addition, if we make a distribution in excess of our current and
accumulated earnings and profits, the distribution will be treated first as a tax-free return of capital, which will reduce the stockholder’s tax basis in its shares of common stock. The
amount, if any, of each distribution in excess of a stockholder’s tax basis in its shares of common stock will be taxable as gain realized from the sale or exchange of property. For further
information regarding the tax consequences in the event we make distributions other than from cash flow from operations, please see “Federal Income Tax Considerations—Taxation of
Taxable U.S. Stockholders.”
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Payments to the holder of the special units of our operating partnership may reduce cash available for distribution to our stockholders and the value of our shares of common
stock upon consummation of a liquidity event.

Moody op Holdmgs 1, LLC, as the holder of the special units of our operating partnership, may be entitled to receive 15% of specified distributions made upon dispositions of
our op p’s assets and a promissory note, cash or shares of our common stock of such amount upon the occurrence of specified events, including, among other events,
a listing of our shares on an exchange or the termination or non-renewal of the advisory agreement. Payments to the holder of the special units upon dispositions of our operating
partnership’s assets and redemptions of the special units may reduce cash available for distribution to our stockholders and the value of shares of our common stock upon
consummation of a liquidity event.

Recenily enacted and ial further fi ial l reforms could have a significant impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
p y g pe

On July 21, 2010, President Barack Obama signed the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or the “Dodd-Frank Act,” into law. The Dodd-Frank Act
represents a sxgmﬁcant change in the American financial regulatory environment and impacts nearly every aspect of the U.S. financial services industry. The Dodd-Frank Act requires
various federal agencies to adopt hundreds of new rules to implement the Dodd-Frank Act and to deliver to Congress numerous studies and reports that may influence future
legislation. The Dodd-Frank Act leaves significant discretion to federal agencies as to exactly how to implement the broad provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. As a result, ‘many of the
details and much of the impact of the Dodd-Frank Act may not be known for some time and the full extent of the impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our operations is currently unclear.
The changes resulting from the Dodd-Frank Act may impact the profitability of business activities, Tequire changes to certain business practices, impose more stringent capital, liquidity
and leverage requircments or otherwise adversely affect our business.

Further, we may be required to invest significant management attention and resources to evaluate and make any changes necessary to comply with new statutory and
regulatory requirements under the Dodd-Frank Act, which may negatively impact results of operations and financial condition.

Risks Related To Our Business

We, our sponsor and onr advisor have limited experie in op. ing a public 1p or a REIT, and our failure to operate successfully or profitably could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to generate cash flow.

We and our advisor are each recently formed companies. Other than our company, neither our advisor nor our sponsor nor any of our advisor’s or sponsor’s respective
officers or employees in their capacities with our advisor and our sponsor have operated a public company or an entity that has elected, or intends to elect, to be taxed as a REIT, and
we may not be able to operate such an entity successfully. You should not rely upon the past performance of other real estate investment programs of our affiliates to predlct our future
results. As of the date of this Annual Report, we have invested in only three real estate assets, one of Whlch our joint venture interest in the Resid nn property, we disposed of in
August 2012. You should consider our prospects in light of the risks, uncertainties and difficulties fr by panies that are, like us, in lheu' early stage of
development. To be successful, we must, among other things:

oJ identify and acquire investments that align with our investment strategies;
o0 blish and maintai with li d securities brokers and other agents to ully complete our i public offering;
o0 aftract, integrate, motivate and retain qualified personnel to manage our day-to-day operations;

11
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o] respond to competition for our targeted real estate properties, real estate securities and debt-related investments as well as for potential investors in our shares; and
Da} continue to build and expand our operations structure to support our business.

Our failure, or our advisor’s or sponsor’s failure, to operate successfully or profitably could have a material adverse effect on our ability to generate cash flow to make
distributions to our stockholders and could cause you to lose all or a portion of your investment in our shares.

Our success is dependent on the performance of our sponsor and Moody National affiliates.

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives and to pay distributions is dependent upon the performance of our advisor, our sponsor and other affiliates of our sponsor.
Our sponsor and its other affiliates are sensitive to trends in the general , as well as the ia] real estate and credit markets. The current macroeconomic environment and
recent credit crisis has negatively impacted the value of commercial real estate assets, contributing to a general slow down in the real estate industry, which we anticipate will continue
through 2013. The recent economic downtumn has resulted in overall transaction volume and size of sales and leasing activities to decline which has had an adverse impact on our
sponsor and its affiliates, and could continue to put downward pressure on our sponsor’s revenues and operating resutts.

The recent market d 7 has ad ly imp d, and could continue to adversely impact, certain prior real estate programs of our sponsor's affiliates, resulting in a
decrease or deferral of distributions with respect to such programs. Moody National M: ient, L.P. i to seck approval to amend its master lease agreements for certain prior
real estate programs to provide for either a deferral or a waiver of a portion of lease p to program i , each an * d " and collectively referred to as the

" and may inue to seek further amendments in the future dependmg upon the then current economic conditions. Certain prior real estate programs have also
requested additional cash infusions from investors to fund outstanding debt service payments. Further such requests may be necessary in the future depending upon the th t

economic conditions. These adverse developments have resulted in a reduction in payments to investors for certain prior real estate programs.

Moody National M: L.P. has also d negotiations with lenders to restructure loan terms with respect to certain prior real estate programs in defauit under
ex:stmg franchlst: or loan agreements and may continue to do so in the future. On some of the loans on these prior real estate prog; the lender is p ing various alternatives
of 1 dings and negotiations for loan modifications. On these loans, the lender and borrowers are acnvely working toward a loan

modification. However, there is no assurance that ﬁnal joan modxﬁcanons will be achieved. With respect to two tenant-in-common programs sponsored by Moody National Realty, the
initial lender sold the loans, and the purch of the loans initiated fc dings resulting in the filing for protection from these proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy
Court by an affiliate of Moody Nauonal Realty owning an original equity mvesrment in one property of approximately $10,000 and approximately $10,039 in the other property. These
affiliates have now received court approvai of a confirmation ptan under which an agreement was reached with the lender and the loans were reinstated. In addition, another affiliate of
Moody National Realty and tenant-in-common owners in eight tenant-in-common programs collectively initiated legal proceedings against a Jender. Currently, seven of these tenant-in-
common programs have been restructured into a limited liability company owned by the former tenant-in-common owners and a lender affiliate, and the legal proceedings have been
dismissed with respect to such programs. The lender and borrowers on one of the tenant-in-common programs entered into a settlement and reinstatement of the loan, and the legal
proceedings have been dismissed with respect to such program.

In addition to the above, the 19 t t-i owners of the Westchase Technology Center property, which originally acquired the property with a $4 million equity
investment, declined to proceed with a lender’s loan modification proposal and allowed the lender to foreclose on an office building which secured the loan. The 28 tenant-in-common
owners of a two-hotel project (consisting of the Springhill Suites Altamonte and the Holiday Inn Express Orlando) which originally acquired the project with a $10.2 million equity
investment, declined to proceed with a lender’s loan modification proposal and allowed the lender to foreclose on the two hotels which secured the loan. The 14 tenant-in-common
owners of a two-hotel project (consisting of the TownePlace Suite Miami Airport and TownePlace Suites Miami Lakes) which originally acquired the project with a $5.9 million equity
investment, declined to proceed with a lender’s loan modification proposal and allowed the lender to foreclose on the two hotels which secured the loan. The 16 tenant-in-common
owners of the TownePlace Suites Mount Laurel, which originally acquired the property with a $5.6 million equity investment, declined to proceed with a lender’s loan modification
proposal and allowed the lender to foreclose on the hotel which secured the loan. Additionally, the 35 tenant-in-common owners of the Courtyard Columbus Airport, which originally
acquired the property with a $11.1 million equity investment, entered into a deed in lieu of foreclosure agreement with the lender. Further, the lender for the Residence Inn Memphis filed
foreclosure proceedings and one unaffiliated tenant-in- common owner of the Resndence Inn Memphis filed for bankruptcy protection, which resulted in a court-ordered auction sale of
the property and a loss of the original $6.93 million equity i for the 17 1 t owners.




Filer: Moody National Form Type: 16-K Period: 12/31/12 Job Number: g13-00480 Rev: -NOT DEFINED- Sequence: 16
Submission: Document Name: mnrt-10k_123112.htm Saved: Printed: 3/29/2013 16:11:35
831@quality Description: Annual Report -NOT DEFINED- Created using EDGARizerAgent

To the extent that any decline in revenues and operating results impacts our sponsor’s ability to provide our advisor with sufficient resources to perform its obligations to us
pursuant to the advisory agr our results of operations, financial condition and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders could also suffer. Additionalty, such adverse
conditions could require a substantial amount of time on the part of the management of our advisor and its affiliates, particularly with regard to other real estate programs, thereby
decreasing the amount of time they spend actively managing our investments.

If we are delayed or unable to find suitable investments, we may not be able to achieve our investment objectives.

Delays in selecting, acquiring and developing real estate assets could adversely affect investor returns. Because we are conducting our continuous public offering on a “best
efforts” basis over time, our ability to commit to purchase specific assets will depend, in part, on the amount of proceeds we have received at a given time. If we are unable to access
sufficient capital, we may suffer from delays in deploying the capital into real estate assets.

The recent downturn in the credit kets has i d the cost of b ing and has made financing difficult to obtain, each of which may have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and business.

Recent events in the financial markets have had an adverse impact on the credit markets and, as a result, the availability of credit has become more expensive and difficult to
obtain. Some lenders are imposing more stringent restrictions on the terms of credit and there may be a general reduction in the amount of credit available in the markets in which we
conduct business. The terms and availability of credit is expected to remain limited during 2013. The negative impact of the ti ghtenmg of the credlt markets may have a matenal adverse
effect on us resulting from, but not limited to, an inability to finance the acquisition of real estate assets on favorable terms, if at ail, ing costs or fi with

ingly restrictive

We are uncertain of our sources for ﬁmdmg ounr fumre capital needs. If we cannot obtain debt or equity financing on acceptable terms, our ability to acquire real estate assets and
to expand our op ions will be ad Iy

The net proceeds from our continuous public offering will be used for investments in real properties, real estate securities and debt-related investments, for payment of
operating expenses and for payment of various fees and expenses such as acquisition fees, origination fees, asset management fees and property management fees. We do not intend to
establish a general working capital reserve out of the proceeds from our continuous public offering during the offering. Accordingly, in the event that we develop a need for additional
capital in the future for investments, the improvement of our real properties or for any other reason, sources of funding may not be available to us. If we cannot establish reserves out of
cash flow generated by our real estate assets or out of net sale proceeds in non-liquidating sale transactions, or obtain debt or equity financing on acceptable terms, our ability to
acquire real estate assets and to expand our operations wiil be adversely affected. As a result, we would be less likely to achieve portfolio diversification and our investment objectives,
which may negatively impact our results of operations and reduce our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

Risks Related to Our Organizational Structure
Maryland law and our organizational documents limit your right to bring claims against our officers and directors.

Maryland law provides that a director will not have any liability as a director so long as he or she performs his or her duties in accordance with the applicable standard of
conduct. In addition, our charter provides that, subject to the applicable limitations set forth therein or under Maryland law, no director or officer will be liable to us or our stockholders
for monetary damages. Our charter also provides that we will generally ind fy and ad to our d our officers, our advisor and its afﬁha\es for losses they may
incur by reason of their service in those capacities subject to any limitations under Maryland law or in our charter. Moreover, we have entered into n
with each of our directors and executive officers. As a result, we and our stockholders may have more limited rights against these persons than might otherwise exist under common law,
In addition, we may be obligated to fund the defense costs incurred by these persons in some cases. However, our charter provides that we may not indemnify our directors, our
advisor and its affiliates for loss or liability suffered by them or hold our directors or our advisor and its affiliates harmless for loss or liability suffered by us unless they have
determined that the course of conduct that caused the Ioss or habxhty was in our best interests, they were acting on our behalf or performing servxces for us, the hablhty was not the
result of negligence or mi duct by our non-ind , our advisor and its affiliates or gross negli or willful mi duct by our independ: and the
indemnification or obligation to hold harmless is recoverable only out of our net assets, inchading the proceeds of insurance, and not from the stockholders.
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The limit on the percentage of shares of our common stock that any person may own may di: ige a taki or busi; bination that may benefit our stockholders.

Our charter restricts the direct or indirect ownership by one person or entity to no more than 9.8% of the value of our then outstanding shares of capital stock (which includes
common stock and any preferred stock we may issue) and no more than 9.8% of the value or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of our then outstanding common stock
unless exempted by our board of directors. This restriction may discourage a change of control of us and may deter individuals or entities from making tender oﬁ'ers for shares of our

common stock on terms that might be financially attractive to stockholders or which may cause a change in our In addition to deterring p ions that may be
favorable to our stockholders, these provisions may also decrease your ability to sell your shares of our common stock.
We may issue preferred stock or other classes of stock, which i counld ad ly affect the holders of our stock issued p 1o our i  public

offering.

Investors in our continuous public offering do not have preemptive rights to any shares issued by us in the future. We may issue, without stockholder approval, preferred
stock or other classes of common stock with rights that could dilute the value of your shares of common stock. However, the issuance of preferred stock must be approved by a
majority of our independent di not otherwise i d in the transaction, who will have access, at our expense, to our legal counsel or to independent legal counsel. The
issnance of preferred stock or other classes of common stock could increase the number of stockholders entitled to distributions without simultaneously increasing the size of our asset
base.

Our charter authorizes us to issue 450,000,000 shares of capital stock, of which 400,000,000 shares of capital stock are designated as common stock and 50,000,000 shares of
capital stock are classified as preferred stock. Our board of directors may amend our charter from time to time to increase or decrease the aggregate number of authorized shares of
capital stock or the number of authorized shares of capital stock of any class or series without stockholder approval. If we ever created and issued preferred stock with a dlsmbutmn
pr over stock, p of any distribution preferences of outstanding preferred stock would reduce the amount of funds available for the pay of distri on
our common stock. Further, holders of preferred stock are normally entitled to receive a preference payment in the event we liquidate, dissolve or wind up before any payment is made to

our kholders, likely reducing the amount common stockholders would otherwise receive upon such an occurrence. In addition, under certain circumstances, the issuance
of preferred stock or a separate class or series of common stock may render more difficult or tend to discourage:

o amerger, tender offer or proxy contest;

o0 the assumption of control by a holder of a large block of our securities; and

o] the removal of incumbent management.
We do not currently have a comp i ittee, and p ly do not intend to form such a committee.

We do not have a compensation committee and have no plans to form one. Our board of directors may form a compensation committee in the future, which we expect wilt occur
only when we hire our own employees. We currently do not have any employees nor do we have plans to hire any employees. The role of any compensation committee would be to
make recommendations to our board of di onthe of our employees and to administer the granting of awards pursuant to our long-term incentive plan and to set the
terms and conditions of such awards. Until our board of directors deems it in our best interest to form a compensation comm)ttee our board of directors will directly administer our long-
term incentive plan and perform such other related duties. Should our board of directors decide in the future to form a p i such ittee will be comprised of a
majority of independent directors.
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Our UPREIT structure may result in potential conflicts of interest with limited p in our operating p hip whose is may not be aligned with those of our
stockholders.
We may issue limited partner i of our operating p hip in ion with certain transactions. Limited partners in our operaung partnership have the right to vote

on certain amendments to the operating partnership agreement, as well as on certain other matters. Persons holding such voting rights may exercise them in a manner that conflicts with
the interests of our stockholders. As general partner of our operating par hip, we are obli; d to act in a manner that is in the best interest of all partners of our operating
partnership. Circumstances may arise in the future when the interests of limited partners in our operating partnership may conflict with the i of our stockholders. These confli
may be resolved in a manner stockholders do not believe are in their best interest.

In addition, Moody OP Holdings I, LLC, the holder of special units in our operating partnership, may be entitled to (1) certain cash payments upon the disposition of certain of
our operating partnership’s assets or (2) a one-time payment in the form of cash, a promissory note or shares of our stock in conji with the redemption of the special
units upon the occurrence of a listing of our shares on a national stock exchange or certain events that result in the termination or non-renewal of our advisory agreement. This potential
obligation to make substantial payments to the holder of the special units may reduce our cash available for distribution to stockholders and limit the amount that stockholders will
receive upon the consummation of 2 liquidity event.

Your investment return may be reduced if we are required to register as an i tpany under the I Company Act; if we are subject 10 registration under the
Investment Company Act, we will not be able to continue our business.

Neither we, our operating partnership or any of our subsidiaries intend to register as an in pany under the I Company Act of 1940 as amended.
Currently, we own two real estate investments. Our operating partnership’s and subsidiaries’ intended i in real estate will rep the sub ity of our total asset

mix. In order for us not to be subject to regulation under the Investment Company Act, we intend to engage, through our operating partnership and our wholly and majority owned
subsidiaries, primarily in the business of buying real estate. These investments must be made within a year after this offering ends.

by

We expect that most of our assets will be held through wholly-owned or majority d ies of our operating partnership. We expect that most of these subsidiaries
will be outside the definition of an “i " under Section 3(a)(1) of the Investment Company Act as they are generally expected to hold at least 60% of their assets in real
property. Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the Investment Company Act defines an investment company as any issver that is or holds itself out as being engaged primarily in the business of
investing, reinvesting or trading in securities. Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Act defines an investment company as any issuer that is engaged or proposes to engage in
the business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding or trading in securities and owns or proposes to acquire investment securities having a value exceeding 40% of the value of the
issuer’s total assets {exclusive of U.S. government securities and cash items) on an unconsolidated basis, which we refer to as the “40% test.” ” Excluded from the term “investment
securities,” among other thmgs are U.S. government securities and securities issued by majority-owned subsidiaries that are not th 1 ies and are not relying
on the ption from the d of i pany set forth in Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the Investment Company Act.

p

We believe that we, our operating partnership and most of the subsidiaries of our operating partnership will not fall within either definition of investment company under
Section 3(a)(1) of the Investment Company Act as we intend to invest primarily in real property, through our wholly or majority-owned subsidiaries, the majority of which we expect to
have at least 60% of their assets in real property. As these subsidiaries would be investing either solely or primarily in real property, they would be outside of the definition of
“investment company” under Section 3(a)(1) of the Investment Company Act. We are organized as a holding pany that cond its busi primarily through our operating
partnership, which in turn is a holding company conducting its busi through its subsidiaries. Both we and our operating partnership intend to conduct our operations so that we
comply with the 40% test. We will monitor our holdings to ensure continuing and ongoing compliance with this test. In addition, we believe that neither we nor our operating
partnership will be considered an investment company under Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the Investment Company Act because neither we nor our operating partnership will engage primarily
or hold itself out as being engaged primarily in the business of investing, reinvesting or trading in securities. Rather, through our operating parmershxp 's wholly owned or majority
owned subsidiaries, we and our operating partnership will be primarily engaged in the non-investment pany b of these subsidiarie
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In the event that the value of investment securities held by a subsidiary of our operating par ip were to exceed 40% of the value of its total assets, we expect that
subsidiary to be able to rely on the exclusion from the definition of “i ” provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act. Section 3(c}(5XC), as

mterpreted by the staff of the SEC, requires each of our subsidiaries relying on this exceptlon to invest at least 55% of its portfolio in “mortgage and other liens on and interests in real
estate,” which we refer to as “qualifying real estate assets,” and maintain at least 80% of its assets in qualifying real estate assets or other real estate-related assets. The remaining 20%
of the portfolio can consist of miscellaneous assets. What we buy and sell is therefore limited by these criteria. How we determine to classify our assets for purposes of the Investment
Company Act will be based in large measure upon no-action letters issued by the SEC staff in the past and other SEC interpretive guidance and, in the absence of SEC guidance, on our
view of what constitutes a qualifying real estate asset and a real estate-related asset. These no-action positions were issued in accordance with factual situations that may be
substantially different from the factual situations we may face, and a number of these no-action positions were issued more than ten years ago. Pursuant to this guidance, and

ing on the ch istics of the specific investments, certain mortgage loans, participations in mortgage loans, mortgage-backed securities, mezzanine loans, joint venture
investments and the equity securities of other entities may not constitute qualifying real estate assets and therefore investments in these types of assets may be limited. No assurance
can be given that the SEC staff will concur with our classification of our assets. Future revisions to the Investment Company Act or further guidance from the SEC staff may cause us to
lose our exclusion from registration or force us to re-evaluate our portfolio and our investment strategy. Such changes may prevent us from operating our business successfully.

In the event that we, or our operating partnership, were to acquire assets that could make either entity fall within one of the definitions of an investment company under
Section 3(a)(1) of the Investment Company Act, we believe that we would still qualify for an exclusion from registration pursuant to Section 3(c)(6) of the Investment Company Act.
Although the SEC staff has issued little interpretive guidance with respect to Section 3(c)(6), we believe that we and our operating partnership may rely on Section 3(c)(6) if 55% of the
assets of our operating pamwlshlp cons1st of, and at least 55% of the income of our operating partnership is derived from, qualifying real estate assets owned by wholly owned or
majority-owned subsidiaries of our op g par hi

To ensure that neither we, our operating partnership or any of our subsidiaries are required to register as an investment company, each entity may be unable to sell assets that
it would otherwise want to sell and may need to sell assets that it would otherwise wish to retain. In addition, we, our operating partnership or our subsidiaries may be required to
acquire additional income- or loss-generating assets that we might not otherwise acquire or forego opportunities to acquire interests in companies that we would otherwise want to
acquire. Although we, our operating par hip and our subsidiaries intend to monitor our portfolio periodically and prior to each acquisition and disposition, any of these entities may
not be able to maintain an exclusion from registration as an investment company. If we, our operating par hip or our subsidiaries are required to register as an investment company
but fail to do so, the unregistered entity would be prohibited from ing in our busi and criminal and civil actions could be brought against such entity. In addition, the
contracts of such entity would be ble unless a court d enforcement, and a court could appoint a receiver to take control of the entity and liquidate its business.

Risks Related To Conflicts of Interest

We depend on our advisor and its key personnel and if any of such key personnel were to cease to be affiliated with our advisor, our business could suffer.

bj d 4,

Our ability to make distributions and achieve our i is dep upon the performance of our advisor in the acquisition, disposition and of
real estate assets, the selection of tenants for our real properties and the determinati of any fi ar In addition, our success d d to a significant degree upon the
continued contributions of certain of the key personnel of Moody National REIT Sponsor, LLC, our sponsor, including Brett C. Moody and Robert W. Engel, each of whom would be
difficult to replace. We currently do not have key man life insurance on any of these key personnel. If our advisor were to lose the benefit of the experience, efforts and abilities of one
or more of these individuals, our operating results could suffer.

We may compete with other Moody National affiliates for opportunities to acquire or sell investments, which may have an adverse impact on our operations.

We may compete with certain of our affiliates for opportunities to acquire or sell certain types of real estate assets. We may also buy or sell real estate assets at the same time
as our affiliates are considering buying or selling similar assets. In this regard, there is a risk that our advisor will select for us a real estate asset that provides lower retums to us than
real estate assets purchased by our affiliate. Certain of our affiliates own or manage real properties in geographical areas in which we expect to own real properties. Therefore, our real
properties may compete for tenants with other real properties owned or managed by affiliates. Our advisor may face conflicts of interest when evaluating tenant leasing opportunities for
our real properties and other real properties owned or managed by affiliates, and these conflicts of interest may have a negative impact on our ability to attract and retain tenants. As a
result of our potential competition with our affiliates, certain investment opportunities that would otherwise be available to us may not in fact be available. This competition may also
result in conflicts of interest that are not resolved in our favor.
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The time and resources that Moody National affiliates devote to us may be diverted, and we may face additional competition due to the fact that Moody National affiliates are not
prohibited from raising money for, or managing, another entity that makes the same types of investments that we target.

Moody National affiliates are not prohibited from raising money for, or ing, another i entity that makes the same types of investments as those we target. For
example, our advisor’s currently 46 privately offered real estate programs sponsored by affiliates of our sponsor, all of which have investment objectives
generally similar to our continuous public offering. As a result, the time and resources they could devote to us may be diverted. In addition, we may compete with any such investment
entity for the same and 1 ities. We may also co-i t with any such investment entity. Even though all such co-investments will be subject to approval by
our independent directors, they could be on lerms not as favorable to us as those we could achieve co-investing with a third party.

Our advisor and its affiliates, including our officers and some of our directors, face conflicts of interest caused by compensation arrangements with us and other Moody National
affiliates, which could result in actions that are not in the best interests of our stockholders.

Our advisor and its affiliates will receive substantial fees from us in return for their services and these fees could influence the advice provided to us. Among other matters, the
compensation arrangements could affect their judgment with respect to:

o[l public offerings of equity by us, which aliow our dealer manager to earn additional dealer manager fees and our advisor to earn increased acquisition fees and asset
management fees;

o[} real estate acquisitions, which allow our advisor to earn acquisition fees upon purch of assets and increase asset management fees;

oIl real estate asset sales, since the asset management fees payable to our advisor will decrease and since our advisor will be entitled to disposition fees upon sales; and

o[l the purchase of real estate assets from other Moody National affiliates, which may allow our advisor or its affiliates to earn additional asset management fees, property
management fees and disposition fees.

Further, our advisor may recommend that we invest in a particular asset or pay a higher purchase price for the asset than it would otherwise recommend if it did not receive an
acquisition fee or origination fee. Certain potential acquisition fees, origination fees and asset management fees payable to our advisor and property management and leasing fees
payable to the property manager would be paid irrespective of the quality of the underlying real estate or property management services during the term of the related agreement. These
fees may incentivize our advisor to recommend transactions with respect to the sale of a property or properties that may not be in our best interest at the time. Investments with higher

net operating income growth potential are generally riskier or more speculative. In addition, the p sale of an asset may add concentration risk to the portfolio or may be at a price
lower than if we held on to the asset. Moreover, our advisor has considerable discretion with respect to the terms and timing of acquisition, disposition and leasing transactions. In
evaluating i and other strategies, the opportunity to earn these fees may lead our advisor to place undue emphasis on criteria relating to its compensation at the

expense of other criteria, such as the preservation of capital, to achieve higher short-term compensation. Considerations relating to our affiliates’ compensation from us and other
Moody National affiliates could result in decisions that are not in the best interests of our stockholders, which could impair our ability to pay you distributions or result in a decline in
the value of your investment.

Our advisor may have conflicting fiduciary obligations if we acquire real estate assets from its affiliates or in joint ventures with its affiliates. As a result, in any such transaction
we may not have the benefit of arm’s-length negotiations of the type normally conducted between unrelated parties.

Our advisor may cause us to invest in a property owned by, or make an equity or debt-related investment in, one of i its affiliates or through a joint venture with its affiliates. For
example, we own our interest in the Hyatt Place note through a joint venture between a wholly owned subsidiary of our op p and an affiliated entity controlled by Brett
C. Moody, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. In these circumstances, our advisor will have a conflict of interest when fu]ﬁllmg its ﬁducnary obligation to us. In any such
transaction, we would not have the benefit of arm’s-length negotiations of the type normally conducted between unrelated parties.
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We may dispose of assets to our advisor, sponsor or their affiliates, which could cause us to enter into transactions on less favorable terms than we would receive from a third
party.

We may chspose of assets to our advisor, sponsor or their affiliates. Our advisor, sponsor or their affiliates may make sut 1 profits in ion with such
B our would rely on our advisor in identifying and evaluating any such transaction, these conflicts could result in transactions based on terms that are less
favorable to us than we would receive from a third party.

The fees we pay to affiliates in with our i public offering and in ion with the acquisition and g of our is were not d
an arm’s-length basis; therefore, we do not have the benefit of arm’s-length negotiations of the type normally conducted between unrelated parties.

on

The fees to be paid to our advisor, our property manager, our dealer manager and other affiliates for services they provide for us were not determined on an arm’s-length basis.
As aresult, the fees have been determined without the benefit of arm’s-length negotiations of the type normally conducted between unrelated parties and could be in excess of amounts
that we would otherwise pay to third parties for such services.

We may purchase real estate assets from third parties who have existing or previous busi; lationships with affiliates of our advisor, and, as a result, in any such transaction,
we may not have the benefit of arm’s-length negotiations of the type normally conducted between unrelated parties.

We may purchase assets from third parties that have existing or previous business relationships with affiliates of our advisor. The officers, directors or employees of our
advisor and its affiliates and the principals of our advisor who also perform services for our affiliates may have a conflict in rep ing our i in these ions on the one
hand and the interests of such afﬁlxates in presemng or furthenng their respective relatmnshlps on the other hand. In any such transaction, we will not have the benefit of arm’s-length
negotiations of the type 113 lated parties, and the purchase price or fees paid by us may be in excess of amounts that we would otherwise pay to third
parties.

Risks Related To Investments In Real Estate

.y " - N o

and deteri g could have a material adverse impact on our business.

Disruptions in the fi

We believe the risks associated with our business are more severe during market downturns. For example, a prolonged market downtum could negatively impact our real estate
investments as a result of decreased demand for hotel rooms, i d tenant deli ies and/or defaults under our leases. In addition, lower demand for rentable space and
oversupply of rentable space could lead to increased rent concessions, higher tenant improvement expenditures or reduced rental rates in order to maintain occupancies. Because we
expect that some of our debt-related investments may consist of loans secured by real property, these same factors could also negatively affect the underlying borrowers and collateral
of our in Our operations could be negatively affected to a greater extent if a market downturn is prolonged or becomes more severe, which would significantly harm our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition, our ability to make distributions to you and the value of your investment.

Changes in national, regional or local ic, demographic or real estate market conditions may adversely affect our results of operations and returns to onr stockholders.

We are subject to risks generally attributable to the ownership of real estate assets, including: changes in national, regional or local ic, d hic or real estate
market conditions; changes in supply of or demand for similar properties in an area; increased competition for real estate assets targeted by our investment strategy; bankruptcies,
financial difficulties or lease defaults by our tenants; changes in interest rates and availability of financing; and changes in government rules, regulations and fiscal policies, including
changes in tax, real estate, environmental and zoning laws.
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Changes in supply of, or demand for, similar real properties in a particular area may increase the price of real properties we seek to purchase and d the price of real

properties when we seek to sell them.

The real estate industry is subject to market forces. We are unable to predict certain market changes including changes in supply of, or demand for, similar real properties in a
particular area. Any potential purchase of an overpriced asset could decrease our rate of return on these investments and result in lower operating results and overall returns to our
stockholders.

Delays in the acquisition, development and construction of real properties may have adverse effects on our results of operations and returns to our stockholders.

Delays we encounter in the selection, acquisition and development of real properties could adversely affect your returns. Where properties are acquired prior to the start of
construction or during the early stages of construction, it will typically take several months to complete construction and rent available space. Therefore, you could suffer delays in
receiving cash distributions attributable to those particular real properties. Delays in completion of construction could give tenants the right to terminate preconstruction leases for
space at a newly developed project. We may incur additional risks when we make periodic p pay or other ad to builders prior to letion of construction. Each of
those factors could result in increased costs of a project or loss of our investment. In addition, we will be subject to normal lease-up risks relating to newly constructed projects.
Furthermore, the price we agree to pay for a real property will be based on our projections of rental income and expenses and estimates of the fair market value of real property upon
completion of construction. If our projections are inaccurate, we may pay too much for a property.

s s .

Real properties are illiguid investments, and we may be unable to adjust our portf in resp to
decide to do so.

in ic or other

or sell a property if or when we

Real properties are illiquid investments. We may be unable to adjust our portfolio in response to changes in economic or other conditions. In addition, the real estate market is
affected by many factors, such as general economic conditions, availability of financing, interest rates and other factors, including supply and demand, that are beyond our control. We
cannot predict whether we will be able to sell any real property for the price or on the terms set by us, or whether any price or other terms offered by a prospective purchaser would be
acceptable to us. We cannot predict the length of time needed to find 2 willing purchaser and to close the sale of a real property.

Additionally, we may be required to expend funds to correct defects or to make improvements before a property can be sold. We cannot assure you that we will have funds
available to correct such defects or to make such improvements.

In acquiring a real property, we may agree to restrictions that prohibit the sale of that real property for a period of time or impose other restrictions, such as a limitation on the
amount of debt that can be placed or repaid on that real property. All these provisions would restrict our ability to sell a property, which could reduce the amount of cash available for
distribution to our stockholders.

Our operating exp may i in the future and, to the extent such increases cannot be passed on to tenants, our cash flow and our operating results would decrease.

p g such as exp for fuel, utilities, labor and insurance, are not fixed and may increase in the future. There is no guarantee that we will be able to pass such
increases on to our tenants. To the extent such increases cannot be passed on to tenants, any such increase would cause our cash flow and our operating results to decrease.

A market downturn or rise in interest rates could adversely impact occupancy, rental rates and our ability to collect rent from our tenants.

A market downturn may significantly affect occupancy, rental rates and our ability to collect rent from our tenants. For example, a market downturn or rise in interest rates could
make it more difficult for us to lease real properties, may require us to lease the real properties we acquire at lower rental rates and may lead to an increase in tenant defaults. In addition,
these conditions may also make it more difficult for us to dispose of these properties. Each of these events could have a material adverse impact on our cash flows, operating results and
carrying value of investment property.
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In cases in which one of our tenanis is required to pay rent based on a percentage of the tenant’s income from its operations at the real property, the actual rental income we
receive under such a lease may be inadequate to cover the operating expenses associated with the real property.

Lease payments due under leases for retail properties may be based in part on the income of the retail tenant. In such cases where the tenant is required to pay rent based on a
percentage of the tenant’s income from its operations at the real property, the actual rental income we receive under such a lease may be inadequate to cover the operating expenses
associated with the real property if a tenant’s income is sut ially lower than projected. In such case, we may not have access to funds required in the future to pay the operating
expenses associated with the real property.

Real property that incurs a vacancy could be difficult to sell or re-lease.

Real property may incur a vacancy either by the continued default of a tenant under its lease or the expiration of one of our leases. In addition, certain of the real properties we
acquire may have some level of vacancy at the time of closing. Certain other real properties may be specifically suited to the particular needs of a tenant and may become vacant,
Therefore, we may have difficuity obtaining a new tenant for any vacant space we have in our real properties. If the vacancy continues for a long period of time, we may suffer reduced
revenues resulting in lower cash distributions to stockholders. In addition, the resale value of the real property could be diminished because the market value may depend principally
upon the value of the leases of such real property.

We are dependent on tenants for revenue and our inability to lease our properties or to collect rent from our tenants may adversely affect our results of operations and returns to
our stockholders.

Certain of our properties may be occupied by a single tenant. As a result, the success of those properties will depend on the financial stability of a single tenant. Lease
payment defaults by such tenants could cause us to reduce the amount of distributions to stockholders and could force us to find an alternative source of revenue to pay any mortgage
loan on the property. In the event of such a tenant default, we may also experience delays in enforcing our rights as landlord and may incur substantial cests in protecting our
investment and re-letting our property. If a lease is terminated, we may be unable to lease the property for the rent previously received or sell the property without incurring a loss.

We may not have funding for future tenant imp which may ad) Iy affect the value of our properties, our results of operations and returns to our stockholders.

‘When a tenant at one of our real properties does not renew its lease or otherwise vacates its space in one of our buildings, it is likely that, to attract one or more new tenants,
we will be required to expend substantial funds to construct new tenant improvements in the vacated space. We do not anticipate establishing a general working capital reserve out of
the proceeds from our continuous public offering during the offering. We do not currently have an identified funding source to provide funds which may be required in the future for
tenant improvements and tenant refurbishments to attract new tenants. If we do not establish sufficient reserves for ‘working capital or obtain adequate secured financing to supply
necessary funds for capital imp: or similar exp ‘we may be required to defer y or desirab} to our real properties. If we defer such improvements,
the applicable real properties may decline in value, and it may be more difficult for us to attract or retain tenants to such real properties or the amount of rent we can charge at such real
properties may decrease. We cannot assure you that we will have any sources of funding available to us for repair or reconstruction of damaged real property in the future.

Y thold,

Long-term leases may not result in fair market lease rates over time; therefore, our income and our dis
long-term leases.

to our conld be lower than if we did not enter into

‘We may enter into long-term leases with tenants of certain of our properties. Our long-term leases would likely provide for rent to increase over time. However, if we do not

ly judge the p ial for i in market rental rates, we may set the terms of these long-term leases at levels such that even after contractual rental increases the rent under
our long-term leases is less than then-current market rental rates. Further, we may have no ability to terminate those leases or to adjust the rent to then-prevailing market rates. As a
result, our income and distributions to our stockholders could be lower than if we did not enter into long-term leases.
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Our real properties will be subject to property taxes that may increase in the future, which could adversely affect our cash flow.

Our real properties are subject to real and personal property taxes that may increase as tax rates change and as the real properties are assessed or reassessed by taxing
authorities. We anticipate that certain of our leases will generally provide that the property taxes, or increases therein, are charged to the lessees as an expense related to the reat
properties that they occupy, while other leases will generally provide that we are responsnble for such taxes. In any case, as the owner of the propemes, we are ulnmatery responsnble for
payment of the taxes to the applicable government authorities. If real property taxes increase, our tenants may be unable to make the ired tax pay quiring us to
pay the taxes even if otherwise stated under the terms of the lease. If we fail to pay any such taxes, the applicable taxing authority may place a lien on the real property and the real
property may be subject to a tax sale. We will also generally be responsible for real property taxes related to any vacant space. Additionally, some states may impose an entity level tax
directly on us. For example, we could be subject to an entity level tax under amendments to the margins tax in the state of Texas. Such an entity level tax could adversely affect our cash
flow.

Uniy d losses or p inms for i relating to real property may adversely affect your returns.

There are types of losses, generally catastrophic in nature, such as losses due to wars, acts of terrorism, earthquakes, floods, hurricanes, pollumm or environmental matters
that are uninsurable or not economically insurable, or may be insured subject to limitations, such as large deductibles or co-pay Risks d wnh P ial acts of terrorism
could sharply increase the premiums we pay for coverage against property and casualty claims. Additionally, mortgage lenders i Tequire 1] owners to
purchase specific coverage against terrorism as a condition for providing mortgage loans. These policies may not be available at a reasonable cost, if at all, which could inhibit our
ability to finance or refinance our real properties. In such instances, we may be required to provide other financial support, either through financial assvrances or self-insurance, to
cover potential losses. Changes in the cost or availability of insurance could expose us to uninsured casualty losses. In the event that any of our real properties incurs a casualty loss
which is not fully covered by insurance, the value of our assets will be reduced by any such uninsured loss. In addition, we cannot assure you that funding will be available to us for
Tepair or reconstruction of damaged real property in the future.

We compete with numerous other parties or entities for real estate assets and tenants and may not compete successfully.

We will compete with numerous other persons or entities seeking to buy real estate assets or to attract tenants to real properties we acquire. These persons or entities may
have greater experience and financial strength than us. There is no assurance that we will be able to acquire real estate assets or attract tenants on favorable terms, if at all. For example,
our competitors may be willing to offer space at rental rates below our rates, causing us to lose existing or potential tenants and pressuring us to reduce our rental rates to retain existing
tenants or convince new tenants to lease space at our properties. Each of these factors could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, value of our investments
and ability to pay distributions to you.

Qur ability to make 1o our will depend upon the ability of hotel managers to operate our hotels effectively.

We currently own the Woodlands property, which is a hotel property, and a 74.5% joint venture interest in the Hyatt Place note, which is secured by a hotel property, and we
expect to invest a portion of the proceeds from our continuous public offering in additional hotel properties and hotel related investments. To qualify as a REIT, we cannot operate any
hotel or directly participate in the decisions affecting the daily operations of any hotel. Our third-party hotel manager for the Woodlands property and for any other hotel properties we
acquire will have direct control of the daily operations of our hotels. We witl not have the authority to directly control any particular aspect of the daily operations (e.g., setting room
rates) of the Woodlands property or any other hotel that we acquire an interest in. Thus, even if we believe that a hotel is being operated in an inefficient or less than optimal manner,
we will not be able to require a change to the method of its operation. Qur only altemative for changing the operation of a hotel will be to replace the third-party manager in the situation
where the applicable hotel permits us to do s0.

£

Our abllxty to make distributions to stockholders will be impacted by the pesformance of our third-party hotel ing sufficient from our hotels in
excess of p The hotel will be affected by factors beyond their control, such as changes in the level of demand for rooms and related services of the hotels,
their ability to maintain and increase gross revenues and operating margins at the hotels and other factors. Therefore, any operating difficulties or other factors affecting the hotel

* ability to maintain and i grOss T and operating margins at our hotels could significantly adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
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The recent market d¢ has ad ly affected the hospitality industry and may affect hotel operations for the hotels we acquire.

As part of the effects of the recent market downturn, the hospitality industry has experienced a significant decline in business caused by a reduction in travel for both business
and pleasure. Consistent with the rest of the hospitality industry, the Woodlands property and any other hotels that we acquire may experience declines in occupancy and average
daily rates due to decline in travel. In addition, it is possible that these factors could have a material adverse effect on the value of the Woodlands property and any other hotels that we
acquire.

Competition in the hospitality industry and with third parties in acquiring propeities may reduce our profitability and the return on your investment.

The hospitality industry is generally ch ized as being i ly competitive. Any hotel in which we invest will compete with existing and new hotels in their geographic
markets, including with independent hotels, hotels which are part of focal or regional chains and hotels in other well-known national chains, including those offering different types of
accommodations and servxces. For example, the Woodtands property faces petition from other p le hotel properties located in and around the Woodlands property’s
Woodlands, Texas, sub id Inn — The Woodlands/Six Pines, Resid Inn - The Woodlands/Lake Front Circle, Drury Inn & Suites, and Townplace Suites,
each of which are hotel properties located within one mile of the Woodlands property. The principal competitive factors that will affect the hotel properties in which we seek to invest
include, but are not limited to, brand recognition, location, range of services and guest amenities and the quality and price of the hotel rooms and services provided. Any one of the
foregoing could impact our profitability and ability to pay distributions.

If we decide to invest in additional hotel properties, we expect to face significant competition for attractive hotel investment opportunities from other major real estate investors
with significant capital, including both publicly traded REITs and private institutional i funds. B of ition from other well-capitalized real estate i we can
provide no assurance that we will be able to acquire desired hotel properties. Where it is possible to acquire desired hotel properties, we can provide no assurance that we will be able to
do so on favorable terms or that such properties will meet our return expectations or conform to our investment criteria. The competition to acquire attractive hotel investment
opportunities could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and abitlity to pay distributions.

PP

If we do not successfully attract and retain fi for hotel properties, our busii will suffer, and this result will reduce the value of your investment.

Generally, we must attract and retain well-known hospitality franchises for any hotels we may choose to acquire to make these i fitable. Certain hospitali
franchises, including limited-service hotels, impose radius restrictions that limit the number of their hotels allowed within a certain distance of one another. Hospitality franchxses also
generally require that design and quality standards be met for guest room and common areas before a hospitality franchise will agree to pmvnde the franchise agreement to operate a
property. Compliance with these brand standards may impose significant costs upon us. If we are not able to attract and retain franchi: hips for our hotel properties because of
location restrictions, the high cost of complying with design and quality standards, or any other reason, our business will suffer, and this resuh will reduce the value of your investment.

The hospitality industry is subject to unique, unforeseeable risks that may negatively impact our business and the value of your investment.

The hospitality industry is subject to unique, unforeseeable risks, such as natural d demics and threats of pandemics, acts of terror and other catastrophes. We
have no control over events of this type and they could have a substantial impact on the hospitality mdustry and our business if we decide to invest in additional hotel properties.
Because we are unable to control the timing, duration or magnitude of these unforeseen events, the negative impact upon our business could be great.
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To the extent we invest in multifamily properties, our ability to make di to our kholders may be ad Iy affected by short-term leases that expose us to the effects

of declining market rent.

We may invest a portion of the proceeds from our continuous public offering in multifamily properties. We expect that substantially all of our leases for such properties would
be for a term of one year or less. Because these leases generally would permit the residents to leave at the end of the lease term without penalty, our rental revenues could be impacted
by declines in market rents more quickly than for longer-term leases, which in tum could affect our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

Competition due to building of multifamily properties may reduce our profitability and the return on your investment,

The mulnfamlly property industry is highly competitive. We compete with many other entities in the multifamily property industry, including individuals, corporations, bank
and i pany other REITs, real estate limited partnerships, and other entities engaged in real estate investment activities. Because of the large number
of competitors in this industry, overbuilding of ities may occur. If so, this will increase the number of apartment units available and may d p and
apartment rental rates. To the extent we invest in mulnfamlly properties, this competition could reduce occupancy levels and revenues at our apartment communities, which would
adversely affect our operations.

To the extent we invest in retail properties, our performance will be linked to the market for retail space generally.

The market for retail  space has been and could be adversely affected by weaknesses in the national, regional and local economies, the adverse financial condition of some large

the lidation in the retail sector, excess amounts of Tetail space in a number of markets and competition for tenants with other shopping centers in our
markets. Retallers at our properties will face continued competition from discount or value retailers, factory outiet centers, wholesale clubs, mail order catalogues and operators,
television shopping ks and shopping via the Internet. Such competition could adversely affect our tenants and, quently, our and funds avai for distribution.

Market downturns may lead to decreased consumer spending, which may have an adverse affect on tenants of our retail properties.

The recent market downturn has led to decreased consumer spending. A market downturn could adversely affect our retail investments because our income from such
investments may be derived from lease payments by tenants whose busi depend on pending. In addition, our ability to increase our revenues and operating income
may depend on steady growth of demand for the products and services offered by the stores and companies located in the retail properties we own. A drop in demand for any reason
could result in a reduction in tenant performance and consequently, adversely affect us.

Actions of joint venture partners could negatively impact our performance.

We may enter into joint ventures with third parties, including with entities that are affiliated with our advisor. For example, we own our interest in the Hyatt Place note through
a joint venture between a wholly owned subSIdlary of our operatmg parmershlp and an affiliated entity conrrollcd by Brett C. Moody, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We
may also purchase and develop properties in joint or in par ies or other p ar with the sellers of the properties, affiliates of the
sellers, developers or other persons. Such investments may mvolve risks not otherwise present with a direct i mvestmem in real estate, including, for example:

. the possibility that our venture partner or co-tenant in an investment might become bankrupt;
. that the venture partner or co-tenant may at any time have economic or business interests or goals which are, or which become, i i with our b
or goals;
. that such venture partner or co-tenant may be in a position to take action contrary to our instructions or requests or contrary to our policies or objectives;
. the possibility that we may incur liabilities as a result of an action taken by such venture partner;
. that disputes between us and a venture partner may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase our expenses and prevent our officers and directors from

focusing their time and effort on our business;
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. the possibility that if we have a right of first refusal or buy/sell right to buy out a co-venturer, co-owner or partner, we may be unable to finance such a buy-out if it
becomes exercisable or we may be required to purchase such interest at a time when it would not otherwise be in our best interest to do so; or

. the possibility that we may not be able to sl our interest in the joint venture if we desire to exit the joint venture.

Under certain joint venture arrangements, neither venture partner may have the power to control the venture and an impasse could be reached, which might have a negative
influence on the joint venture and decrease potential returns to you. In addition, to the extent that our venture partner or co-tenant is an affiliate of our advisor, certain conflicts of
interest will exist.

Costs of lying with g ! laws and

1p related to envi, Ip ion and human health and safety may be high.

Al real property investments and the operations conducted in connection with such investments are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to
envxronmental protectwn and human health and safety. Some of these laws and regulations may impose joint and several liability on customers, owners or operators for the costs to
o gate or d properties, dless of fault or whether the acts causing the contamination were legal.

Under various federal, state and local environmental laws, a current or previous owner or operator of Teal property may be liable for the cost of removing or remediating
hazardous or toxic substances on such real property. Such laws oﬁen impose liability whether or not the owner or operator knew of, or was responsxble for, the presence of such
hazardous or toxic substances. In addition, the p of b b or the failure to properly diate these sub may ad Iy affect our ability to sell, rent or
pledge such real property as collateral for fumre borrowings. Environmental laws also may impose restrictions on the manner in which real property may be used or businesses may be
operated. Some of these laws and regulations have been amended so as to require compliance with new or more stringent standards as of future dates. Compliance with new or more
stringent laws or ions or stricter interp ion of existing laws may require us to incur material di Future laws, ordi or lations may impose material
envi 1 liability. Additionally, our tenants' operations, the existing condition of land when we buy it, operations in the vicinity of our real properties, such as the presence of
underground storage tanks, or activities of unrelated third parties may affect our real properties. There are also Vanous local, state and federal fire, health, life-safety and similar
regulatlons with which we may be required-to comply and which may subject us to Hability in the form of fines or d: for pli In ion with the isition and
o hip of our real properti we may be exposed to such costs in connection with such lati The cost of defending against envi 1 claims, of any damages or fines we
must pay, of li with latory reqmremems or of remediating any contaminated real property could materially and adversely affect our business, lower the

value of our assets or results of operations and, ly, lower the ilable for distribution to you.

The costs

d with complying with the A

with Disabilities Act may reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our sto

Investment in real properties may also be subject to the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, or the ADA. Under the ADA, all places of public accommodation
are required to comply with federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons. The ADA has separate compliance requirements for “public accommodations” and
“commercial facilities” that generally require that buildings and services be made accessible and available to people with disabilities. With respect to the properties we acquire, the
ADA’s requirements could require us to remove access barriers and could result in the imposition of injunctive relief, monetary penalties or, in some cases, an award of damages. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to acquire properties which comply with the ADA or all the responsibility for it with the ADA to another third party, such as the
seller or the tenant of the property. Any monies we use to comply with the ADA will reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our stockholders.

Real property investments made outside of the United States will be subject to currency rate exp and risks iated with the inty of foreign laws and markets.

We may acquire properties in Canada to the extent that opportunities exist that may help us meet our investment objectives. International investments and operations generally
are subject to various political and other risks that are different from and in addition to those for U.S. investments and operations. To the extent that we invest in real property located
outside of the United States, in addition to risks inherent in the investment in real estate generally discussed in thxs Annual Report we will also be subject to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates and the uncertainty of foreign laws and markets mcludmg, but not limited to, unexp in y such as the enactment of laws
prohibiting or icting the foreign hip of property, political and economic instability in certain geographic Iocanons, dlfﬁculues in managmg international operations,
potentially adverse tax consequences, laws restnctmg us from removmg profits earned from activities within the country to the United States, including the pay of distribution:
additional accounting and control exp and the admi ive burden iated with complying with a wide variety of foreign laws Changes in foreign currency exchange rates
may adversely impact the fair values and eammgs streams of our international holdings and thus the returns on our dollar d d inv . Although we may hedge our
foreign currency risk subject to the REIT income qualification tests, we may not be able to do so successfully and may incur losses on these investments as a result of exchange rate

fluctnations.
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Risks Associated with Real Estate Securities and Debt-Related Investments

Continued disruptions in the financial markets and d conld ly impact the commercial morigage market as well as the market for debt-
related investments generally, which could hinder our ability to 2P our business strategy and g returns for our stockholders.

As part of our investment strategy, we intend to acquire a portfolio of real estate-related loans, real estate-related debt securities and other real estate-related investments. The
returns available to i on these i are d ined by: (1) the supply and demand for such investments and (2) the existence of a market for such investments, which
includes the ability to sell or finance such investments. During periods of volatility, the number of investors participating in the market may change atan accelerated pace. As liquidity
or “demand” increases, the retumns available to investors will decrease. Conversely, a lack of liquidity will cause the returns available to to i Recently, concerns
pertaining to the deterioration of credit in the residential mortgage market have expanded to almost all areas of the debt capital markets including corporate bonds, asset-backed

securities and commercial real estate mortgages and Joans. Continued or future instability may interfere with the p ion of our busis strategy.

The recent market downturn could negatively impact borrowers’ ability to pay principal and interest payments on morigage loans we own.

The recent market d n, in addition to other ic factors such as an excess supply of properties, has had a material negative impact on the values of commemal
real estate. Due to declining real estate values, borrowers may be less able to pay principal and interest on our loans especially if the real estate y k Further, declining
real estate values significantly increase the likelihood that we wxll incur losses on our loans in the event of defanlt because the value of our collateral may be insufficient to cover our
cost on the loan. Any ined period of i d 1 or losses could adversely affect both our net interest income from loans in our portfotio as well
as our ability to sell loans, which would 51gnxﬁcantly hann our revenues, results of operations, financial condition, business prospects and our ability to make distributions to you.

Our rgage loans may be affected by unf real estate market conditions, which counld decrease the value of those loans and the return on your investment.

We are at risk of defaults by the borrowers on our mortgage loans. These defaults may be caused by many conditions beyond our control, including interest rate levels and
Jocal and other economic conditions affecting real estate values. We will not know whether the values of the properties securing our mortgage loans will remain at the levels existing on
the dates of origination of those mortgage loans. If the values of the underlying properties drop, our risk will increase because of the lower value of the security associated with such
loans.

To the extent we make or invest in morigage loans, our morigage loans will be subject 10 interest rate fluctuations that could reduce our returns as compared to market interest
rates and reduce the value of the morigage loans in the event we sell them; accordingly, the value of your investment would be subject to fluctuations in interest rates.

To the extent we invest in fixed-rate, long-term mortgage loans and market interest rates rise, the mortgage loans could yield a retumn that is lower than then-current market
rates, which would lower the proceeds we would receive in the event we sell such assets. If market interest rates decrease, we will be adversely affected to the extent that mortgage
loans are prepaid because we may not be able to make new loans at the higher interest rate. To the extent we invest in variable-rate loans and interest rates decrease, our revenues will
also decrease. Finally, to the extent we invest in variable-rate loans and interest rates increase, the value of the loans we own at such time would decrease, which would lower the
proceeds we would receive in the event we sell such assets. For these reasons, if we invest in mortgage loans, our retumns on those loans and the value of your investment will be
subject to fluctuations in market interest rates. Our mortgage loan investment, the Hyatt Place note, accrues interest at a variable rate.
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The CMBS and CDOs in which we may invest are subject to several types of risks.

Commercial mortgage-backed securities, or CMBS, are bonds which evidence interests in, or are secured by, a single commercial mortgage loan or a pool of commercial
ge loans. Coll lized debt obligations, or CDOs, are a type of debt obligation that are backed by commercial real estate assets, such as CMBS, commercial mortgage loans, B-
notes, or mezzanine paper. Accordingly, the mortgage backed securities we may invest in are subject to all the risks of the underlying mortgage loans.

In a rising interest rate environment, the value of CMBS and CDOs may be adversely affected when payments on underlying mortgages do not occur as anticipated, resulting
in the extension of the security’s effective maturity and the related increase in interest rate sensitivity of a Jonger-term instrument. The value of CMBS and CDOs may also change due
to shifts in the market’s perception of issuers and y or tax chang ly affecting the mortgage securities markets as a whole. In addition, CMBS and CDOs are subject to
the credit risk associated with the performance of the underlying mortgage properties. In certain instances, third party guarantees or other forms of credit support can reduce the credit
risk,

CMBS and CDOs are also subject to several risks created through the securitization process. Subordinate CMBS and CDOs are paid interest only to the extent that there are
funds available to make payments. To the extent the collateral pool includes a large p ge of deli loans, there is a risk that interest payment on subordinate CMBS and CDOs
will not be fully paid. Subordinate securities of CMBS and CDOs are also subject to greater credit risk than those CMBS and CDOs that are more highly rated.

The mezzanine loans in which we may invest would involve greater risks of loss than senior loans secured by i) -producing real prop:

We may invest in mezzanine loans that take the form of subordinated loans secured by second mortgages on the underlying real property or loans secured by a pledge of the
ownership interests of the entity owning the real property, the entity that owns the interest in the entity owning the real property or other assets. These types of investments involve a
higher degree of risk than long-term senior mortgage lending secured by income-producing real property because the investment may become d as aresult of 1 by
the senior lender. In the event of a bankruptcy of the entity providing the pledge of its ownership interests as security, we may not have full recourse to the assets of such entity, or the
assets of the entity may not be sufficient to satisfy our mezzanine loan. If a borrower defaults on our mezzanine loan or debt senior to our loan, or in the event of a borrower bankruptcy,

our mezzanine loan will be satisfied only after the senior debt. As a result, we may not recover some or all of our i In addi ine loans may have higher loan-to-value
ratios than con 1 ge loans, Iting in less equity in the real property and increasing the risk of loss of principal.
We may make investments in non-U.S. dollar denominated securities, which will be subject to currency rate exposure and risks iated with the inty of foreign laws and
markets.

Some of our real estate securities i may be d inated in foreign currencies and, therefore, we expect to have currency risk exposure to any such foreign
currencies. A change in foreign currency exchange rates may have an adverse impact on returns on our non-U.S. dollar denominated investments. Although we may hedge our foreign
currency risk subject to the REIT income qualification tests, we may not be able to do so successfully and may incur losses on these inve as aresult of exch rate

fluctuations. To the extent that we invest in non-U.S. dollar denominated securities, in addition to risks inherent in the investment in securities generally discussed in this Annual
Report, we will also be subject to risks associated with the uncertamty of foreign laws and markets mcludmg, but not limited to, unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, political

and economic mstab:hty in cenam geographic locatzons difficulties in ing international op , P adverse tax ol ing and control
and the ad: burden of plying with a wide variety of foreign laws.
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Risks A iated With Debt Fi 2

We have incurred, and plan to incur in the future, (gage indebted, and other b 1gs, which may i our busi) risks, could hinder our ability to make
distrib and could d the value of your investment.

We have incurred, and plan to incur in the future, financing that is secured by our real estate assets. Under our charter, we have a limitation on borrowing which prectudes us
from borrowing in excess of 300% of the value of our net assets. “Net assets” for purposes of this calculation is defined to be our total assets (other than intangibles), valued at cost
prior to deducti ion or other h reserves, less total liabilities. Genera]ly speaking, the p di leul is expected to approxi 75% of the aggregate cost of
our real estate assets before h reserves and d ion. We may temporarily borrow in excess of these amounts if such excess is approved by a majority of the independent
directors and is disclosed to stockholders in our next quanerly report, along with a justification for such excess. As of December 31, 2012, our debt-to-net-asset ratio did not exceed
300%. In addition, we may incur mortgage debt and pledge some or all of our real estate assets as security for that debt to obtain funds to acquire additional real estate assets or for
working capital. We may also borrow funds as necessary or advisable to ensure we maintain our REIT tax qualification, including the i that we distribute at feast 90% of our
annual REIT taxable income to our stockholders (computed without regard to the distribution paid deduction and excluding net capital gams) Furthermore, we may borrow if we
otherwise deem it necessary or advisable to ensure that we maintain our qualification as a REIT for federal income tax purposes.

High debt levels will cause us to incur higher interest charges, which would result in higher debt service pay and could be panied by restrictive covenants. If there
is a shortfall between the cash flow from a property and the cash flow needed to service mortgage debt on that property, then the amount available for distributions to stockholders may
be reduced. In addition, incurring mortgage debt increases the risk of loss since defaults on mdebtedness secured by a property may result in lenders initiating foreclosure actions. In
that case, we could lose the property securing the loan that is in default, thus reducing the value of your i For tax purp a foreck on any of our properties will be

treated as a sale of the property for a purchase price equal to the outstanding balance of the debt secured by the mortgage. If the outstanding balance of the debt secured by the
mortgage exceeds our tax basis in the property, we will recognize taxable income on foreclosure, but we would not receive any cash proceeds. If any mortgage contains cross
collateralization or cross default provisions, a default on a single property could affect multiple properties. If any of our properties are foreclosed upon due to a default, our ability to pay
cash distributions to our stockholders will be adversely affected.

Disruptions in the financial markets and deteriorating economic conditions conld also adversely affect our ability to secure debt financing on attractive terms and the values of
investments we make.

The capital and credit markets have recently experienced extreme volatility and disruption. Liquidity in the global credit market has been severely contracted by these market
disruptions, making it costly to obtain new lines of credit or refinance existing debt. We have, and expect in the future to continue to, finance our investments in part with debt. As a
result of the recent turmoil in the credit markets, we may not be able to obtain debt financing on attractive terms or at all. As such, we may be forced to use a greater proportion of our
offering proceeds to finance our acquisitions and originations, reducing the number of investments we would otherwise make. If the debt market remains weak, we may modify our
investment strategy in order to optimize our portfolio performance. Qur options would include limiting or eliminating the use of debt and focusing on those investments that do not
require the use of Jeverage to meet our portfolio goals.

Instability in the debt markets may make it more difficuit for us to finance or refinance properties, which conld reduce the number of properties we can acquire and the amount of
cash distributions we can make to our stockholders.

1f mortgage debt is unavailable on reasonable terms as a result of increased interest rates or other factors, we may not be able to finance the initial purchase of properties. In
addition, if we place mortgage debt on properties, we run the risk of being unable to refinance such debt when the loans come due, or of being unable to refinance on favorable terms. If
interest rates are higher when we refinance debt, our income could be reduced. We may be unable to refinance debt at appropriate times, which may require us to sell properties on terms
that are not advantageous to us, or could result in the foreclosure of such properties. If any of these events occur, our cash flow would be reduced. This, in turn, would reduce cash
available for distribution to you and may hinder our ability to raise more capital by issuing securities or by borrowing more money.

Increases in interest rates could increase the amount of our debt p and negatively impact onr op ing results.
Interest we pay on our debt obligations will reduce cash available for distributions. If we incur variable rate debt, increases in interest rates would increase our interest costs,

which would reduce our cash flows and our ability to make distributions to you. If we need to repay existing debt during periods of rising interest rates, we could be required to liquidate
onc or more of our investments at times which may not permit realization of the maximum return on such investments.
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Lenders may require us to enter into icti relating to our operations, which could limit our ability to make distributions to our kholde

When providing financing, a lender may impose restrictions on us that affect our dlstnbutlon and operating pohcles and our ability to incur additional debt. Loan documents
we enter into may contain covenants that limit our ability to further a property, d , or yeplace Moody National Advisor I, LLC as our advisor. In
addition, loan documents may limit our ability to replace a property’s property manager or terminate certain operating or lease agreements related to a property. These or other
limitations may adversely affect our flexibility and our ability to achieve our investment objectives.

Our derivative fiy ial i that we may use to hedge against interest rate fluctuations may not be ful in mitigating our risks iated with interest rates and
could reduce the overall returns on your investment.

We may use derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates on loans secured by our real estate assets, but no hedging strategy can protect us
completely. We cannot assure you that our hedging strategy and the derivatives that we use will adequately offset the risk of interest rate volatility or that our hedging transactions will
not result in losses. In addition, the use of such instruments may reduce the overall return on our i These i may also g income that may not be treated as
qualifying REIT income for purposes of the 75% or 95% REIT income test.

Federal Income Tax Risks

Failure to qualify as a REIT could ady ly affect our operations and our ability to make distributions,

‘We made an election to be taxed as a REIT for federal income tax purposes commencing with the taxable year ended D ber 31, 2011. Our qualification as a REIT depends on
our satisfaction of numerous requirements {(some on an annual and quarterly basis) established under highly technical and complex provisions of the Internal Revenue Code for which
there are only limited judicial or administrative interpretations and involve the determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely within our control. The complexity
of these provisions and of the applicable income tax regulations that have been promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code is greater in the case of a REIT that holds its assets
through a partnership, as we do. Moreover, no assurance can be given that legislation, new regulations, admi ive interp ions or court decisions will not change the tax laws
with respect to qualification as a REIT or the federal income tax consequences of that qualification.

If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT for any taxable year, we would be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at corporate rates. In addition, if we lose our REIT
status we would genexally be dlsquahﬁed from treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year in which we lose our REIT status. Losing our REIT status would reduce
our net i for or distribution to stockholders because of the additional tax liability. In addition, distributions to stockholders would no longer be deductible
in computing our taxable income and we would no longer be required to make distributions. To the extent that distributions had been made in anticipation of our qualifying as a REIT,
we might be required to borrow funds or liqui some i to pay the applicable corporate income tax. In addition, although we intend to operate in a manner intended to

qualify as a REIT, it is possible that future economic, market, legal, tax or other considerations may cause our board of directors to recommend that we revoke our REIT election.

We believe that our operating partnership will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a partnership and not as an association or as a pubhcly traded pannershlp taxablc
as a corporation. If the Internal R Service were successfully to determine that our operating partnership should properly be treated as a corp our par
would be required to pay federal income tax at corporate rates on its net income. In addition, we would fail to qualify as a REIT, with the resultmg consequences descnbed above.

To qualify as a REIT we must meet annual distribution requirements, which may result in us distributing amounts that may otherwise be used for our operations.

To obtain the fa ble tax ded to REITs, we normally will be required each year to distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our real estate investment
income, determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and by excluding net capital gains. We will be subject to federal income tax on our undistributed taxable income and
net capital gain and to a 4% nondeductible excise tax on any amount by which distributions we pay with respect to any calendar year are less than the sum of (1) 85% of our ordinary
income, (2) 95% of our capital gain net income and (3) 100% of our undistributed income from prior years. These requirements could cavse us to distribute amounts that otherwise would
be spent on investments in real estate assets and it is possible that we might be required to borrow funds or sel} assets to fund these distributions. If we fund distributions through
borrowings, then we will have to repay debt using money we could have otherwise used to acquire properties resulting in our ownership of fewer real estate assets. If we sell assets or
use offering proceeds to pay distributions, we also will have fewer investments. Fewer investments may impact our ability te generate future cash flows from operations and, therefore,
reduce your overall return. Although we intend to make distributions sufficient to meet the annual distribution requi and to avoid corp income ion on the earnings that
we distribute, it is possible that we might not always be able to do so.
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Our ownership of our TRSs will be subject to limitations and our ions with our TRSs will cause us to be subject to a 100% penalty tax on certain income or deductions if

those transactions are not conducted on arm’s-length terms,

Overall, no more than 25% of the value of a REIT’s assets may consist of stock or securities of one or more TRSs. In addition, the Internal Revenue Code limits the deductibility
of interest paid or accrued by a TRS to its parent REIT to assure that the TRS is subject to an appropriate level of corporate taxation. The Internal Revenue Code also imposes a 100%
excise tax on certain transactions between a TRS and its parent REIT that are not conducted on an arm’s-length basis. The 100% tax would apply, for example, to the extent that we were
found to have charged our TRS lessees rent in excess of an arm’s length rent. We will monitor the value of our respective investments in our TRSs for the purpose of ensuring
li with TRS hip i ions and will structure our transactions with our TRSs on terms that we believe are arm’s-length to avoid incurring the 100% excise tax described
above. There can be no assumnce however, that we will be able to comply with the 25% TRS limitation or to avoid application of the 100% excise tax.

If the leases of our hotels to the TRS lessees are not respected as true leases for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we will fail to qualify as a REIT.

To qualify as a REIT, we must annually satisfy two gross income tests, under which specified percentages of our gross income must be derived from certain sources, such as
“rents from real property.” Rents paid to our operating partnership by TRS lessees pursuant to the leases of our hotels will constitute substantially all of our gross income. In order for
such rent to qualify as “rents from real property” for purposes of the gross income tests, the leases must be respected as true leases for U.S. federal income tax purposes and not be
treated as service ar joint ventures or some other type of arrangement, If our leases are not respected as true leases for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, we will fail to qualify as a REIT.

If any hotel managers that we may engage do not qualify as “eligible independent contractors,” or if our hotels are not “qualified lodging facilities,” we will fail to qualify as a
REIT.

Rent paid by a lessee that is a “related party tenant” of ours will not be qualifying income for purposes of the two gross income tests applicabie to REITs. An ption is
provided, however, for leases of “qualified lodging facilities™ to a TRS so long as the hmels are managed by an eligible independent contractor” and certain other requirements are
satisfied. We expect to lease all or substantially all of our hotels to TRS lessees, which are disregarded subsidiaries of corporations that are i ded to qualify as TRSs, and to engage
hotel managers that are intended to qualify as “eligible independent contractors.” Among other requirements, in order to qualify as an eligible independent contractor, the hotel
manager must not own, directly or through its stockholders, more than 35% of our outstanding stock, and no person or group of persons can own more than 35% of our outstanding
stock and the stock (or ownership interest) of the hotel manager, taking into account certain ownership attribution rules. The ownership attribution rules that apply for purposes of
these 35% thresholds are complex, and monitoring actual and constructive ownership of our stock by our hotel managers and their owners may not be practical. Accordingly, there can
be no assurance that these ownership levels will not be exceeded.

4

In addition, for a hotel pany to qualify as an eligible indep such pany or a related person must be actively engaged in the trade or
business of operating “qualified lodging facilities” (as defined below) for one or more persons not related to the REIT or its TRSs at each time that such company enters into a hotel
management contract with 2 TRS or its TRS lessee. No assurances can be provided that any hotel managers that we may engage will in fact comply with this requirement in the future.
Failure to comply with this requirement would require us to find other managers for future contracts, and, if we hired a management company without knowiedge of the failure, it could
jeopardize our status as a REIT.

Finally, each property with respect to which our TRS lessees pay rent must be a quahﬁed lodgmg facility.” A “qualified lodging facility” is a hotel, motel, or other

blish more than half of the dwelling units in which are used on a ient basis, incl y ities and facilities, provided that no wagering activities are
conducted at or in connection with such facility by any person who is engaged in the busi of pting wagers and who is legally authorized to engage in such business at or in
connection with such facility. The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code provide only limited guid for making d jons under the i for qualified lodging
facilities, and there can be no that these req will be satisfied.
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Rech ization of sale-le back ions may cause us to lose our REIT status.

We may purchase real propemes and lease them back to the sellers of such propemes. We cannot guarantec that the Internal Revenue Servn:e will not challenge our
h ization of any sale-leaseback tr i In the event that any such sale-k is d and rech ized as a fi ion or Ioan for federal
income tax purposes, deductions for depreciation and cost recovery relating to such property would be disallowed. If a sale-leaseback ion were so rech ized, we might fail
to satisfy the REIT qualification “asset tests” or the “income tests” and, consequently, lose our REIT status effective with the year of recharacterization. Alternatively, the amount of

our REIT taxable income could be recalculated which might also cause us to fail to meet the distribution requirement for a taxable year.

You may have current tax liability on distributions if you elect to reinvest in shares of our common stock.

If you participate in our distribution reinvestment plan, you will be deemed to have received a cash distribution equal to the fair market value of the stock received pursuant to
the plan. For Federal income tax purposes, you will be taxed on this amount in the same manner as if you have received cash; namely, to the extent that we have current or accumulated
earnings and profits, you will have ordinary taxable income. As a result, unless you are a tax-exempt entity, you may have to use funds from other sources to pay your tax liability on the
value of the common stock received.

Sales of our properties at gains are potentially subject to the prohibited transaction tax, which could reduce the return on your investment.

Our ability to dispose of propeny dunng the first few years following acquisition is restricted to a substantial extent as a result of our REIT status. Under applicable provisions
of the Intemal R Code by REITs, we: will be subject to a 100% tax on any gain realized on the sale or other disposition of any property (other
than foreclosure property) we own, du'ectly or through any subsidiary entity, including our operating partnership, but excluding our taxable REIT subsidiaries, that is deemed to be
inventory or property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of trade or business. Whether property is inventory or otherwise held primarily for sale to customers in
the ordinary course of a trade or business depends on the pamcular facts and circumstances surrounding each property. We intend to avoid the 100% prohibited transaction tax by
(1) conducting activities that may otherwise be 1d dt ions through a taxable REIT subsidiary, (2) conducting our operations in such a manner so that no sale or
other disposition of an asset we own, directly or through any subsidiary other than a taxable REIT subsidiary, will be treated as a prohibited ion, or (3) ing certain
dispositions of our properties to comply with certain safe harbors available under the Internal Revenue Code for properties held at least two years. However, no assurance can be given
that any particular property will not be treated as inventory or property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade or business.

In certain circumstances, we may be subject to federal and state taxes as a REIT, which would reduce our cash available for distribution to you.

Even if we maintain our status as a REIT, we may be subject to federal and state taxes. For example, net income from a “prohibited transaction” will be subject to a 100% tax. We
may not be able to make sufficient distributions to avoid excise taxes applicable to REITs. We may also decide to retain income we earn from the sale or other disposition of our real
estate assets and pay income tax directly on such income. We may also be subject to state and local taxes on our income or property, either directly or at the level of the companies
through which we indirectly own our assets. In addition, our TRSs will be subject to federal income tax and applicable state and local taxes on their net income. Any federal or state
taxes we pay will reduce our cash available for distribution to you.

Distributions to 1pt i) may be classified as lated busi) taxable income.
Neither ordinary nor capital gain distributions with respect to our common stock nor gain from the sale of stock should g 1ly i lated busi taxable
income to a tax-exempt investor. However, there are certain exceptions to this rule. In particular:
. part of the income and gain recognized by certain qualified employee pension trusts with respect to our common stock may be treated as unrelated business taxable
income if shares of our stock are predominately held by qualified employee pension trusts, and we are required to rely on a special look-through rule for
purposes of meeting one of the REIT share ownership tests, and we are not operated in a manner to avoid treatment of such income or gain as unrelated business

taxable income;
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. part of the income and gain recognized by a tax exempt investor with respect to our common stock would constitute unrelated business taxable income if the investor

incurs debt to acquire the common stock; and

. part or all of the income or gain recogmzed with respect to our common stock by social clubs, voluntary employee benefit ati )! 1 loyment
benefit trusts and qualified group legal services plans which are exempt from federal income taxation under Sections 501(c)(7), (9), (17), or (20) of the Intcmal Revenue
Code may be treated as unrelated business taxable income.

Complying with the REIT requirements may cause us to forego otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we must continuaily satisfy tests concerning, among other things, the sources of our income, the nature and
diversification of our assets, the amounts we distribute to our stockholders and the ownership of shares of our common stock. We may be required to make distributions to
stockholders at dlsadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily available for distribution. Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to operate
solely on the basis of maximizing profits.

Complying with the REIT requirements may force us 1o lig otherwise

To qualify as a REIT, we must ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter, at least 75% of the value of our assets consists of cash, cash items, government securities and
qualified real estate assets, including shares of stock in other REITS, certain mortgage loans and mortgage backed securities. The remainder of our investment in securities (other than
govemnmental securities and qualified real estate assets) generally cannot include more than 10.0% of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10.0% of the total
value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer. In addition, in general, no more than 5.0% of the value of our assets (other than government securities and qualified real estate
assets) can consist of the securities of any one issuer and no more than 20.0% of the value of our total securities can be represented by securities of one or more taxable REIT
subsidiaries. If we fail to comply with these requirements at the end of any calendar quarter, we must correct such failure within 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter to avoid
losing our REIT status and suffering adverse tax consequences. As a result, we may be required to liquidate otherwise attractive investments.

Liquidation of assets may jeopardize our REIT status.

To qualify as a REIT, we must comply with requirements regardmg our assets and our sources of income. If we are pelled to liquidate our i to satisfy our

obligations to our lenders, we may be unable to comply with these req ly jeopardizing our status as a REIT, or we may be subject to a 100% tax on any resultant gain if
we sell assets that are treated as dealer property or inventory.

Legislative or regulatory action could adversely affect investors.

In recent years, numerous legislative, judicial and administrative changes have been made to the federal income tax laws applicable to REITs. Additional changes to tax laws are
likely to continue to occur in the future, and we cannot assure you that any such changes will not ad ly affect the ion of a stockholder. Any such changes could have an
adverse effect on an investment in shares of our common stock. We urge you to consult with your own tax advisor with respect to the status of legislative, regulatory or administrative
developments and proposals and their potential effect on an investment in shares of our common stock.

The failure of a mezzanine loan to qualify as a real estate asset could adversely affect our ability to qualify as a REIT.

We may acquire ine loans. Ifa ine loan satisfies an Internal Revenue Service safe harbor, it will be treated as a real estate asset for purposes of the REIT asset
tests and interest derived from the mezzanine loan will be treated as qualifying mortgage interest for purposes of the REIT 75% gross income test. Although the Revenue Procedure
provides a safe harbor on which taxpayers may rely, it does not prescribe rules of substantive tax law. We intend to make investments in loans that comply with the various
requirements applicable to our qualification as a REIT. We may, however, acquire mezzanine loans that do not meet all of the requirements of this safe harbor. In the event we own a
mezzanine loan that does not meet the safe harbor, the Internal Revenue Service could challenge such loan's treatment as a real estate asset for purposes of the REIT asset tests and
could challenge treatment of interest on such loan as qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gross income test, and, if such a challenge were sustained, we could fail to qualify as a
REIT.
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The use of TRS lessees will increase our overall tax liability.

Our TRS lessees and any other of our domestic taxable REIT subsidiaries will be subject to federal and state income tax on their taxable income, whxch in the case of our TRS
lessees may consist of revenues from hotet propemes teased by our TRS lessees net of the operating expenses for such properties and rent pay to us. h our
ownership of TRS lessees allows us to participate in the operating income from any hotel properties that may be acquired in addition to receiving rent, that opemmg mcome is fully
subject to income tax. Such taxes could be substantial. The after-tax net income of our TRS lessees or other taxable REIT subsidiaries would be available for distribution to us.

Non U.S. investors may be subject to U.S. federal income taxes on the sale of shares of our common stock if we are unable to qualify as a “domestically controlled” REIT.

A non-U.S. person disposing of a U.S. real property interest, including shares of a U.S. corporation whose assets consist principally of U.S. real property interests, is generally
subject to U.S. federal income tax on the gain recognized on such disposition. A non-U.S. stockholder generally would not be subject to U.S. federal income tax however, on gain from
the disposition of stock in a REIT if the REIT is a “d i lled REIT.” A d ically lled REIT is a REIT in which, at all times during a specified testing period, less
than 50% in value of its shares is held directly or indirectly by non-U.S. holders. We cannot assure you that we will qualify as a domestically controlled REIT. If we were to fail to so
qualify, gain realized by a non-U.S. investor on a sale of our common stock would be subject to U.S. federal income tax unless our common stock was traded on an established securities
market and the non-U.S. investor did not at any time during a specified testing period directly or indirectly own more than 5.0% of the value of our outstanding common stock.

If we were considered to actually or constructively pay a “preferential dividend” to certain of our stockholders, our status as a REIT could be adversely affected.
P i

In order to qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our annual REIT taxable income (excluding net capital gain), determined without regard to
the deduction for dividends paid. In order for distributions to be counted as satisfying the annual distribution requirements for REITs, and to provide us with a REIT-level tax
deduction, the distributions must not be *p ial dividends.” A dividend is not a preferential dividend if the distribution is pro rata among all outstanding shares of stock within a
particular class, and in d: with the p among different classes of stock as set forth in our organizational documents. If the IRS were to take the position that we paid a
preferential dividend, we may be deemed to have failed the 90% distribution test, and our status as a REIT could be terminated if we were unable to cure such failure.

Retirement Plan Risks

dividual

There are special considerations for pension or profit- sharmg or 401(k) plans, heallh or welfare plans or i whose assets are being invested in our
common stock due to i under the Empl Income ty Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”) and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(“Internal Revenue Code”) . Furthermore, a person acting on behalf of a plan not subjecl to ERISA may be subject to similar penalties under applicable federal, state, local, or
non-U.S. law by reason of purchasing our stock.

If you are investing the assets of a pension, profit sharing or 401(k) plan, health or welfare plan, or an IRA, or other plan or arrangement subject to ERISA or Section 4975 of the
Internal Revenue Code in us, you should consider:

. whether your investment is consistent with the applicable provisions of ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code;

. whether your i is made in d: with the d and instruments goveming your plan, IRA, or other ar including the i policy;
. whether your investment satisfies the prudence, diversi ion, and other applicable fiduciary requi in Section 404(a) of ERISA;

. whether your investment will impair the liquidity of the plan, IRA, or other arrangement;
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. whether your i will prod Tated busi taxable income, referred to as UBT] and as defined in Sections 511 through 514 of the Internal Revenue Code,

to the plan; and

. your need to value the assets of the plan annually.

You should consider whether your investment in us will cause some or all of our assets to be d assets of an employee benefit plan, IRA, or other arrangement. We do
not believe that under ERISA and U.S. Department of Labor regulations currently in effect that our assets would be treated as "plan assets” for purposes of ERISA. However, if our
assets were considered to be plan assets, transactions involving our assets would be subject to ERISA and Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code and some of the transactions we
have entered into with our advisor and its affiliates could be idered "prohibited ions,” under ERISA or the Internal Revenue Code. If such transactions were considered
“prohibited transactions,” our advisor and its affiliates could be subject to liabilities and excise taxes or penalties. In addition, our officers and directors, Moody National Advisors 1,
LLC and its affiliates could be deemed to be fiduciaries under ERISA, subject to other conditions, restrictions and prohibitions under Part 4 of Title I of ERISA and those serving as
fiduciaries of plans i ing in us may be idered to have improperly delegated fiduciary duties to us. Additionally, other transactions with "parties-in-interest” or "disquatified
persons” with respect to an investing plan might be prohibited under ERISA, the Internal Revenue Code or other governing authority in the case of a government plan. Therefore, we
would be operating under a burd: g y regime that could limit or restrict investments we can make or our management of our real estate assets. Even if our assets are not
considered to be plan assets, a prohibited transaction conld occur if we or any of our affiliates is a fiduciary (within the meaning of ERISA) with respect to an employee benefit plan
purchasing shares and, therefore, in the event any such persons are fiduciaries (within the meaning of ERISA) of your plan or IRA, you should not purchase shares unless an
administrative or statutory exemption applies to your purchase.

Failure to satisfy the fiduciary standards of conduct and other requirements of ERISA, the Internal Revenue Code, or other applicable statutory or common law may result in
the imposition of civil (and criminal, if the violation was willful) penalties, and can subject the fiduciary to equitable remedies. In addition, if an investment in our common stock
constitutes a prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Intemnal Revenue Code, the fiduciary that authorized or directed the investment may be subject to the imposition of excise taxes
with respect to the amount invested. Furthermore, to the extent that the assets of a plan or arrangement not subject to the fiduciary provisions of ERISA (for example, governmental
plans, non-electing church plans, and foreign plans) will be used to purchase our stock, such plans should ider the impact of applicable federal, state, local, or non-U.S. law on the
decision to make such purchase.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
We have no unresolved staff comments.
ITEM 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2012, we owned the Woodlands property. For more information on the Woodlands property, see Item 1, “Business— Investment Portfolio-Woodlands
Property.”

Our principal executive offices are located at 6363 Woodway Drive, Suite 110, Houston, Texas, 77057. Our telephone number, general facsimile number and website address are
(713) 977-7500, (713) 977-750S and http://www.moodynationalreit.com, respectively.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are party to legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business. Management is not aware of any pending or contemplated Jegal
proceedings the outcome of which is or would be reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART I
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Stockholder Information

As of March 19, 2013, we had approximately 1,582,988 shares of our common stock outstanding held by a total of approximately 428 stockholders. The number of stockholders
is based on the records of DST Systems, Inc., who serves as our transfer agent.

Market Information

Our shares of common stock are not currently listed on a national securities exchange or any over-the-counter market. We do not expect our shares to become listed in the near
future, and they may not become listed at all. Consequently, there is the risk that our stockholders may not be able to sell their shares at a time or price acceptable to them. We presently
intend, but are not ired, to complete a t ion providing liquidity for our stockhotders within four to six years from the termination of our initial public offering, which occurred
on October 12, 2012. Our charter does not require our board of directors to pursue a liquidity event at any particular time, or at all. However, we expect that our board of directors, in the
exercise of its fiduciary duty to our stockholders, will determine to pursue a liquidity event when it believes that then-current market conditions are favorable for a liquidity event and
that such a transaction is in the best interests of our stockholders. A liquidity event could include (1) the sale of all or substantially ail of our assets either on a portfolio basis or
individually followed by a liquidation, (2) a merger or another transaction approved by our board of directors in which our stockholders will receive cash or shares of a publicly traded
company or (3) a listing of our shares on a national securities exchange. There can be no assurance as to when a suitable transaction will be available.

To assist the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc., or FINRA, members and their associated persons that participate in our public offering, we disclose in each annual
report distributed to our stockholders an estimated per share value of our common stock, the method by which the estimated per share value was developed, and the date of the data
used to develop the estimated per share value. In addition, our advisor will prepare annual statements of the estimated per share value to assist fiduciaries of retirement plans subject to
the annual reporting requirements of ERISA in the preparation of their reports relating to an investment in our shares. For these purposes, our advisor has estimated the per share value
of our common stock to be $10.00 per share as of December 31, 2012. The basis for this valuation is the fact that the current public offering price for our shares of common stock in our
primary offering is $10.00 per share (not taking into account purchase price discounts for certain categories of purchasers).

Although this estimated per share value represents the most recent price at which most investors are willing to purchase shares of our common stock in our primary offering,
this reported per share value is likely to differ from the price at which a stockholder could resetl his or her shares of our common stock because: (1) there is no public trading market for
our shares at this time; (2) the estimated per share value does not reflect, and is not derived from, the fair market value of our interest in our assets, nor does it represent the amount of
net proceeds that would result from an immediate liquidation of those assets; (3) the estimated per share value does not take into account how market fluctuations affect the value of our
investments; and (4) the estimated per share value does not take into account how devel related to individual assets may have increased or decreased the value of our portfolio.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Offering Proceeds From Registered Securities

On April 15, 2009, our Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-150612), registering a public offering of up to $1,100,000,000 in shares of our common stock, was
declared effective by the SEC and we commenced our initial public offering. In our initial public offering we offered up to $1,000,000,000 in shares of our common stock to the public at
$10.00 per share and up to $100,000,000 in shares of our common stock to our stockholders pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan at $9.50 per share. On October 12, 2012, our
Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-179521) registering our follow-on public offering of up to $1,000,000,000 in shares of our common stock, was declared effective by the
SEC and our initial public offering ically terminated. In our foll offering we are offering up to $900,000,000 in shares of our common stock to the public at $10.00 per share
and up to $100,000,000 in shares of our stock to our stockholders p to our distribution reinvestment plan at $9.50 per share.

34




Filer: Moody National Form Type: 10-K Period: 12/31/12 Job Number: q13-00480 Rev: -NOT DEFINED- Sequence: 38
Submission: Document Name: mnrt-10k_123112.htm Saved: Printed: 3/29/2013 16:11:35
631@quality Description: Annual Report -NOT DEFINED- Created using EDGARizerAgent

As of December 31, 2012, we had accepted investors” subscriptions for, and issued, £,317,307 shares of our common stock in our initial public offering and our follow-on
offering, including 36,065 shares issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan, resulting in gross offering proceeds of approximately $12,812,414.

As of December 31, 2012, we had incurred selling issions, dealer fees and ization and other offering costs in our initial public offering and our follow-on
offering in the amounts set forth in the tables below. Moody Securities, LLC, our dealer manager, reallowed all of the selling commissions and a portion of the dealer manager fees to
participating broker-dealers.

Initial Public Offering:

Amount Esnmated/Actunl

Through December 31, 2012, the net offering proceeds to us from our initial public offering and our follow-on offering, after deducting the total expenses incurred as described
above, were approximately $10,809,159, excluding $342,620 in offering proceeds from shares of our commen stock issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan. For the year
ended December 31, 2012, the ratio of the cost of raising capital to capital raised was approximately 15%.

We intend to use substantially all of the net proceeds from our public offerings to invest in a portfolio of real properties, real estate securities and debt-related investments. As
of December 31,2012, we had used $2,350,000 of the net proceeds from our initial public offering and debt financing to purchase our interest in the Residence Inn property (which was
subsequently sold on August 23, 2012); $1,275,919 of the net proceeds from our initial public uffenng and debt ﬁnancmg to purchase our interest in the Hyatt Place note; and $5,088,578
of the net proceeds from our initial public offering and follow-on offering and debt financing to p the V perty. As of D ber 31,2012, we had paid $520,675 of
acquisition expenses to third parties.

On August 2012, in connection with the death of a stockholder, we redeemed 6,000 shares of our common stock at the original purchase price of $10.00 per share, for an
aggregate redemption price of $60,000. We have received no other requests to redeem shares of our common stock pursuant to our share redemption program. For a discussion of our
share redemption prog see “Share Redemption Program” below.

Under our independent di ion plan, each of our current independent directors was entitled to receive 5,000 shares of restricted common stock when we raised
the minimum offering amount of $2,000,000 in our initial public offering. On May 18, 2010, we raised the minimum offering amount of $2,000,000 in our initial public offering and each of
our three independent directors was granted 5,000 shares of restricted stock p to our independent directors ion plan in a private transaction exempt from registration
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, resulting in an issuance of an aggregate of 15,000 shares of restricted stock. On August 24, 2011, the date of the 2011 annual meeting of
our stockholders, each of our three independent directors received an additional grant of 2,500 shares upon their reelection to our board of di Iting in an i of 7,500
additional shares of restricted sxock On February 29, 2012, Lawrence S. Jones resigned as a member of our board of directors and forfeited 1,250 unvested shares of restricted stock
granted under the independ: p ion plan, leaving a balance of 21,250 shares issued pursuant to the plan as of March 31, 2012. On May 9, 2012, a new independent
director, Charles L. Horn, was clected to the board of directors and was issued 5,000 shares. On August 14, 2012, the date of the 2012 annual meeting of our stockholders, each of our
three independent directors received an additional grant of 2,500 shares upon their reelection to our board of directors, resultmg inan 1ssuance of 7,500 addmonal shares of restncted
stock in the aggregate. As of December 31, 2012, a total of 33, 750 shares of restricted stock had been issued by us to our ind d p to our ind
compensation plan. For more information on our i d ion plan, see Item 11, “Executive Comp ion—Comp ion of our Di
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Share Redemption Program

Our share redemption program may provide a limited opportunity for our stockholdets to have their shares of common stock redeemed, subject to certain restrictions and
limitations, at a price equal to or at a discount from the current offering price per share for the shares being redeemed. The discount will vary based upon the length of time that a
stockholder has held the shares of our common stock subject to redemption, as described in the following table:

Redemption Price as a

Percentage of Current
Share Purchase Anniversary Offerin;
Less than 1 _No Redemp n Allowed
oot/ : - w%
2 years 95.0%
3years . . 2%
4 years and longer 100.0%
Following the conclusion of our public offering, shares of stock will be red d, subject to certain restrictions and limitations, at a price equal to, or at a discount

from, a price based upon the per-share net asset value and other factors that our board of directors deems relevant, inctuding the then-current reinvestment price under our distribution
reinvestment plan and general market conditions.

Unless the shares are being redeemed in connection with a stockholder’s death or qualifying disability, we may not redeem shares unless the redeeming stockholder has held
the shares for one year. Redemption requests made within two years of death or “qualifying disability” of a stockholder will be redeemed at a price equal to the then-current public
offering price. Our board of directors, in its sole discretion, will make the determination of whether a stockholder has a qualifying disability after receiving written notice from the
stockholder. Generally, our board of directors will consider a stockholder to have a qualifying disability ifit is (1) unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any
medically determinable physwal or mental zmpau-ment which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months, or (2) is, by
reason of any medically d ble ph 1 or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12
months, recelvmg income replacemenl benefits for a period of not less than three months under an accident and health plan covering employees of the kholder’s employees. We
must receive written notice within 180 days after such stockholder’s qualifying disability.

We are not obligated to redeem shares of our common stock under the share redemption program. Our board of directors may, in its sole discretion, accept or reject any share
redemption request made by any stockholder at any time. If our board of directors accepts share redemptions, the number of shares to be redt d during any dar year is limited to
(1) 5.0% of the weighted average number of shares of our common stock outstanding during the prior calendar year and (2) those that could be funded from the net proceeds from the
sale of shares under our distribution reinvestment plan in the prior calendar year plus such additional funds as may be reserved for that purpose by our board of directors; provided,
however that the above volume limitations shall not apply to redemptions requested within two years after the death of stockholder.

To the extent we determine to accept share redemption requests from our stockholders, redemption of shares of our common stock will be made quarterly upon written request
to us at least 15 days prior to the end of the applicable quarter. Red ion will be h d approxi ly 30 days following the end of the applicable quarter, which we refer to

as the “redemption date.” Stockholders may withdraw their redemption request at any time up to three business days prior to the redemption date.

Qur board of directors may, in its sole discretion, amend, suspend, or terminate the share redemption program at any time if it determines that the funds available to fund the

share redemption program are needed for other business or operational purp or that di sion or termination of the share redemption program is in the best interest
of our stockholders. If our board of directors decides to amend, suspend or i the share redemption program, we will provide stockholders with no less than 30 days’ prior
written notice. Therefore, our stockholders may not have the opportunity to make a redemption request prior to any potential termination of our share red:
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Distribution Information

On May 20, 2010, our board of directors authorized and declared a cash distribution to our stockholders contingent upon the closing of our acquisition of an indirect interest in
the Residence Inn property, which occurred on May 27, 2010. The distribution (1) accrues daily to our stockholders of record as of the close of business on each day; (2) is payable in
cumulative amounts on or before the 15th day of each calendar month; and (3) is caiculated at a rate of $0.002192 per share of our common stock per day, which, if paid each day over a
365-day period, is equivalent to an 8.0% lized distribution rate based on a purchase price of $10.00 per share of our common stock.

The following table summarizes distributions paid in cash and pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012.

Distribution Paid
Cash Pursuant to DRIP Total Amount of
Period (1) Dlstnbuhon (1) M2) Distribution (1)
: o : = e

(1) Distributions are paid on a monthly basis. Distributions for ali record dates of a given month are paid approximately 15 days following the end of such month.
(2) Amount of distributions paid in shares of common stock pursuant to the distribution reinvestment plan.,

We pald $326, 985 in aggregate distributions in the year ended December 31, 2011, which was comprised of $208,664 in cash distributions and $118,321 in shares issued

to our 1 plan. We paid $708,025 in aggregate distributions for the year ended December 31, 2012, which was comprised of $531,002 in cash distributions
and $177,023 shares issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan. For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012, we had cash provided by operating activities of $54,942 and
$547,671, respectively, and our funds from operations were $185,740 and $(324,661), respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2012, approximately 77% of distributions were paid
from cash provided by operating activities and the remaining approximately 23% was paid from offering proceeds. For the year ended DA ber 31,2011, i 1y 17% of
distributions were paid from cash prowded by operating activities and the approxlmately 83% amount was paid from offering proceeds. For more mfon'nanon on how we calculate funds
from operations and reconciliation to net income (loss), see Item 7, “M ’s Di ion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations— Funds from Operations
and Modified Funds from Operations.”

The tax composition of our distributions declared for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012 was as follows:

éapiml Gain . 00‘%{

Total 100 0% 100.0%
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ITEM 6, Selected Financial Data

Selected Financial Data
The following selected financial data as of D ber 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 and for the years ended D:cembcr 31 2012, 201 1, 2010, 2009 and the period from

January 15, 2008 (date of inception) through December 31, 2008 should be read in 1 with the p and related notes thereto and
Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Our hlstoncal results are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.

As of December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008

Selected Fis ial Data 2012

Period from
January 15,
2008 (date of
inception)
through
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

S

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DAT.
Tote

ER DA’
ITEM 7. Manag ’s Di ion and Analysis of Fi) ial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the “Selected Financial Data” above and our panying lidated financial and

the notes thereto included in this Annual Report. Also see “Forward Looking Statements” preceding Part 1.
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Overview

We were formed as a Maryland corporation on January 15, 2008, to invest in a diversified portfolio of real estate investments. We will seek to acquire primarily hotel properties
and, 1o a lesser extent, multifamily, office, retail and industrial properties as well as real estate securities and debt-related i We are dependent upon p ds received from
the sale of shares of our common stock in our continuous public offering and any indebtedness that we may incur in order to conduct our proposed real estate investment activities.

On May 2, 2008, we filed a registration statement on Form S-11 with the SEC to offer a maximum of $1,000,000,000 in shares of our common stock to the public in our primary
offering and $100,000,000 in shares of our common stock to our stockholders pursnant to our distribution reinvestment plan. On April 15, 2009, the SEC declared our registration
statement effective and we commenced our initial public offering. On February 8, 2012, we were required to temporarily suspend our initial public offering due to the fact our previous
auditors, Pannell Kerr Forster of Texas, P.C., notified us that they could not be considered independent for the 2009, 2010 and 2011 fiscal years. We subsequemly engaged Frazier &
Deeter, LLC to audit our 2009, 2010 and 2011 lidated financial and to review our 2011 interim lidated financial d our initial public
offering on March 13, 2012.

On October 12, 2012, we terminated our initial public offering and commenced our follow-on public offering (discussed below). As of the termination of our initial public
offering on October 12, 2012, we had accepted subscriptions for, and issued, 1,126,253 shares of our common stock in our initial public offering, including 29,580 shares of our common
stock pursuant to our distribution rei plan, Iting in offering p ds of $10,966,713.

Prior to the termination of our initial public offering, on February 14, 2012, we filed a registration statement on Form S-11 with the SEC to register a follow-on public offering of
up to $1,000,000,000 in shares of our common stock. In our follow-on offering we are offering up to $900,000,000 in shares of our common stock to the public and up to $100,000,000 in
shares of our common stock to our stockholders pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan. On October 12, 2012, our follow-on offering was declared effective by the SEC and we
terminated our initial public offering and commenced our follow-on offering. As of December 31, 2012, we had accepted investors” subscriptions for, and issued, 1,317,307 shares of our
common stock in our initial public offering and follow-on offering, including 36,065 shares of our common stock issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan, resulting in gross
offering proceeds of $12,812,414.

We are offering shares to the public in the follow-on offering at a price of $10.00 per share, with di ilable for certain purch and to our stockholders pursuant to
our distribution reinvestment plan at a price of $9.50 per share. Qur board of directors may change the price at which we offer shares to the public in our follow-on offering from time to
time during the follow-on offering, but not more frequently than quarterly, to reflect changes in our esti d per-share net asset value and other factors our board of directors deems

relevant.

We intend to use sut Ily all of the net p ds from our public offerings to invest in a diversified portfolio of real properties, real estate securities and debt-related
investments. We anticipate that our portfolio will consist primarily of hotel properties located in the United States and Canada that we own exclusively or in joint ventures or other co-
ownership arrangements with other persons. We may also invest in other property types consisting of multifamily, office, retail and industrial assets located in the United States and
Canada as well as securities of real estate companies and debt-related investments. We may also make opportunistic investments in properties that may be under-developed or newly
constructed and in properties that we believe are undervalued.

As of December 31, 2012, our portfolio consisted of two investments: (1) a 74.5% joint venture interest in the Hyatt Place note, a mortgage note secured by a hotel property
located in Grapevine, Texas commonly known as Hyatt Place Grapevine hotel; and (2) the Woodlands property, a 91 room hotel situated on approximately 216,849 square foot (4.98 acre)
parcel of land in The Woodlands, Texas.

We believe that we have sufficient capital to meet our existing debt service and other operating obligations for the next year and that we have adequate resources to fund our
cash needs until we reach proﬁtable operanons However our operations are subject to a variety of risks, mcludmg, but not limited to, our ability to raise additional funds in our

continuous public offering, changes in national diti the restricted availability of f g, ch ind phic trends and interest rates, declining real estate

Vi ions and d on rental rates. As a result of these uncertainties, there can be no assurance that we will meet our investment objectives or that the risks described
above will not have an adverse effect on our properties or results of operations.

We made an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code commencing with the taxable year ended December 31, 2011. We
previously determined not to make an election to qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code because we had a net operating loss for the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2010 and had fewer than 100 stockholders as of December 31, 2009 and 2010.
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As a REIT, we generally are not subject to federal income tax on income that we distribute to our stockholders. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year after the taxable
year in which we initially elect to be taxed as a REIT, we will be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and will not be permitted to qualify for
treatment as a REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following the year in which our qualification is denied. Failing to qualify as a REIT could materially and adversely
affect our net income.

Review of our Investment Policies

Our board of di including our ind: dent di has reviewed our investment policies as described in this Annual Report and determined that such policies are in
the best i of our kholders b: : (1) such policies increase the likelihood that we will be able to acquire a diversified portfolio of income producing properties, thereby
reducing risk in our portfolio; (2) our executive officers and directors and the affiliates of our advisor have expertise with the type of real estate investments we seek; and (3) borrowings
should enable us to purchase assets and eam rental income more quickly, thereby increasing the likelihood of generating income for our stockholders and preserving stockholder
capital.

Market Qutlook

The recent recession in the United States has impacted the real estate and credit markets, primarily in the form of escalating default rates on mortgages, declining home values
and i ing inventory nati ide. The constraints on available credit have resulted in illiquidity and volatility in the markets for corporate bonds, asset-backed securities and
commercial real estate bonds and loans. Economic conditions have also negatively impacted the commercial real estate sector, resulting in lower occupancy, lower rental rates and
declining values. The economy in the United States is currently improving; b , there is no that ic conditions will continue to improve or will not worsen in the
future. We believe that as the economic environment improves, we will have unique investment opportunities, particularly in the hospitality sector. We believe that the hospitality
sector has the greatest supply-demand imbalance among all real estate asset classes at this time. As the economy continues to improve, room rates for hotels should increase due to the
fact that increased demand for hotel rooms 1s generally correlated with growth in the U.S. gross domestic product (GDP). Demand growth, combined with the current undersupply of
hotel rooms, should result in improved ft Is in the hospitality space, particularly upward pressure on room rates. The ability of hotels to adjust room rates quickly should allow
hotel property owners to take advantage of this anticipated trend.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We  real estate operations with the isition of the Resid Inn propeny on May 27 2010. Our principal demand for funds will be for the acquisition of real
estate assets, the payment of operating expenses, principal and interest pay on our d and the pay of distributions to our stockholders. Over time, we
intend to generally fund our cash needs for items other than asset acquisitions from operations. Our cash needs for acquisitions and investments will be funded primarily from the sale
of shares of our stock in our i public offering, including those offered for sale through our distribution reinvestment plan, and through the assumption and

origination of debt.

There may be a delay between the sale of shares of our common stock and our purchase of assets, which could result in a delay in the benefits to our stockholders, if any, of

Tetums g d from our i ions. Our advisor, subject to the ight of our ittee and board of directors, will evaluate potenlxal acquisitions and will
engage m negotiations with sellers and Ienders on our behalf. If necessary, we may use financings or other sources of capital in the event of ifi capital exp

‘We may, but are not required to, establish working capital reserves from offering proceeds, out of cash flow generated by our real estate assets or out of proceeds from the sale
of our real estate assets. We do not anticipate establishing a general working capital reserve; however, we may establish working capital reserves with respect to particular investments.

We also may, but are not required to, establish reserves out of cash flow generated by our real estate assets or out of net sale proceeds in non-liquidating sale i Working
capital reserves are typically utilized to fund tenant improvements, leasing commissions and major capital expenditures. Our lenders also may require working capital reserves.

To the extent that any working capital reserve we establish is insufficient to satisfy our cash requirements, additional funds may be provided from cash generated from
operations or through short-term borrowing. In addition, subject to certain limitations, we may incur indebtedness in connection with the acquisition of any | real estate asset, refinance
the debt thereon, arrange for the leveraging of any previously unfinanced property or reinvest the proceeds of f ing or ref ing in additional prop
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Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $387,070, which was primarily from real estate operations and net interest income. Net cash
provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2011 was $54,942.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $2,595,923, which was comprised of net proceeds from the sale of real estate of $3,223,480, and
repayments of a mortgage note receivable of $187,033 offset by an increase in restricted cash of $66 1,243 and additions to hotel properties of $5,345,193. Net cash used in investing
activities for the year ended December 31, 2011 was $1,374,545.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $3,852,064, consisting primarily of offering proceeds of $7,670,174, which was used to fund
$1,658,879 in offering costs, $531,002 for the payment of distributions, $534,217 for repayments of notes payable, and $956,598 for distributions to noncontrolling interest in joint
venture. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2011 was $1,464,350.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of December 31, 2012, we had cash on hand of $2,710,101.

Debt

Our aggregatet ings, secured and , are reviewed by our board of directors at least quarterly. Under our charter, we are prohibited from borrowing in excess of
300% of the value of our net assets. “Net assets” for purposes of this calculation is defined to be our total assets (other than intangibles), valued at cost prior to deducting depreciation,
reserves for bad debts and other non-cash reserves, less total liabilities. The preceding calculation is g lly expected to approximate 75% of the aggregate cost of our assets before
non-cash reserves and depreciation. However, we may temporarily borrow in excess of these amounts if such excess is approved by a majority of our independent directors and
disclosed to our stockholders in our next quarterly report, along with an explnnanon for such excess. As of December 31, 2012, our debt levels did not exceed 300% of the value of our

assets.

Asof Deccmber 3] 201[ our debt-to net assets ratio ded 300%. Our independent directors app: d such excess debt due to the fact that our board of directors believed
di was adeq 1y secured and we were able to service our outstanding indebtedness under the terms of our financing agreements.

that our

Asof D ber 31, 2012, our ding indebted: totaled $17,904,671, which consisted of $11,003,658 outstanding on the fi ing obtained in ion with the
acquisition of the Hyatt Place note, and $6,901,013 outstanding on the Woodlands loan, each described below.

A isition Note. In ion with the acquisition of the Hyatt Place note, on the closing date and effective as of May 5, 2011, MNHP Note Holder, LLC, the note joint
venture, bom)wed $11,483,280 from Patriot Bank, pursuant to a mortgage note, or the acquisition note, and the C ia} Loan A or the loan by and among
Patriot Bank, the note joint venture, Moody National Mortgage, Moody National Management L.P., or Moody National Management, an affiliate of our sponsor, Moody National
Realty Company, L.P., or Moody National Realty, an affiliate of our sponsor, and Brett C. Moody.
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The entire unpaid principal balance of the acquisition note and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon is due and payable in full on May 5, 2018, or the acquisition note
‘maturity date. The acquisition note accrued interest at a fixed rate of 3.00% per annum through August 21, 2012, or the first change date. For the period from the first change date
through August 21, 2015, or the second change date, the acquisition note bears interest at a fixed rate of 3.0% which is equal to (1) the variable interest rate per annum published in The
Wall Street Journal as the “Prime Rate” for the U.S., or the prime rate, in effect as of the first change date, minus (2) 0.25%, provided that in no event will the interest rate exceed the
maximum interest rate permitted by applicable law, or the maximum rate. For the period from the second change date through the acquisition note maturity date, the acquisition note will
bear interest at a fixed rate equal to (1) the prime rate in effect as of the second change date, minus (2) 0.25%, provided that in no event will the interest rate exceed the maximum rate. The
Prime Rate at December 31, 2012 was 3.25%. All amounts of principal and interest due under the acquisition note that are more than ten days past due will bear interest at a rate equal to
the applicable interest rate due under the acquisition note for such amounts plus 5.0%. The note joint venture may prepay the acquisition note, in whole or in part, at any time without
penalty or premium.

The performance of the obligations of the note joint venture under the acquisition note is secured by a Collateral Assignment of Note and Liens by and between the note joint
venture and Patriot Bank, or the collateral assignment, pursuant to which the note joint venture pledged and collaterally assigned to Patriot Bank, and granted Patriot Bank a security
interest in, all of note joint venture’s right, title and interest in and to, among other items, (1) the Hyatt Place note and all indebtedness evidenced thereby, (2) the Deed of Trust, Security

g and Fi i by the borrower for the benefit of Patriot Bank with respect to the Hyatt Place property, (3) all other loan documents relating to the Hyatt Place
note, and (4) all right, title, interest and claims of the note joint venture as the owner of the Hyatt Place note, including any and ali payments of any kind payable to the note joint
venture by the borrower by reason of the note joint venture’s ownership of the Hyatt Place note. Pursuant to the collateral assignment, upon any event of default under the loan

or the coll 1 all due and payable by the trust under the Hyatt Place note will be due and payable to Patriot Bank.
In addition, (1) Moody National Mortgage, Moody National Management and Moody National Realty have each ditionally and ir bly d the prompt
payment when due of all of the note joint venture’s obligations under the isition note and the collateral assignment and (2) Brett C. Moody has provided a limited guaranty of the

note joint venture’s obligations under the acquisition note and the collateral assignment.

Woodlands Loan. In ion with the acquisition of the Woodlands property by Moody National Wood-Hou Holding, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of our operating
partnership, or Moody Holding, Moody Holding assumed, as modified, an existing mortgage loan secured by the Woodlands property with an original principal amount of $7,500,000, or
the Woodlands loan, from U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial
Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9, or the lender. As of the closing date, the Woodlands loan had an outstanding principle balance of $6,911,422.

The entire unpaid principal balance of the Woodlands loan and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon is due and payable in full on December 6, 2016. Interest on the
outstanding principal balance of the Woodlands loan accrues at a per annum rate equal to 6.0%. In the event that, and so long as, any event of default has occurred and is continuing
under the Woodlands loan, the outstanding principal balance of the Wood!lands loan and any unpaid interest thereon will bear interest at 2 per annum rate equal to the lesser of (1) the
highest interest rate permitted by applicable law and (2)11.0%. In addition, in the event that any payment due under the Woodlands loan is not made when due, Moody Holding will pay
a late charge in an amount equal to 5.0% of the amount of the overdue payment. Moody Holding may, upon at least thirty days prior written notice to the lender, prepay the Woodlands
loan in full without penalty at any time following the date that is three months prior to the maturity date. In certain circumstances a prepayment of the Woodlands loan will be subject to
a prepayment penalty din d with the promissory note evidencing the Woodlands loan. Principal payments on the Woodlands loan of $123,201, $130,908, $139,097
and $6,507,807 are due for the years 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively. As of December 31, 2012, there was $6,901,013 outstanding on the Woodlands loan.

The performance of the obligations of Moody Holding under the Woodlands loan are secured by, among other things, (1) 2 security interest in the Woodlands property and
other collateral granted to lender by Moody Holding pursuant to a Deed of Trust and Security Agreement, (2) a security interest in all personal property, accounts, inventory and other
collateral related to the operation of the Woodlands property by Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC, or the Master Tenant, pursuant to a Security Agreement, (3) an assignment of
the leases and rents of the Woodlands property in favor of the lender by each of Moody Holding and Master Tenant, (4) an assignment of all of Master Tenant’s right, title and interest
in and to the management agreement with respect to the Woodlands property and the subordination of all of the property manager's rights and interests with respect to the Woodlands
property to the liens and interests of the lender p to an Assi and Subordination of M: Agl and (5) an at guaranty to pay, and agreement to
indernnify the lender with respect to, certain of the obligations and liabilities of Moody Holding under the Woodlands loan granted to the lender, on a joint and several basis, by Brett C.
Moody, us and our operating partnership.
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C 1C . and Conti "
The following is a summary of our 1 obligations as of Dx ber 31, 2012:

Payments Due By Period
Total 2013 2014-2015 2016-2017 Thereafter

i 9 e
103,665

Contracmal Obli anons

204671 a92is 3090
3,270,047 746,554 149,000

ohig A
Imerest paymems on outstanding debt obllgatmns(Z)
Eurchiase abligations( _

Total ' $ 21,174,718 § 1,196,046 s 2,392,090 ) $ 8,213,635 § 9,372,947
H A ts include principal p only.
(2) Projected interest payments are based on the ding principal and weighted: ge interest rates at December 31, 2012.

(3) Purchase obligations were excluded from 1 obligati as there were no bmdmg h bligations as of D ber 31, 2012.

Our organization and offering costs are incurred by our advisor on our behalf. Pursuant to our advisory agreement with our advisor, we are obligated to reimburse our advisor
or its affiliates, as applicable, for organization and offering costs incurred by our advisor on our behalf' assocmted with each of our public offerings, but only to the extent that such

reimbursements do not exceed actual expenses incurred by our advisor and would not cause sales ions, the dealer ger fee and other organization and offering costs borne
by us in a public offering to exceed 15.0% of gross offering proceeds from the sale of our shares in such public offering as of the date of reimbursement. Our advisor is obligated to
reimburse us to the extent organization and offering costs (including sales ions and dealer fees) i d by us in a public offering exceed 15.0% of the gross offering

proceeds from the sale of our shares of common stock in a public offering. As of December 31, 2012, total offering costs were $4,132,374 for the initial public offering and $746,040 for the
follow-on offering. Organization costs were $28,083 for the initial public offering. Offering costs of $946,944 and $184,570 were incurred directly by us for the initial public offering and
foll offering, respectively. We have reimt our advisor for $28,083 in organization costs and $742,134 in offering costs for the initial public offering and $583,324 in offering
costs for the follow-on offering. We have a $481,801 receivable from our advisor for offering costs, which is recorded as an offset to additional paid-in capital. The remaining $2,903,243
in offering costs is not our lability because such costs exceed the 15% limit described above.

We will reimburse our advisor for all operating expenses paid or incurred by our advisor in connection with the services provided to us, subject to the limitation that we will not
reimburse our advisor for any amount by which our operating exp (including the asset fee) at the end of the four preceding fiscal quarters exceeds the greater of: (1)
2% of our average invested assets, or (2) 25% of our net income determined without reduction for any additions to reserves for depreciation, bad debts or other similar non-cash
reserves and excluding any gain from the sale of our assets for that period, or the 2%/25% limitation. Notwithstanding the above, we may reimburse our advisor for operating expenses
in excess of this limitation if a majority of the independent directors determines that such excess expenses are justified based on unusual and non-recurring factors. For the four fiscal
quarters ended December 31, 2012, our total operating expenses were $970,563, which included $138,278 in operating expenses incurred directly by us and $832,285 incurred by our
advisor on our behalf. Of the $923,588 in total operating expenses incurred during the four fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012, $599,681 exceeded the 2%/25% Limitation and is not
our obligation. Additionally, our advisor has incurred $2,490,553 in operating expenses on our behalf prior to the four fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012. Subject to a future
determination by the board of directors, this amount is not reimbursable to our advisor nor our obligation.

Our advisor waived all expenses reimbursable to our advisor for the seven fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012 to the extent such expenses had not been previously
relmbursed to our advisor. Qur advisor further acknowledged that all such expenses incurred directly by us during this waiver period shall be paid by our advisor on our behalf. Total
waived or d by our advisor were $1,243,824 as of December 31, 2012.
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Results of Operations

We commenced operations on May 27, 2010 in connection with our acquisition of our interest in the Resid Inn property. As of D ber 31,2011, we owned the joint
venture interest in the Residence Inn property and the Hyatt Place note. As of December 31, 2012, we owned the joint venture mterests in the Hyan Place note and the Woodlands
property. Because we acquired the Hyatt Place note on June 3, 2011, sold the Residence Inn property on August 23, 2012 and acquired the Woodl prop on N ber 8, 2012,
our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012 are not directly comparable to those for the year ended December 31, 2011. In general, we expect that our income and
expenses related to our portfolio will increase in future periods as a result of anticipated future acquisitions of real estate and real estate-related investments.

4

Asa resuh of the sale of the Residence Inn property, the and exp of the Resi Inn propeny are included in income (loss) from discontinued operations in
the ying of operations for all periods p d and are di d below sep ly.

Comparison of the year ended December 31, 2012 versus the year ended December 31, 2011

Revenue

Hotel revenue was $436,652 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and was related to revenue from the Woodlands property. Interest income from real estate loan receivable
related to the Hyatt Place note increased to $658,268 for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $383,413 for the year ended December 31, 2011 due to the fact that we owned the Hyatt

Place note during the entire 2012 reporting period. We expect that room revenue, other hotel revenue and total revenue will each increase in future periods as a result of anticipated
future acquisitions of real estate assets and owning the Woodlands property for the entire reporting period.

Hotel Operating Expenses

Hotel operating expenses were $274,322 for the year ended December 31, 2012. We expect hotel operating expenses to increase in future periods as a result of anticipated future
acquisitions and owning the Woodlands property for the entire reporting period.

Property Taxes, Insurance and Other

Property taxes, insurance and other were $29,615 for the year ended December 31, 2012. We expect this amount to increase in future periods as a result of anticipated future
acquisitions and owning the Woodlands property for the entire reporting period.

D, Py

2p and

Depreciation and amortization expense was $58,650 for the year ended December 31, 2012. We expect this amount to increase in future periods as a result of anticipated future
acquisitions and owning the Woodlands property for the entire reporting period.

Property Acquisition Expenses
Property acquisition expenses were $365,720 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and were related to the acquisition of the Woodlands property.

Corporate General and Administrative Expenses

Ci general and admini ive decreased from $267,563 for the year ended December 31, 2011 to $138,479 for the the year ended December 31, 2012. These
corporate general and administrati isted primarily of restricted stock p ion and asset fees. The d in corp general and admi ive
expenses was primarily due to decreases in asset management fees for the year ended December 31, 2012 as a result of our advisor waiving the asset management fees due to it during
the period. We expect corporate general and admini: ive exp toi in future periods as a result of anticipated future acquisitions, but to decrease as a percentage of total

revenue.
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Interest Expense and Amortization of Deferred Loan Costs

In connection with the acquisition of the Hyatt Place note, the note joint venture borrowed $11,483,280 to partially finance the purchase of the Hyatt Place note. In connection
with the acquisition of the Woodlands property, we d a loan with a principal balance of $6,911,422 at the date of closing. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we
incurred interest expense of $413,954 and $206,793, respectively, related to this debt, including amortization of deferred loan costs of $13,518 and $8,034, respectively. This increase in
interest expense was due to the fact that we owned our interest in the Hyatt Place note for the full period in 2012. In future periods our interest expense will vary based on the amount of
our borrowings, which will depend on the cost of borrowings, the amount of proceeds we raise in our ongoing follow-on offering and our ability to identify and acquire real estate and
real estate-related assets that meet our investment objectives.

Operating Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Operating income (loss) from discontinued operatlons was $(329,353) and $216,703 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. This d in
income was due to the fact that we owned our interest in the Residence Inn property for the full period in 2011 and that we paid a loan prepayment penalty and wrote off’ unamomzed
loan costs during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Gain on Disposition of Hotel Property
Gain on disposition of hotel property was $1,510,786 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and related to the sale of the Residence Inn property.
Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased from $99,300 to $1,500 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012, respectively, based on income tax rates of 41% and 21% for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

Total Income from Discontinued Operations
Total income from discontinued operations was $1,179,933 and $117,403 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Net Income (Loss)

We had net income of $994,113 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to net income of $26,460 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Our increase in net income for
the year ended December 31, 2012 is due to the factors described above and the fact that we sold the Residence Inn property during the year ended December 31, 2012. Excluding
income attributable to a noncontrolling interest in a consolidated joint venture of $373,806 and $75,362 and income attributable to a noncontrolling interest in common operating
partnership units of $79 and $51, net income (loss) attributable to us was $620,228 and $(48,953) for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Critical Accounting Policies
General

Our accounting policies have been established to conform with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP requires to use jud in the application of accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions. These judgments affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
periods. If management’s judgment or interpretation of the facts and circumstances relating to various transactions is different, it is possible that different accounting policies will be
applied or different amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses will be recorded, resulting in a different presentation of the financial statements or different amounts reported in
the financial Additionalty, other panies may utilize different estimates that may impact the comparability of our results of operations to those of companies in similar
busi Below is a di ion of the accounting policies that management considers to be most critical once we commence significant operations. These policies require complex
judgment in their application or estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain.
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Income Taxes

We have made an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code commencing with the taxable year ended December 31, 2011.
Prior to qualifying to be taxed as a REIT, we were subject to normal federal and state corporation income taxes. We previously determined not to make an election to qualify as a REIT
under the Internal Revenue Code because we had a net operating loss for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 and had fewer than 100 stockholders as of December 31, 2009 and
2010.

As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal corporate income tax to the extent we distribute our REIT taxable income to our stockholders, so long as we distribute at
least 90% of our REIT taxable income (which is computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction or net capital gain and which does not necessarily equal net income as
calculated in accordance with GAAP). REITs are subject to a number of other organizational and operations requirements. Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to
certain state and local taxes on our income and property, and federal income and excise taxes on our undistributed income.

We lease the hotels we acquire to wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiaries that are subject to federal, state and local income taxes. We account for income taxes using the asset
and liability method under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax 1\ attributable to diffe between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. A valuation allowance is recorded for net deferred tax assets that are not expected to be realized. We accrued
$38,200 and $105,600 in current income taxes for the years ended December 31,2012 and 2011, respectively. We had a net deferred tax liability of $0 and $36,700 as of December 31, 201 2
and 2011, respectively.

We have reviewed tax positions under GAAP guidance that clarifies the relevant criteria and approach for the ition and of in tax positi The
guid: prescribes a recognition threshold and attribute for the financial statement recognition of a tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return. A tax
position may only be ized in the ial if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination. We had no material uncertain tax

positions as of December 31, 2012.

The preparation of our various tax returns requires the use of estimates for federal and state income tax purposes. These estimates may be subjected to review by the

respective taxing auth A revision to an esti may result in an assessment of additional taxes, penalties and interest. At this time, a range in which our estimates may change is
not expected to be material. We will account for interest and penalties relating to uncertain tax provisions in the current period income statement, if necessary. We have not recorded
any adj to our ial as a result of this interpretation. We have tax years 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 ining subject to ination by various federal and
state tax jurisdictions.

Valuation and Allocation of Real Property — Acquisition

Upon acquisition, the purchase price of real property is allocated to the tangible assets acquired isting of land, buildings and tenant impr , any d debt,
identified intangible assets and asset retirement obligations based on their fair values. Identified intangible assets consist of above-market and below-market leases, in-place leases, in-
place contracts, tenant relationships and any goodwill or gain on purchase. Acquisition costs are charged to exp asi d. Initial valuations are subject to change during the

measurement period, but the measurement period ends as soon as the information is available. The measurement period shall not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

The fair value of the tangible assets acquired ists of land, buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment. Land values are derived from appraisals, and building values are
Iculated as repl cost less depreciation or our estimates of the relative fair value of these assets using di d cash flow analyses or similar methods. The value of the
building is depreciated over the estil d useful life of thirty-nine years using the straight-line method. The value of furniture, fixtures and equipment is based on their fair value using

d
costs less dep

We determine the fair value of assumed debt by calculating the net present value of the scheduled mortgage payments using interest rates for debt with similar terms and
remaining maturities that we believe we could obtain. Any difference between the fair value and stated value of the assumed debt is recorded as a discount or premium and amortized
over the remaining life of the loan.

In allocating the purchase price of each of our properties, our advisor makes assumptions and uses various estimates, including, but not limited 10, the estimated useful lives of

the assets, the cost of replacing certain assets, discount rates used to determine present values, market rental rates per square foot and the period required to lease the property up to its
occupancy at acquisition as if it were vacant. Many of these estimates are obtained from independent third party appraisals.
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However, we are responsible for the source and use of these estimates. These estimates are judgmental and subject to being impreci dingly, if different esti and
assumptions were derived, the valuation of the various categories of our real estate assets or related intangibles could in turn result in a difference in the depreciation or amortization
expense ded in our condensed lidated financial These variances could be material to our results of operations and financial conditi

Valuation and Allocation of Real Property — Ownership

D iation or izati p are computed using the straight-line and accelerated methods based upon the following estimated useful lives:

(%

Years

Exterior

g

Impairments

For real estate we own, our management monitors events and changes in circumstances indicating that the carrying amounts of the real estate assets may not be recoverable.
When such events or changes in circumstances are present, we assess potential impairment by comparing estimated future undiscounted operating cash flows expected to be generated
over the life of the asset and from its eventual disposition, to the carrying amount of the asset. In the event that the carrying amount exceeds the estimated future undiscounted
operating cash flows, we recognize an impairment loss to adjust the carrying amount of the asset to estimated fair value for assets held for use and fair value less costs to sell for assets
held for sale. There were no such losses for the years ended December 31,2012 and 2011.

In evaluating our investments for impairment, we make several estimates and assumptions, including, but not limited to, the projected date of disposition of the properties, the
estimated future cash flows of the properties during our ownership and the projected sales price of each of the properties. A change in these estimates and assumptions could result in
a change in the estimated fair value of our hotel properties, which could then result in an impairment which could result in a material change to our financial statements.

Morigage Note Receivable

We provide first-mortgage financing in the form of a note receivable. This loan is held for investment and is intended to be held to maturity and, accordingly, is recorded at
cost, net of the allowance for losses when a loan is deemed to be impaired. Premiums, discounts, and net origination fees are amortized or accreted as an adjustment to interest income

using the effective interest method over the life of the loan. We discontinue recording interest and amortizing di premi when the p: of interest and/or
principal is not received.

Impai) of Notes Receivabl

P

We review notes receivables for impairment in each reporting period pursuant to the applicable authoritative ing guid; A loan is impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts recorded as assets on the balance sheet. We apply normal loan review and underwriting procedures
(as may be implemented or modified from time to time) in making that judgment.

When a loan is impaired, we measure impairment based on the present value of expected cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate against the value of the
asset recorded on the balance sheet. We may also measure impairment based on a loan’s observable market price or the fair value of coll 1 if the loan is colk 1 dependent. If a loan
is deemed to be impaired, we record a valuation allowance through a charge to earnings for any shortfall. Our assessment of impairment is based on considerable judgment and
estimates. We did not record a valuation ailowance during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Earnings (Loss) per Share

Eamnings (loss) per share (“EPS”) is calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during each period. Basic and diluted EPS are the same for all
periods presented. Non-vested shares of restricted stock, totaling 8,125 shares, held by our independent directors are included in the calculation of earnings per share because the
effect is dilutive.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There are no new unimplemented accounting p that are expected to have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Inflation

As of December 31, 2012, our only investments consisted of our 74.5% joint venture interest in the Hyatt Place note and the Woodlands property. Operators of hotels, in
general, possess the ability to adjust room rates daily to reflect the effects of inflation. Competitive p may, | , limit the op * ability to raise room rates. We are
currently not experiencing any material impact from inflation.

With the exception of leases with tenants in multifamily properties, we expect to include provisions in our tenant leases designed to protect us from the impact of inflation.
These provisions will include reimbursement billings for operating expense pass-through charges, real estate tax and insurance reimbursements, or in some cases annual reimbursement
of operating expenses above a certain allowance. Due to the generally long-term nature of these leases, annual rent increases may not be sufficient to cover inflation and rent may be
below market. Leases in multifamily properties generally tum over on an annual basis and do not typically present the same issue regarding inflation protection due to their short-term
nature.

REIT Compliance

To qualify as a REIT for tax purposes, we are required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to our stockholders. We must also meet certain asset and income
tests, as well as other requirements. We will monitor the business and transactions that may potentially impact our REIT status. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year
following the taxable year in which we initially elect to be taxed as a REIT, we will be subject to federal income tax (including any applicable alternative mini tax) on our taxable
income at regular corporate rates and generally will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as a REIT for federal income tax purposes for the four taxable years following the year during
which our REIT qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue Service grants us relief under certain statutory provisions. Such an event could materially adversely affect our net
income and net cash available for distribution to our stockholders.

Distributions

On May 20, 2010, we authorized and declared a cash distribution to our stockholders, or the distribution, contingent upon the closing of our acquisition of our interest in the
Residence Inn property, which occurred on May 27, 2010. The distribution (1) accrues daily to our stockholders of record on each day; (2) is payable in cumulative amounts on or before
the 15th day of each calendar month; and (3) is calculated at a rate of $0.002192 per share of the our common stock per day, which, if paid each day over a 365-day period, is equivalent
to an 8.0% annualized distribution rate based on a purchase price of $10.00 per share of our common stock.

The following table summarizes distributions paid in cash and pursuant to the DRIP for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012.

Cash Distribution Paid Total Amount of
Distribution Pursuant to DRIP Distribution
1 2)

70,144
75,934
§3865
97,042

(1) Distributions are paid on a monthly basis. Distributions for all record dates of a given month are paid approximately 15 days following the end of such month.
(2) Amount of distributions paid in shares of common stock pursuant to the distribution reinvestment plan.
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We pand $326, 985 in aggregate distributions in the year ended December 31, 2011, which was comprised of $208,664 in cash distributions and $118,321 in shares issued

to our distrib plan. We paid $708,025 in aggregate dlstnbuﬂons for the year ended December 31, 2012, which was comprised of $531,002 in cash distributions
and $177,023 in shares issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan. For the years ended December 31,2011 and 2012, we had cash provided by operating activities of $54,942
and $547,671, respectively, and our funds from operations were $185,740 and $(324,661), resp 1y. For i jon on how we late funds from operations, see “Funds from
Operations and Modified Funds from Operations™ below. For the year ended D ber 31, 2012, approxi ly 77% of distributions were paid from cash provided by operating
activities and the remaining approximately 23% was paid from offering proceeds. For the year ended D ber 31,2011, i ly 17% of distributions were paid from cash
provided by operating activities and the remaining approximately 83% was paid from offering proceeds.

Funds from Operations and Modified Funds from Operations

One of our objectives is to provide cash distributions to our stockholders from cash generated by our operations. Cash generated from operations is not equivalent to net
income as determined under GAAP. Due to certain unique operating characteristics of real estate companies, the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, an industry
trade group, or NAREIT, has pmmulgated a standard known as Fonds from Operations, or FFO for short, which it believes more accurately reflects the operating performance of a REIT.
As defined by NAREIT, FFO means net income computed in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains (or losses) from sales of property, plus depreciation and amortization, and after

dj for lidated par hips and joint in which the REIT holds an interest. We have adopted the NAREIT definition for computing FFO because, in our view,
FFQ is 2 meaningful supplemcmal performance measure in conjunction with net income.

Changes in the accounting and reporting rules under GAAP that have been put into effect since the establishment of NAREIT’s definition of FFO have prompted a significant
increase in the magnitude of non-cash and non-operating items included in FFO, as defined. As a result, in addition to FFO, we also calculate modified funds from operations, or MFFO,
anon-GAAP I 1 fi 1 performance that our uses in evahxatmg our operating performance. Similar to FFO, MFFO excludes items such as
depreciation and amortization. However, MFFO exclud h and no; ing items included in FFO, such as amortization of certain in-place lease intangible assets and
liabilities and the amortization of certain tenant incentives. Our calculation of MFFO will exclude these items, as well as the effects of straight-line rent revenue recognition, fair value
adjustments to derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment, non-cash impairment charges and certain other items, when applicable. Our calculation of
MFFO will also include, when applicable, items such as master lease rental receipts, which are excluded from net income (loss) and FFO, but which we consider in the evaluation of the
operating performance of our real estate investments.

We believe that MFFO reflects the overall impact on the performance of our real estate investments of occupancy rates, rental rates, property operating costs and devel
activities, as well as general and administrative expenses and interest costs, which is not immediately apparent from net income (loss) As such, we believe MFFO in addmcm to net
income (loss) as defined by GAAP, is a meaningful supplemental performance measure which is used by our to our op: g per and d our

operating, financing and dividend policies.

Please see the limitations listed below iated with the use of MFFO as compared to net income (loss):

. Our calculation of MFFO will exclude any gains (losses) related to changes in estimated values of derivative instruments related to any interest rate swaps which we
hold. Although we expect to hold these instruments to maturity, if we were to settle these instruments prior to maturity, it would have an impact on our operations. We
do not currently hold any such derivate instruments and thus our calculation of MFFO set forth in the table below does not reflect any such exclusion.

. Our calculation of MFFO will exclude any impairment charges related to long-lived assets that have been written down to current market valuations. Although these
losses will be included in the calculation of net income (loss), we will exclude them from MFFO because we believe doing so will more appropriately present the
operating performance of our real estate investments on a comparative basis. We have not recognized any such impairment charges and thus our calculation of MFFO
set forth in the table below does not reflect any such exclusion.
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. Our calculation of MFFO will exclude organizational and offering expenses and acquxsmon expenses payable to our advisor. Although these amounts reduce net
income, we fund such costs with proceeds from our offering and and do not ider these exp in the evaluation of our operating
performance and determining MFFO. Our calculation of MFFO set forth in the table below reflects such exclusions.

We believe MFFO is useful to investors in evaluating how our portfolio might perform after our offering and acquisition stage has been completed and, as a resuit, may provide
an indication of the sustainability of our distributions in the future. However, as described in greater detail below, MFFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss)
or as an indication of our liquidity. Many of the ad;ustments to MFFO are snmlar to ad)ustmems required by SEC rules for the presentation of pro forma business combination
disclosures, particularly acquisition expenses, gains or losses ized in t inations and other activity not representative of future activities. MFFO is also more

in evaluating our per over time and as compared to other real estate companies, which may not be as involved in acquisition activities or as affected by impairments
and other non-operating charges.

MFFO has limitations as a performance measure in an offering such as ours where the price of a share of common stock is a stated value and there is no net asset value
determination during the offering stage and for a period thereafter. MFFO is useful in assisting and investors in ing the inability of op g per in
future operating periods, and in particular, after the offering and acquisition stages are complete and net asset value is disclosed. MFFO is not a useful measurc in evaluating net asset
value because impairments are taken into account in determining net asset value but not in determining MFFO. Investors are cautioned that due to the fact that impairments are based
on estimated future undiscounted cash flows and given the relatively limited term of our operations, it could be difficult to recover any impairment charges.

The calculation of FFO and MFFO may vary from entity to entity because capitalization and expense policies tend to vary from entity to entity. Consequently, our presentation
of FFO and MFFO may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures presented by other REITs. In addition, FFO and MFFO should not be considered as an altemative to net
income (loss) or to cash flows from operating activities and are not intended to be used as a liguidity measure indicative of cash flow available to fund our cash needs. In particular, as
we are currently in the acquisition phase of our life cycle, acquisition costs and other adj which are i to MFFO are, and may continue to be, a significant use of cash.
MFFO also excludes impairment charges, rental revenue adjustments and unrealized gains and losses related to certain other fair value adjustments. Accordingly, both FFO and MFFO
should be reviewed in connection with other GAAP measurements.

The table below summarizes our calculation of FFO and MFFO for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and a reconciliation of such non-GAAP financial performance
measures to our net income (loss).

Year ended December 31,

s«m}f/f//////@/ggS m HE

50




Filer: Moody National Form Type: 10-K Period: 12/31/12 Job Number: 13-00480 Rev: -NOT DEFINED- Sequence: 54
Submission: Document Name: mnrt-10k_123112.htm Saved: Printed: 3/29/2013 16:11:35
631@quality Description: Annual Report -NOT DEFINED- Created using EDGARizerAgent

Off-Bak: Sheet Arr

As of December 31, 2012, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in

financial condt or exp results of operati liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Related-Party Transactions and Agreements

We have entered into agreements with our advisor and its affiliates whereby we have paid, and may continue to pay, certain fees to, or reimburse certain expenses of, our
P P N

advisor or its affiliates for acquisition and advisory fees and exp f ination fees, ization and offering costs, sales commissions, dealer manager fees, asset and
property management fees and expenses, leasing fees and reimt of certain operating costs. Additionally, we have entered into joint venture arrangements with affiliates of our
advisor in connection with the acquisition of the Residence Inn property and the Hyatt Place note. See Item 13, “Certain Relationships and Retated Transactions and Director
Independence” and Note 7 (Related Party Ar ) to the lidated financial included in this Annual Report for a discussion of the various related-party

transactions, agreements and fees.
Subsequent Events

We evaluate subsequent events up until the date the consolidated financial statements are issued.
Status of Offering

We commenced our initial public offering of up to $1,100,000,000 in shares of our common stock on April 15, 2009. On October 12, 2012, the SEC declared the registration
statement for our follow-on offering effective and we terminated our initial public offering. We issued 1,126,253 shares of our common stock in our initial public offering, including 29,580
shares issued pursuant to the DRIP, resulting in gross offering proceeds to us of $10,966,728. As of March 19, 2013, we had accepted investors’ subscriptions for, and issued 1,527,016
shares of our common stock in our initial public offering and follow-on offering, including 43,708 shares issued pursuant to the DRIP, resulting in aggregate gross offering proceeds to
us of $14,833,078.

Distributions Declared

On December 31, 2012, we declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $91,381, of which $67,200 was paid in cash on January 15, 2013 and $24,181 was paid pursuant to
our distribution reinvestment plan in the form of additional shares of our stock. On January 31,2013, we declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $93,909, of which
$68,777 was paid in cash on February 15, 2013 and $25,132 was paid pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan in the form of additional shares of our common stock. On February
28, 2013, we declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $87,898, of which $64,602 was paid in cash on March 15, 2013 and $23,296 was paid pursuant to our distribution
reinvestment plan in the form of additional shares of our stock.

Potential Acquisition

On February 11, 2013, we entered into the Purchase Agreement relating to the acquisition of a Hyatt Place hotel property located in Germantown, Tennessee, or the Hyatt Place
hotel, from an unaffiliated third party seller for an aggregate purchase price of $11,300,000, plus closing costs. We intend to finance the acquisition of the Hyatt Place hotel with
proceeds from our ongoing public offering and approximately $7,600,000 of indebtedness secured by the Hyatt Place hotel.

4

Opened in August 2009, the Hyatt Place hotel features 127 g designed to extended visits with space for work, study and entertainment. The
guestrooms feature a refrigerator, 42” flat-panel HDTV, Hyatt Grand Bed, and flexible workspace with task lighting. Other amenities include Wi-Fi internet access throughout the hotel,
24-hour StayFit@Hyatt fitness center, heated outdoor pool, and 24/7 guest kitchen and bakery café. The Hyatt Place hotel offers 1,025 square feet of flexible meeting space and offers
all-inclusive meeting packages tailored to specific corporate and group travel needs.

The Hyatt Place hotel is located in Germantown, which is a suburb bordering east Memphis, along Memphis® Technology Corridor. It is within close proximity to the FedEx
World Headquarters, the FedEx Tech Headquarters, Nike, Thomas & Betts, and Tournament Players Club at Southwind. FedEx Corporation, or FedEx, is the most significant employer in
the Germantown area. In 2012, FedEx filed a $30.2 million building permit to construct a mixed-use building in close proximity to the Hyatt Place hotel. This is part of FedEx’s plan to
invest approximately $142 million in expanding, upgrading, and consolidating its facilities, which will include a new Air Operations Training Center. The project will include a 250,000
square foot expansion to FedEx’s Memphis facilities, and completion is currently expected for 2016.
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Median family income for Germantown equals $131,557, as compared to the 2011 U.S. average of $51,413. In addition to industry and commercial growth, population growth in
Germantown has increased by 16.5% since 2000, as compared with the national growth rate 0f 9.61%.

The acquisition of the Hyatt Place hotel is subject to substantial conditions to closing, including: (1) obtaining appropriate financing for the acquisition of the Hyatt Place
hotel; (2) the sale of a sufficient number of shares of our common stock in our public offering to fund a portion of the purchase price for the Hyatt Place hotel; and (3) the absence of a
material adverse change to the Hyatt Place hotel prior to the date of the acquisition. There is no assurance that we will close the acquisition of the Hyatt Place hotel on the terms
described above or at all.

ITEM 7A. (4] itative and Qualitative Discl About Market Risk

Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that results from a change in interest rates. We may be exposed to interest rate changes primarily as a
result of long-term debt used to maintain liquidity, fand capital expenditures and expand our real estate investment portfolio and operations. Market fluctuations in real estate financing
may affect the availability and cost of funds needed to expand our investment portfolio. In addition, restrictions upon the availability of real estate financing or high interest rates for
real estate loans could adversely affect our ability to dispose of Teal estate in the future. We will seek to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower
our overall borrowing costs. We may use derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates on loans secured by our assets. The market risk associated
with interest-rat is d by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken.

With regard to variable rate financing, our advisor will assess our interest rate cash flow risk by continually identifying and monitoring changes in interest rate exposures that
may adversely impact expected future cash flows and by evaluating hedging opportunities. Our advisor will maintain risk management control systems to monitor interest rate cash flow
risk attributable to both our ding and fi d debt obligations as well as our potential offsetting hedge positions. While this hedging strategy will be designed to minimize
the impact on our net income and funds from operations from changes in interest rates, the overall returns on your investment may be reduced.

As of December 31, 2012, all of our outstanding indebtedness accrued interest at a fixed rate and therefore an i ord in interest rates would have no effect on our
interest expense. Interest rate fluctuations will generally not affect our future earnings or cash flows on our fixed rate debt unless such instruments mature or are otherwise terminated.
However, interest rate changes will affect the fair value of our fixed rate instruments. As we expect to hold our fixed rate instruments to maturity and the amounts due under such
instruments would be limited to the outstanding principal balance and any accrued and unpaid interest, we do not expect that fluctuations in interest rates, and the resulting change in
fair value of our fixed rate instruments, would have a significant impact on our operations.

The table below summarizes our notes payable as of December 31, 2012 based on their maturity dates:

Maturity Date
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Fair Value(1)

Liabilities
Notes Payable
/ Rﬂ S

(1) The fair value estimate of our fixed rate debt was esti d using a di d cash flow analysis utilizing rates we would expect to pay for debt of a similar type and remaining
maturity if the loans were originated at December 31, 2012.

(2) The acquisition note bears interest at a fixed rate of 3.00% per annum through August 21, 2015. For the period from August 21, 2015 through the acquisition note maturity date of
May 5, 2018, the acquisition note will bear interest at a fixed rate equal to (a) the Prime Rate in effect as of August 21, 2015, minus (b) 0.25%, provided that in no event will the
interest rate exceed the Maximum Rate.
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¢ htad

The weighted-average interest rate of our fixed rate debt was 4.16% at December 31, 2012. The ge interest rate rep the actual interest rate in effect at
December 31, 2012. At December 31, 2012, the fair value of our fixed rate debt was $17,904,671 and the carrying value of our fixed rate debt was $17,904,671.

We will also be exposed to credit risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. If the fair value of a derivative contract
is positive, the counterparty will owe us, which creates credit risk for us. If the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, we will owe the counterparty and, therefore, do not have
credit risk. We will seek to minimize the credit risk in derivative i by ing into ions with high-quality counterparties. We did not hold any derivative contracts in
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

ITEM 8. Fij ial Si and Suppl ry Data
Qur C lidated Financial and suppl y data can be found beginning on Page F-1 of this Annual Report.
ITEM 9. Changes In and Disag with A on A ing and Fi ial Disclosure

On February 7, 2012, Pannell Kerr Forster of Texas, P.C., or PKF, notified us that it could not be considered an independent anditor for the 2011 fiscal year because PKF
prepared the tax returns of Brett C. Moody. On February 8, 2012, our board of directors and audit committee accepted the resignation of PKF from its engagement as our registered
public accounting firm. On February 10, 2012, PKF also notified us that it could not be considered an independent auditor for the 2009 and 2010 fiscal years because PKF had provided
tax advice to other affiliates of Mr. Moody. As a result, PKF notified us our audited lidated financial for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 included in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on March 31, 2011 and the interim unaudited lidated financial for the three months ended March 31, 2011 as filed
with the SEC on Form 10-Q on May 16, 2011, the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 as filed with the SEC on Form 10-Q on August 15, 2011 and the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as filed with the SEC on Form 10-Q on November 14, 2011, could not be relied upon.

On February 8, 2012, our audit committee engaged Frazier & Deeter as its independent registered public accounting firm. We engaged Frazier & Deeter to (1) serve as our
d public ing firm for the 2011 fiscal year, (2) audit the 2009 and 2010 audited financial statements and (3) review the interim consolidated financial
state:mems for 201 1. On May 8, 2012, we engaged Frazier & Deeter to (1) serve as our independent registered public accounting firm for the 2012 fiscal year, (2) audit the 2012 financial
statements and (3) review the interim lidated financial for 2012.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report, management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the
design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 13d-15(e) undcr the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). Based upon, and
as of the date of, the evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer luded that the discl Is and procedures were effective as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file and submit under the Exch Actis ded, p ized and
reponcd as and when required. Disclosure controls and procedures mclude without lnmltanon, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by
us in the reports we file and submu under the Exchange Act is lated and d to our including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer,
as appropriate to allow timely d 1

q

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our is ible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f)
gated under the Exch Act In connection with the preparation of this Annual Report, our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over ﬁnancml
repomng as of December 31, 2012. In making that assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway C

(COSO) in Intemnal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on its assessment, our management believes that, as of December 31, 2012, our intemal control over financial reporting was
cffective based on those criteria.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information

None.




Filer: Moody National Form Type: 10-K Period: 12/31/12 Job Number: q13-00480 Rev: -NOT DEFINED- Sequence: 58

Submission: Document Name: mnrt-10k_123112.htm Saved: Printed: 3/29/2013 16:11:35

631@quality Description: Annuat Report -NOT DEFINED- Created using EDGARizerAgent
PART 111

ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Our current directors and executive officers and their respective ages and positions are listed below:

D
Independent Director

nifependent Disesior

Brett C. Moody has served as our Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President since January 2008, the month in which our Company was formed. He also
serves as Chief Executive Officer and President of our advisor. Mr. Moody founded Moody Mortgage Corporation in 1996 and has served as its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
since its formation. Mr. Moody, who has over 20 years of commercial real estate experience, has since guided the growth of his company from a mortgage company to a full service real
estate firm, which includes affiliates Moody National Mortgage Corporation, Moody National Realty Company, Moody National M and, Moody National Develop
Company and their respecﬁve subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Moody National Companies.” His primary responsibilities include ing real estate acquisitions and

as well as build hing and leading the Moody National C ies’ team of professionals. As Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Moody National
Morigage Corporation, Mr. Moody has closed over 200 transactions totaling over $2 billion. Prior to founding Moody National Mortgage Corporation, Mr. Moody was a financial
analyst for the Dunkum Mortgage Group, now Live Oak Capital. Mr. Moody also serves on the Board of Directors of Foundation for the Future, the Yellowstone Academy for At Risk
Children, and the Paimer Drug Abuse Program.

Our board of directors, excluding Mr. Moody, has determined that the leadership positions previously and currently held by Mr. Moody, and the extensive experience Mr.
Moody has accumulated from acquiring and managing investments in commercial real estate and debt, have provided Mr. Moody with the experiences, attributes and skills necessary to
effectively carry out the duties and responsibilities of a director. Consequently, our board of directors has determined that Mr. Moody is a highly qualified candidate for directorship
and should therefore continue to serve as one of our directors.

Robert W. Engel has served as our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since January 2008, the month in which our Company was formed, and as our Secretary since May
2010. In addition, Mr. Engel also serves as the Chief Financial Officer — Real Estate Development and Management of the Moody National Compames a position he has held since
September 2006. Prior to working at the Moody National Companies, Mr. Engel served as the Division Controller, Real Estate Devel and M: of BMS Mi Inc.,
an owner and manager of commercial and multifamily properties pnman}y in Houston, Texas from May 2005 to September 2006. From November 1999 to May 2005, Mr. Engel served as
Controller and Chief Financial Officer, Real Estate Develof and M for Hartman M: Ing., advisor to Hartman Commercial Properties REIT, which provides
commercial real estate services. Mr. Engel is a CPA and holds membershlps in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Texas Society of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Engel is also a CPM, with membership in the Institute of Real Estate Management, and a CCIM as a member of the CCIM Institute. He is a licensed real estate broker
in the State of Texas. Mr. Engel holds Series 7, 22, 24, 27, 62 and 63 licenses with FINRA. Mr. Engel has a Bachelor of Busi Administration with Highest Honors with a major in
Accounting from the University of Texas at Austin in Austin, Texas.

William H. Armstrong III has served as one of our indep since 2008, the month in which our Company was formed. Mr. Armstrong serves as
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of Stratus Properties Inc. (NASDAQ: STRS), a real estate devel pany that acquires, devel and
sells residential and commercial real estate properties located primarily in the Austin, Texas area. Mr. Armstrong has been employed by Stratus Properties since its mcepuon in 1992,
served as Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of Stratus Properties from 1996 to 1998, and has served as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of
Stratus Properties since 1998. Prior to joining Stratus Properties, Mr. Armstrong was Vice President of Sonnenblick Goldman, a national real estate investment banking and advisory firm.
Mr. Armstrong serves on the Finance Committee of the U.S. Green Building Council, a Washington, D.C. based non-profit organization, and is a member of the Urban Land Institute and
the Real Estate Council of Austin. Mr. Armstrong received his B.A. in Economics from the University of Colorado Denver.
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Our board of di Tuding Mr. Ar g, has determined that Mr. Armstrong’s previous leadership positions, including di hips, with other
primarily engaged in i ing in ial real estate have provided Mr. Armstrong with the expenenca attributes and skills necessary to effectively carry out the duties and

responsibilities of a director. Conscquently, our board of directors has determined that Mr. Armstrong is a highly qualified candidate for directorship and should therefore continue to
serve as one of our directors.

John P. Thompson has served as one of our independent di since September 2008, the month in which our Company was formed. Mr. Thompson is the founder of
PinPoint Commercial, which provides real estate services focusing on industrial, senior housing and medical related projects primarily in Texas. As CEO of Pinpoint Commercial, Mr.
Tt leads all i and devel activities for the firm as well as overseeing the company's financial and i Prior to founding PinPoint

Commercial in 1998, Mr. Thompson served as an industrial broker with CB Richard Ellis, Inc. Mr. Thompson received his Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance from the
University of Texas at Austin in Austin, Texas.

Our board of d tuding Mr. Thomp has determined that Mr. Thompson's experience managing investments in industrial and retail properties and brokering
industrial properties has provided Mr. Thompson with the experiences, attributes and skills necessary to effectively carry out the duties and responsibilities of a director. Consequently,
our board of di has d ined that Mr. Thompson is a highly qualified candidate for di hip and should therefore continue to serve as one of our directors.

Charles L. Horn has served as one of our independent directors since May 2012. Mr. Hom joined Alliance Data in 2009 as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer,
after having served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial officer at Builders Firstsource, Inc. since 1999. Prior to !hat Mr. Hom was VP of finance and treasury for the retail

operations of Pier 1 Imports, Inc. As CFG, one of Mr. Hom’s primary responsnbxhtles is to ensure that Alliance Data mai transp: y and i in ﬁmm:lal Teporting and
accounnng pracuces across the emerpnse Mr. Hom also drives the company’s investor relations strategy, heading up ications with the i Mr. Hom
eamed a Bachelor’s degree in Bt Administration from Abilene Christian University and an MBA from the University of Texas at Austin. Mr. Homn is also a Certified Public

Accountant in the state of Texas, is a member of the Texas Society of CPAs, and @ member of the American Institute of CPAs.

Our board of directors, excluding Mr. Horn, has determined that Mr. Homn's experience as a certified public accountant and an officer of a publicly traded company has

provided Mr. Horn with the experiences, attributes and skills necessary to effectively carry out the duties and responsibilities of a director. Ci q! 1y, our board of di has
determined that Mr. Horn is a highly qualified candidate for di p and should theref inue to serve as one of our directors.
Audit Committee
Our board of di: hasa ly d d ding audit i blished in d: with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. The audit committee

meets on a regular basis, at least quarterly and more frequently as necessary. The audit ittee’s primary f ions are to eval and app! the services and fees of our

regi d public g firm, to periodically review the auditors’ independence and to assist the board of directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by
rcvrewmg the financial information to be provided to the stockholders and others, the system of internal controls which management has established and the audit and financial
reporting process. The current bers of the audit ittee are Messrs. William H. Armstrong, II1, Charles L. Hom and John P. Thompson, all of 'whom are independent directors.
Mr. Horn currently serves as the chairman of the audit committee and has been designated by the board of directors as the “audit | expert” p to the

requirements of Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC under the Exchange Act.

Investment Committee

QOur board of di has a sep ly desi, d i i QOur board of directors has delegated to the investment committee (1) certain responsibilities with
respect to investment in specific real estate assets proposed by our advisor and (2) the authority to review our in policies and p d onan ing basis and
any changes to our board of directors. Qur investment committee must at all times be comprised of a majority of independent directors. The investment committee is comprised of three
directors, two of whom are independent directors. The current ls of the i i are Messrs. Brett C. Moody, John P. Thompson and William H. Armstrong, 111, with

Mr. Moody serving as the chairman of the investment committee.
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With respect to real estate assets, the board of dlrectors has delegated to the investment committee the authority to approve all real property acquisitions, developments and

chsposmons, including real property ponfolm acquisitions, devel and dispositions, for a purchase price, total project cost or sales price of up to $30, 000 000 mclndmg the
fi ing of such acq; and d The board of dlrectors mcludmg amajority of the mdependent directors, must approve all real prop:
and dispositions, including real property portfolio acquisitions, d p and d for a purchase price, total project cost or sales price greater than $30,000,000, mcludmg
the financing of such acquisitions and developments.
Code of Conduct and Ethics

We have adopled a Codc of Et}ucs whlch contams general guidelines for conducting our business and is designed to help directors, employees and i d )
resolve ethical issues in an i 1) The Code of Ethics applies to al of our officers, including our principal executive officer, pnncnpal financial
officer and principal accounting offi cer and pcrsons performing similar functions and all members of our board of directors. The Code of Ethics covers topics including, but not limited
to, conflicts of interest, record keeping and reporting, payments to foreign and U.S. g p 1and pli with laws, rules and regulations. We will provide to any

person without charge a copy of our Code of Ethics, including any amendments or waivers, upon written request delivered to our principal executive office at the address listed on the
cover page of this Annual Report.

ITEM 11, Executive Compensation
Compensation of our Executive Officers

Our executive officers do not receive compensation directly from us for services rendered to us. As a result, we do not have nor has our board of directors considered 2
compensation policy for our executive officers. As a result, we have not includeda C ion and Di ion Analysis in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Each of our executive officers, including each executive officer who serves as a director, is an officer or employee of our advisor or its affiliates and receives compensation for

his or her services, including services performed on our behalf, from such entities. See Item 13, “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence” below for a
discussion of fees paid to our advisor and its affiliates.

Compensation of our Directors

The following table sets forth certain information regarding compensation earned by or paid to our directors during the year ended December 31, 2012. Directors who are aiso
our executive officers do not receive compensation for services rendered as a director.

Restricted
Fees Earned or Stock Grants All Other
2

Paid in Cash(1 Compensation

JohnPithompsons . . i St e
LawrenceS Jones(3) A 81 000

$ ‘ 255,000

166,000 $

(1) The amounts shown in this column include fees camed for attendance at board of director and committee meetings and annval retainers, as described below under
“Cash Compensation.”

(2)  Asdescribed below under “Independent Di C ion Plan,” each of Messts. Armstrong, Horn and Thompson received a grant of 2,500 shares upon their
reelection to the our board of directors on August 14, 20]2 the date of the annual meeting of our stockholders. Mr. Hom received a grant of 5,000 shares upon joining
our board of directors on May 9, 2012. Amounts shown reflect the aggregate fair value of the shares of restricted stock as of the date of grant computed in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718.

(3)  OnFebruary 29, 2012, Lawrence S. Jones resigned as a member of our board of directors and forfeited 1,250 unvested restricted shares of common stock previously
granted under our independent directors p ton plan.
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Cash Compensation

We pay each of our independent directors an annual retainer of $50,000, plus $2,000 per in-person board meeting ded, $1,500 per in-p ittee meeting attended
and $1,000 for each telephonic meeting; provided, h , we do not pay an additional fee to our directors for attending a committee meeting when the committee meeting is held on
the same day as a l:oard meeting. We also pay the audlt committee chairperson an additional annual retainer of $10,000 and reimburse all directors for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in with ding board

Inde dent Dij Ce ion Plan

We have app; d and ad d an ind dent di ion plan which op as a sub-plan of our long-term incentive plan. Under our independent directors
compensation plan, each of our current mdependcm directors received 5 000 shares of restricted common stock when we raised the minimum offering amount of $2,000,000 in our initial
public offering. Each new independent director that subseguently joins our board of directors receives 5,000 shares of restricted stock on the date he or she joins the board of directors.
In addition, on the date of each of the first four annual meetings of stockholders at which an independ: director is re-elected to the board of directors, he or she receives 2,500
restricted shares. Subject to certain conditions, the restricted stock granted p to the ind d ion plan will vest and become non-forfeitable in equal
quarterly installments beginning on the first day of the first quarter following the date of grant. As of December 31, 2012 35,000 shares of restricted common stock have been granted to
our independent directors and 1,250 shares of restricted common stock have been forfeited by a resigning independent director.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

We currenﬂy donot have a compensanon committee of our board of directors because we do not plan to pay any compensation to our officers. There are no interlocks or
insider parti ion as to quired to be discl to SEC regulations.

ITEM 12. S ity Ov hip of Certain Beneficial Owners and M and Related Stockholder Matters

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides ion about our stock that may be issued upon the exercise of options, warrants and rights under our incentive award plan, as of
December 31, 2012.

Number of Number of
Securities to be Weighted- Securities
Issued Upon average Exercise Remaining
Exercise of Price of Available for
O ding O ding Future Issuance
Options, Optiens, Under Equity
Warrants and Warrants and Compensation

Plan Cates n

Security Ownership of Beneficial Owners

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 19, 2013, for each person or group that holds more than 5.0% of our outstanding
shares of common stock, for each director and executive officer and for our directors and executive officers as a group. To our knowledge, each person that beneficially owns our shares
of our common stock has sole voting and disposition power with regard to such shares.
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Number of Shares Percent of

Beneﬁnallx Owned!Z! All Shares
X%

11,615 0.7%

: : ]
All Directors and Executive Oﬁ' icersas a gmup 58,504 3.7%

[t} The address of each named beneficial owner is ¢/o Moody National REIT I, Inc., 6363 Woodway Drive, Suite 110, Houston, Texas 77057.

) Under SEC rules, a person is deemed to be a “beneficial owner” of a security if that person has or shares “voting power,” which includes the power to dispose of or to direct
the disposition of such security. A person also is deemed to be a beneficial owner of any securities which that person has a right to acquire within 60 days. Under these rules,
wmore than one person may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of the same securities and a person may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of securities as to which be or she
has no economic or pecuniary interest.

3) Includes 27,774 shares owned by Moody Nationai REIT Sponsor, LLC. Moody National REIT Sponsor, LLC is indirectly owned and controlled by Mr. Moody.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related T ions and Di. Ind d

Ownership Interests

On February 19, 2008, our sponsor purchased 22,222 shares of our common stock at $9.00 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $200,000 and was admitted as our initial
stockholder. On April 25, 2008, Moody National LPOP I, LLC, or Moody LPOP, made an initial capital contribution of $1,000 to our operating partnership in exchange for 100 common
units and our affiliate, Moody OP Holdings 1, LLC, or Moody Holdings, contributed $1,000 to our operating partnership in exchange for 100 special units.

As of December 31, 2012, Moody LPOP owned less than 1% of the outstanding limited partnership interests in our operating partnership and Moody Holdings owned 100% of
the special units issued by our operating partnership. We are the sole general partner of our operating partnership and own approximately 99% of the limited partnership units of our
operating partnership. Moody Holdings” ownership interest of the special units entitles it to a subordinated participation in which it will receive (1) 15% of specified distributions made
upon the disposition of our operating par hip’s assets and (2) a one-time payment, in the form of shares of our stock or a promissory note, in conjunction with the
redemption of the special units upon the occurrence of certain liquidity events or upon the occurrence of certain events that result in a termination or non-renewal of our advisory
agreement, but in each case only after the other holders of our operating partnership’s units, including us, have received (or have been deemed to have received), in the aggregate,
cumulative distributions equal to their capital contributions plus an 8.0% cumulative non-compounded annual pre-tax return on their net contributions. As the holder of special units,
Moody Holdings is not entitled to receive any other distributions.

We have not paid any distributions to Moody Holdings p to its subordinated participation interest.

Residence Inn Property

On May 27, 2010, we acquired our interest in the Residence Inn property through Moody National RI Perimeter JV, LLC, or the joint venture. The joint venture purchased the
property interests in the Residence Inn property held collectively by twenty-seven tenant-in-common owners, or the seller. The seller acquired the Residence Inn propesty pursuant to
an offering of tenant-in-common interests sponsored by one of our affiliates and the joint venture agreed to purchase the property in ion with the ing of the existing
financing secured by the property. We owned a 75% interest in the joint venture through our indirect subsidiary, Moody National Perimeter REIT JV Member, LLC, or the REIT JV
Member. Moody National RI Perimeter TO, LLC, a limited liability company wholly owned by Brett C. Moody, our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, or the Moody JV
Member, owned a 25% membership interest in the joint venture. The Residence Inn property was sold to a third party buyer on August 23, 2012.

REIT v Member se'rved as the manager of the joint venture. Under the terms of the joint venture agreement, REIT JV Member received 100% of cash from operations until it
had ions equal to a 10% per annum, cumulative non-compounded return on its invested capital, or the preferred return. Under the terms of the joint venture
agreement, once REIT JV Member received the preferred return, Moody JV Member was entitled to receive 100% of cash from operations until it had received cumulative distributions
equal to a 10% per annum, cumulative non-compounded return on its invested capital. Thereafter, each member was entitled to receive distributions in accordance with their respective
percentage interests. Distributions constituting a return of capital were paid in the same priority.
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On May 27, 2010, in connection with the acquisition of the Resid Inn property, the REIT JV Member issued a promissory note in favor of the Moody JV Member in the

aggregate principal amount of $200,000. The entire principal amount of the promissory note and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon was due and payable in full on May 27, 2011. On
June 9, 2011, the REIT JV Member and the Moody JV Member entered into an amendment to the promissory note, effective as of June 3, 2011, that extended the maturity date of the
promissory note for an additional year to May 27, 2012. The unpaid principal amount of the promissory note bore interest at a rate of 1.25% per annum. The entire principal amount of
the promissory note and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon was paid in full on May 27, 2012.

Hyatt Place Note

On June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, we acquired a joint venture interest in the Hyatt Place note, which was issued by Moody National HP Grapevine Trust, a
Delaware statutory trust established by affiliates of our sponsor, or the trust. We acquired the Hyatt Place note through our joint venture, MNHP Note Holder, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, or the note joint venture. Under the terms of the operating agreement for the note joint venture, our operating partnership mmally owned an appmxxmately 73.5%
membership interest in the note joint venture and certain holders of ownership interests in the trust, or the trust bers, initially collectively owned an ap 1y 12.5%
membership mterest in the note ]omt venture. As of December 31, 2012, our operating partnership had made additional capital contributions to the note joint venture, as a result of
which our op ip’s bership interest in the note joint venture increased to 74.5% and the coliective membership interest in the note joint venture of the trust members
has decreased to 11 5%. Asof’ December 31, 2012 Moody National Mortgage Corporation, or Moody National Mortgage, an affiliate of our sponsor, owned an approximately 14%
membership interest in the note joint venture, which Moody National Mortgage received as consideration for providing a guaranty of the note joint venture's obligations under the

acquisition note.

Pursuant to the terms of the note joint venture agreement, Moody National Mortgage is entitled to receive approximately 14% of all distributions of cash from operations of the
note joint venture and our operating partnership and the other joint venture members are entitled to receive the remaining approximately 86% of distributions of cash from operations of
the note joint venture in proportion to their respective membership interests in the joint venture. The note joint venture agreement provides that cash p ds from a sale,
refinancing or other disposition of the Hyatt Place note will be distributed as follows: (1} first, to each member of the note joint venture in proportion to their respective unreturned
capital contributions to the note joint venture until each member’s unreturned capital contributions have been reduced to zero; (2) second, to Moody National Mortgage until Moody
National Mortgage has been distributed an amount equal to approximately 14% of all distributions made to all members of the note joint venture (inclusive of all prior distributions); and
(3) thereafter, approximately 14% to Moody National Mortgage and approximately 86% to our operating partnership and the other note joint venture members in proportion to their
respective membership interests in the note joint venture. In addition, so long as Moody National Mortgage or Moody National Management, L.P., an affiliate of our sponsor, or
Moody National M: has any ding guaranty of any indebtedness of the note joint venture, (1) our operating pannershlp will in good faith consult with Moody
National Mortgage and ider any proposals or dations of Moody National Mortgage regarding any possible refi of indebted on the Hyatt Place note or any
sale of the Hyatt Place note and (2) any sale of the Hyatt Place note will require the consent of Moody Natlonal Mongage, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Pursuant
to the joint venture agreement, no member of the note joint venture may transfer all or part of its membership interest in the note joint venture without the prior written consent of our
operating partnership.

Our Relationships with our Advisor and our Sponsor

Our advisor, Moody National Advisor I, LLC, supervises and manages our day-to-day operations and selects our real property i and real estate-related
investments, subject to the oversight by our board of directors. Our advisor also provides marketing, sales and client services on our behalf. Our advisor was formed in January 2008
and is indirectly owned by our sponsor, Moody National REIT Sponsor, LLC. Mr. Moody, our Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President, also serves as the Chief
Executive Officer of our sponsor and our advisor. All of our officers and directors, other than our independent directors, are officers of our advisor and serve, and may serve in the
future, other affiliates of our advisor.

Fees and Expense Reimbursements Paid to our Advisor

Pursuant to the advisory agreement with our advisor, we pay our advisor or its affiliates the fees described below.

L] We pay our advisor an acquisition fee equal to 1.5% of (I) the cost of investments we acquxre directly or (2) our cost of inv quired in a joint
venture, in each case includi 1 price, P and any debt attr le to such investments. With respect to investments in and origination of
real estate-related loans, we w1|l pay an origination fee to our advisor in lieu of an acquisition fee. As of December 31, 2012, we had paid an acquisition fee of $180,000
to our advisor in connection with the acquisition of the Woodlands property. Our advisor waived its acquisition fee in connection with the acquisition of both the
Residence Inn property and the Hyatt Place note.
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‘We pay our advisor an origination fee equal to 1.5% of the amount funded by us to acquire or originate real estate-related loans, i third party exp related
to such investments and any debt we use to fund the acquisition or origination of the real estate-related loans. We will not pay an acquisition fee with respect to such
real estate-related loans. As of December 31, 2012, we had not paid our advisor any origination fees.

‘We pay our advisor an annual asset management fee that is payable monthly in an amount equal to one-twelfth of 1.0% of the sum of the aggregate cost (before non-
cash reserves and depreciation) of all assets we own and of our investments in joint ventures at month end. For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012, we
incurred $137,041 and $33,303 in asset management fees payable to our advisor, respectively,

We pay our advisor a debt financing fee equal to 1.0% of the amount available under any loan or line of credit we obtain and use to acquire properties or other
permitted investments, whnch will be in addition to the acquisition fee paid to our advisor. Our advisor may pay some or all of such debt financing fees to third parties
if it sub to fi ing for us. We will not pay a debt financing fee with respect to (1) the refinancing of a real estate asset already refinanced for
which our advisor received a fee and (2) loan proceeds from any line of credit until such time as we have invested all net offering proceeds. As of December 31, 2012,
we had not paid our advisor any debt financing fees due to the fact that our advisor waived its debt financing fee in connection with the financing of the Residence
Inn property and the Hyatt Place note.

If our advisor provides 2 substantial amount of services in connection with the sale of a property or other investment, we will pay our advisor a disposition fee of
3.0% of the contract sales price, which may be in addition to real estate commissions paid to an unaffiliated party, provided that the total real estate commissions
(including the disposition fee) paid to all parties does not exceed 6.0% of the contract sales price of each property sold. With respect to a property held in a joint
venture, the foregoing commission will be reduced to a p ge of such reflecting our ic interest in the joint venture. As of December 31, 2012, we
had not paid our advisor any disposition fees.

Where we engage Moody National Hospitality Management, LLC as our property manager, we pay Moody National Hospitality M LLC a market-based
property management fee in connection with the operation and management of properties. As of December 31, 2012, we had paid Moody National Hospitality
Management, LLC management fees of $13,102 and accounting fees of $2,500.

In addition to the fees we pay to our advisor pursuant to the advisory agreement, we also reimburse our advisor for the following costs and expenses:

Ll

Our organization and offering costs are incurred by our advisor on our behalf. Pursuant to our advisory agreement with our advisor, we are obligated to reimburse our
advisor or its affiliates, as applicable, for organization and offering costs incurred by our advisor on our behalf assomated with a public offering, but only to the extent
that such reimbursements do not exceed actual expenses incurred by our advisor and would not cause sales i the dealer fee and other
organization and offering costs borne by us to exceed 15.0% of gross offering proceeds from the sale of our shares in our public offering as of the date of
reimbursement. Within 60 days of the last day of a month in which a public offering ends, our advisor is obligated to reimburse us to the extent organization and
offering costs (including sales ions and dealer fees) incurred by us in the completed public offering exceed 15.0% of the gross offering proceeds
from the sale of our shares of stock in such completed public offering. As of December 31, 2012, total offering costs were $4,132,374 for the initial public
offering and $746,040 for the follow-on offering. Organization costs were $28,083 for the initial public offering. Offering costs of $946,944 and $184,570 were incurred
directly by us for the initial and follow-on offerings, respectively. We have reimbursed our advisor for $28,083 in organization costs and $742,134 in offering costs for
the initial public offering and $583,324 in offering costs for the follow-on offering. We have a $481,801 receivable from our advisor for offering costs, which is recorded
as an offset to additional paid-in capital. The remaining $2,903,243 in offering costs is not a liability of ours because such costs exceed the 15% limit described above.
Our initial public offering terminated on October 12, 2012. Pursuant to the advisory agreement, within 60 days following the last day of the month in which the initial
public offering terminates, our advisor must reimburse us to the extent that the organization and offering costs borne by us in connection with the initial public
offering exceed the 15% of the gross offering proceeds to us from our initial public offering. Organization and offering costs borne by us in connection with the initial
public offering did not exceed 15% of the gross offering proceeds to us from our initial public offering.

61




Filer: Moody National Form Type: 10-K Period: 12/31/12 Job Number: q13-00480 Rev: -NOT DEFINED- Seguence: 65

Submission:
831@quality

Document Name: mnrt-10k_123112.htm Saved: Printed: 3/29/2013 16:11:35
Description: Annuat Report -NOT DEFINED- Created using EDGARIizerAgent

o0

o0

We will reimburse our advisor for all operating expenses paid or mcurred by our adv:sor in connection with the services provided to us, subject to the limitation that
we will not reimburse our advisor for any amount by which our op luding the asset fee) at the end of the four preceding fiscal
quarters exceeds the greater of: (1) 2% of our average invested assets, or (2) 25% of our net income determined without reduction for any additions to reserves for
depreciation, bad debts or other similar non-cash reserves and excluding any gain from the sale of our assets for that period, or the 2%/25% hmltanon
Notwithstanding the above, we may reimburse our advisor for operatmg expenses in excess of this limitation if a majority of the independ: ines that
such excess expenses are justified based on unusual and non-recurring factors. For the four fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012, our total operating expenses
were $970,563, which included $138,278 in operati p incurred directly by us and $832,285 incurred by our advisor on our behalf. Of the $970,563 in tota]
operating expenses incurred during the four fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012, $599,681 ded the 2%/25% limitation and is not our obli Such excess
amount may be reimbursed to our advisor by us in the future upon approval by our board of directors. Additionally, our advisor has incurred $2,490,553 in operating
expenses on our behalf prior to the four fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012. Subject to a future determination by our board of directors, this amount is not
reimbursable to our advisor nor an obligation of ours. Qur advisor waived all expenses reimbursable to it for the seven fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012. Our
advisor further acknowledged that all expenses incurred directly by us and incurred by our advisor on our behalf during the waiver period shall be paid by our advisor
on behalf of us. Total reimbursable expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 our total operating expenses as a percentage of average invested assets and net
income were 1.0%.

We reimburse our advisor for acquisition expenses incurred related to the selection and acquisition of real property investments and real estate-related investments.
As of December 31, 2012, we had not reimbursed our advisor for any acquisition expenses.

Qur advisory agreement has a one-year term expiring April 15, 2013, subject to an unlimited number of successive one-year renewals upon mutual consent of the parties. We
may terminate the advisory agreement without cause or penalty upon 60 days’ written notice and immediately for cause or upon the bankruptey of our advisor. If we terminate the
advisory agreement, we will pay our advisor all unpaid reimbursements of expenses and all earned but unpaid fees.

Selling Commissions and Fees Paid to our Dealer Manager

The dealer manager for our offering of common stock is Moody Securities, LLC, a2 wholly owned subsidiary of our sponsor. Our dealer manager is a licensed broker-dealer
registered with FINRA. As the dealer manager for our offering, Moody Securities is entitled to certain dealer manager fees, selling and b relating to our
offering. Our dealer manager agreement with Moody Securities provides for the following compensation:

o0

o0

o

We pay our dealer manager sellmg commissions of up to 6.5% of the gross offering proceeds from the sale of our shares in our continuous public offering, all of which
may be dtop broker-dealers. No sellmg commissions are paid for sales pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan. As of December 31, 2012,
‘we had paid our dealer manager $890,784 in selling commissions.

We pay our dealer manager a dealer manager fee of 3.5% of the gross offering proceeds from the sale of our shares in our continuous public offering, a portion of
which may be reallowed to p broker-dealers. No dealer fees are paid for sales pursuant to our distribution rei plan. As of D ber 31,
2012, we had paid our dealer manager $230,780 in dealer manager fees.

We reimt the dealer and participating broker-dealers for bona fide due diligence expenses of up to 0.5% of the gross offering proceeds from the sale of
our shares in our continuous public offenng, mcludmg shares sold pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan. These due diligence expenses will not include legal
fees or expenses or out-of-pocket exp din ion with soliciting broker dealers to participate in our continuous public offering, and we have the right
to require detailed and § di s for any such exp We will also reimt our dealer for legal fees and expenses, travel, food and lodging for

ployees of the dealer sponsor training and education meetings, attendance fees and expense reimbursements for broker-dealer sponsored conferences,
attendance fees and expenses for industry sponsored conferences, and informational seminars, subject to the limitations inctuded in our dealer
As of December 31, 2012, our dealer manager had incurred no such expenses.

'8
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Approval of Related Party Transactions

Qur board of di including our ind dent di has ined the mateml terms, factors and ci ur ding the ions and
described above. On the basis of such exammat:on, our board of di including our i has determined that such t ions are fair and
on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffiliated third pames.

)

to us and

Conflict Resolution Procedures

As discussed above, we are subject to potential conflicts of interest arising out of our relationship with our advisor and its affiliates. These conflicts may relate to
ar the allocation of investment opportunities, the terms and conditions on which various transactions might be entered into by us and our advisor or its
affi hates and other situations in which our interests may differ from those of our advisor or its affiliates. We have adopted the procedures set forth below to address these potential
conflicts of interest.

Priority Allocation of I Opp itie

Our advisor has agreed that we will have the first opportunity to acquire any investment in an income-producing retail property identified by our sponsor or advisor that meets
our investment criteria for which we have sufficient uninvested funds. Our advisor will make this determination in good faith. Our board of di including the ind d
directors, has a duty to ensure that the method used by our advisor for the allocation of the acquisition of real estate assets by two or more affiliated programs seeking to acquire similar
types of real estate assets is reasonable and is applied fairly to us.

Independent Directors
Our independent directors, acting as a group, will resolve potennal conflicts of i mlerest whenever they determine that the ise of i dent jud by the board of
directors or our advisor or its affiliates could reasonably be compromised. However, the i dent di may not take any action which, under Maryland law, must be taken by the

entire board of directors or which is otherwise not within their authority. The independent dxrectors as a group, are anthorized to retain their own legal and financial advisors. Among
the matters we expect the independent directors to review and act upon are:

off] the i ion, renewal or of our ag with our advisor and its affiliates, including the advisory agreement and the agreement with our dealer
manager;

o0 transactions with affiliates, including our directors and officers;

] awards under our long-term incentive plan; and

il pursuit of a potential liquidity event.
Compensation Involying Our Advisor and its Affiliates

Our ind dent di will eval at least annally whether the compensation that we contract to pay to our advisor and its affiliates is reasonable in relation to the
nature and qnalny of services performed and that such compensation is within the limits prescribed by our charter. The independent directors will supervise the performance of our
advisor and its affiliates and the compensation we pay to them to determine that the provisions of our compensation arrangements are being performed appropriately. This evaluation
will be based on the factors set forth below as well as any other factors deemed relevant by the independent directors:

o the quality and extent of the services and advice furnished by our advisor;

o] the amount of fees paid to our advisor in relation to the size, composition and performance of our investments;
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oD the success of our advisor in generating investment opportunities that meet our investment objectives;

oIl rates charged to other extemally advised REITs and similar investors by advisors performing similar services;

oIl additional revenues realized by our advisor and its affiliates through their relationship with us, whether we pay them or they are paid by others with whom we do
business;

ol the performance of our investments, including income, conservation and appreciation of capital, freq 'y of problem i and p in dealing with
distress situations; and

o0 the quality of our investments relative to the investments generated by our advisor for its own account.

The independent directors shall record these factors in the minutes of the meetings at which they make such evalnations.
Acquisitions, Leases and Sales Involving Affiliates

We will not acquire or lease real estate assets in which our advisor or its affiliates or any of our directors has an interest without a determination by a majority of the directors
not otherwise interested in the transaction (including a majority of the independent directors) that such transaction is fair and reasonable to us and at a price to us no greater than the
cost of the asset to our advisor or its affiliates or such director unless there is substantial justification for any amount that exceeds such cost and such excess amount is determined to
be reasonable. In no event will we acquire any property at an amount in excess of its appraised value as determined by an independent appraiser. We will not sell or lease real estate
assets to our advisor or its affiliates or to our directors unless, as required by our charter, a majority of the directors not otherwise interested in the transaction (including a majority of
the independent di d ine the transaction is fair and reasonable to us.

Mortgage Loans Involving Affiliates

Our charter prohibi!s us from investing in or making mortgage loans, inctuding when the transaction is with our advisor or our directors or any of their affiliates, unless an
independent expert appraises the underlying property. We must keep the appraisal for at least five years and make it available for inspection and duplication by any of our stockholders.
In addition, we must obtain a mortgagee’s or owner’s title i policy or as to the priority of the mortgage or the condition of the title. Our charter prohibits us from
making or investing in any mortgage loans that are subordinate to any hen or other indebtedness of our advisor, our directors or any of their affiliates.

Issuance of Options and Warrants to Certain Affiliates

Qur charter prohibits the issuance of options or warrants to purchase our common stock to our advisor, our directors or any of their affiliates (1) on terms more favorable than
we would offer such options or warrants to unaffiliated third parties or (2) in excess of an amount equal to 10.0% of our outstanding common stock on the date of grant.

Repurchase of Shares of Common Stock

Our charter prohibits us from paying a fee to our advisor or our directors or any of their affiliates in cc ion with our rep or ion of our stock.

Loans and Expense Reimbursements Involving Affiliates

We will not make any loans to our advisor or our directors or any of their affiliates except mortgage loans for which an appraisal is obtained from an ind d iser. In
addition, we will not borrow from these persons unless the independent directors approve the transaction as being fair, competitive and commercially reasonable, and no less favorable
to us than comparable loans between unaffiliated parties. These restrictions on loans will only apply to advances of cash that are commonly viewed as loans, as determined by the
board of directors. By way of example only, the prohibition on loans would not restrict advances of cash for legal expenses or other costs incurred as a result of any legal action for
which indemnification is being sought, nor would the prohibition limit our ability to ad p incurred by di or officers or our advisor or its affiliates.
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In addition, our directors and officers and our advisor and its affiliates will be entitled to reimbursement, at cost, for actual expenses incurred by them on behalf of us or joint
ventures in which we are a joint venture partner, subject to the limitation on reimt of operating exp to the extent that they exceed the 2%/25% limitation.

Director Independence

We have a four-member board of directors. One of our directors, Brett C. Moody, is affiliated with our sponsor and its affiliates, and we do not consider Mr. Moody to be an
independent director. The three remaining directors quahfy as “independent directors” as defined in our charter in 3t with the i of the North American Securities
A

ators A i ’s Si of Policy Regarding Real Estate Investment Trusts. Although our shares are not listed on any national securities exchange, our independent
directors are “independent” as defined by the New York Stock Exchange.

Our charter provides that a majority of the directors must be “independent directors.” As defined in our charter, an “independent director” is a person who is not, on the date
of determination, and within the last two years from the date of determination has not been, directly or indirectly, associated with our sponsor or our advisor by virtue of (1) ownership
of an interest in our sponsor, our advisor, or any of their affiliates, other than us; (2) employment by our sponsor, our advisor, or any of their affiliates; (3) service as an officer or
director of our sponsor, our advisor, or any of their affiliates, other than as one of our directors; (4) performance of services, other than as a director, for us; (5) servnce asa dlrector or
trustee of more than three real estate investment trusts organized by our sponsor or advised by our advisor; or (6) maintenance of a material bus or it hip with
our sponsor, our advisor, or any of their affiliates. A business or professional relationship is considered “material” if the aggregate gross revenue derived by the director from the
sponsor, the advisor, and their affiliates (excluding fees for serving as one of our directors or other REIT or real estate program organized or advised or managed by the advisor or its
affiliates) exceeds 5.0% of either the director’s annual gross revenue during either of the last two years or the director’s net worth on a fair market value basis. An indirect association
with the sponsor or the advisor shall include circumstances in which a director’s spouse, parent, child, sibling, mother- or father-in-law, son- or daughter-in-law, or brother- or sister-in-
law is or has been associated with the sponsor, the advisor, any of their affiliates, or with us. None of our independent directors face conflicts of interest because of affiliations with
other programs sponsored by our sponsor and its affiliates.

Currently Proposed Transactions

There are no currently proposed material transactions with related persons other than those covered by the terms of the agreements described above.
ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Deloitte & Touche, LLP, or Deloitte, served as our independent registered public accounting firm, and provided certain tax and other servxces to us, from January 15, 2008, the

date of our formation, to November 2010. On November 4, 2010, we and Deloitte mutually agreed to the ion of Deloitte’s as our independ g public
accounting firm upon the completion of Deloitte’s review of our interim condensed consolidated financial information as of and for the three and nine month periods ended September
30,2010. During 2011 and 2012, Deloitte provided tax and certain review services to us. The decision to change our independent regi d public ing firm was approved by the
audit committee of our board of directors. On November 8, 2010, the audit committee of our board of di pp d the of Panneil Kerr Forster of Texas, P.C., or PKF, as

our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2010 and 201 1. As discussed in Item 9 (Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on
Accounting and Financial Disclosure), PKF resigned as our auditor on February 8, 2012 and our audit committee appointed Frazier & Deeter, LLC, or Frazier & Deeter, as our new
independent auditor. On May 8, 2012, we engaged Frazier & Deeter to (1) serve as our independent registered public accounting firm for the 2012 fiscal year, (2) audit the 2012 financial
statements and (3) review the interim consolidated financial statements for 2012,

Pre-Approval Policies

The audit committee charter imposes a duty on the audit committee to pre-approve all auditing services performed for us by our independent auditors as well as all permitted
non-audit services in order to ensure that the provision of such services does not impair the auditors’ independence. In determining whether or not to pre-approve services, the audit
committee will consider whether the service is a permissible service under the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC. The audit i may, in its di ion, del to one
or more of its members the authority to pre-approve any audit or non-audit services to be performed by the independent auditors, provided any such approval is presented to and
approved by the full audit committee at its next scheduled meeting.
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All services rendered by Deloitte, PKF and Frazier & Deeter for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were pre-approved in accordance with the policies and procedures
described above.

Independent Regi: d Public A ting Firm Fees
Deloitte
The audit i iewed the audit and dit services performed by Deloitte, as well as the fees charged by Deloitte for such services. In its review of the non-audit

service fees, the audit committee considered whether the provision of such services is compatible with maintaining the independence of Deloitte. The aggregate fees billed to us by
Deloitte for professional accounting services for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are set forth in the table below.

2012 2011

PKF

The audit i iewed the audit and dit services performed by PKF, as well as the fees charged by PKF for such services. In its review of the non-audit service
fees, the audit committee considered whether the provision of such services is compatible with maintaining the independence of PKF. The aggregate fees billed to us by PKF for
professional accounting services for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are set forth in the table below.

2012 2011

e
Audu related fees
i i

Frazier & Deeter

The audit committee reviewed the audit and non-audit services performed by Frazier & Deeter, as well as the fees charged by Frazier & Deeter for such services. In its review of
the non-audit service fees, the audit idered whether the provision of such services is patible with mai the ind d of Frazier & Deeter. The aggregate
fees billed to us by Frazier & Deeter for professional accounting services for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are set forth in the table below.
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For purposes of the preceding tables, Deloitte’s, PKF’s and Frazier & Decter’s professional fees are classified as follows:

o0

oD

L]

o7}

Audit fees-—-These are fees for professmnal services performed for the audit of our annual financial statements, the required review of quarterly financial statements,
and other p; performed by independent auditors i m order for them to be able to form an opinion on our consolidated financial
statemcnls These fees also cover services that are normally provided by indep in ion with statutory and reg y filings or

538

Audit-related fees—These are fees for assurance and related services that traditionally are performed by independ ditors that are bly related to the

performance of the aundit or review of the financial such as due dili related to acquisitions and dispositions, attestation services that are not required
by statute or regulation, internal control reviews, and consultation concerning financial accounting and reporting standards.

Tax fees—These are fees for all professional services performed by p ional statf in our independent auditor’s tax division, except those services related to the

audit of our financial statements. These include fees for tax compliance, tax planning, and tax advice, including federal, state, and local issues. Services may also
include assistance with tax audits and appeals before the IRS and similar state and local agencies, as well as federal, state, and local tax issues related to due diligence.

All other fees—These are fees for any services not included in the above-described categories, including assistance with internal audit pians and risk assessments.
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PART IV

ITEM 15, Exhibits and Financial S Schedule

(@)

)
31

32

33

41

42

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report:

Financial Statement Schedules

See the Index to Ci lidated Financial S at page F-1 of this report.

The following fi ial hedule is included herein at pages F-17 through F-18 of this report:

Schedule III - Real Estate Assets and Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Exhibits

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Moody National REIT I, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-11 (No. 333-150612) and incorp d herein by

Bylaws of Moody National REIT I, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612) and incorp d herein by refe

Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws of Moody National REIT 1, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.3 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11
o. 333-150612) and i d herein by )

Form of Subscription Agreement (included as Appendix B to prospectus, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612))

Moody National REIT I, Inc. Distribution Reinvestment Plan (included as Appendix Cto p
5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612))

p incorp d by refe to Exhibit 4.2 to Pre-Effective Amendment No.

Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement among Moody National REIT 1, Inc., Moody National Operating Partnership I, L.P., Moody National Advisor I, LLC and
Moody Realty Company, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended June 30, 2009 and incorp d herein by

Limited P: of Moody National Op g Partnership I, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S H {No. 333-150612) and mcorporated herem by reference)}

Moody National REIT 1, Inc. 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. S to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11
(No. 333-150612) and i d herein by )

Moody National REIT ], Inc. A ded and R d Independent Directors Compensation Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 and incorp d herein by )

Dealer Manager Agreement (filed as Exhibit 1.1 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612) and incorporated
herein by reference)

MNHP Note Holder, LLC Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement, effective June 3, 2011, by and among Moody National Operating Partnership I, L.P_, Moody
National Mortgage Corporation and the other Members party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 9, 2011 (the “June 9th
Form 8-K™) and incorp d herein by )
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10.7 Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2011, by and between Patriot Bank and Moody National Realty Company, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the June 9th Form 8-K
and incorp d herein by

10.8 Assignment and Assumption of Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Moody National Realty Company, L.P.
and MNHP Note Holder, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the June 9th Form 8-K and i P d herein by
10.9 Renewal, Extension and Modification Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between MNHP Note Holder, LLC and Moody National HP

Grapevine Trust (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference)

10.10 Assignment of Notes and Liens, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Patriot Bank and MNHP Note Holder, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to
the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference)

10.11 Commercial Loan Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and among Patriot Bank, MNHP Note Holder, LLC, Moody National Realty
Company, L.P., Moody National Morigage Corporation, Moody National Management, L.P. and Brett C. Moody (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the June 9th Form 8-K and
incorporated herein by reference)

10.12 Promissory Note, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by MNHP Note Holder, LLC in favor of Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the June Sth Form 8-K
and i d herein by ref )

10.13 Collateral Assignment of Notes and Liens, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between MNHP Note Holder, LLC and Patriot Bank (filed as
Exhibit 10.8 to the June 9th Form 8-K)

10.14 Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Moody National Mortgage Corporation and Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.9
to the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference}

10.15 Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Moody National Realty Company, L.P. and Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.10
to the June 9th Form 8-K and i P d herein by ref )

10.16 Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Moody National Management, L.P. and Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to
the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference)

10.17 Limited Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Brett C. Moody and Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the June Sth
Form 8-K and incorp d herein by refé

10.18 Amendment to Promissory Note, effective June 3, 2011, by and between Moody National Perimeter REIT JV Member, LLC and Moody National RI Perimeter TO, LLC (filed as
Exhibit 10.13 to the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference)

10.19 Assignment and Assumption of Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 12, 2012, by and between Moody National Companies, LP and Moody National Wood-Hou Holding,
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 13, 2012)

10.20 Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 22, 2012, by and between Moody National Companies, LP and Woodlands Terrapin Investors I, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin Investors

11, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin Investors I, LLC, 537 Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC, Miriam Hotel Houston, LLC and Terrapin Operator Woodlands, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 13, 2012)
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10.21 First Amend to Purchase Agi dated as of April 6, 2012, by and between Moody National Companies, LP and Woodlands Terrapin Investors I, LLC, Woodlands
Terrapin I 11, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin I 111, LLC, 537 Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC Miriam Hotel Houston, LLC and Terrapin Operator
Woodlands, LLC (incorp d by ref¢ to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 13, 2012)

10.22 Agreement of Purchase and Sale, dated August 14, 2012, by and among Moody National RI Perimeter Holding, LLC, Moody National RI Perimeter Master Tenant, LLC and
6096 Barficld Road, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form8-K filed on August 20, 2012)

10.23 Fee and Exp Waiver Ag , dated September 28, 2012, by and among Moody National REIT 1, Inc., Moody National Operating Partership I, L.P., Moody National
Advisor 1, LLC and Moody National Realty Company, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14,
2012)

10.24 Hotel Lease Agreement, dated November 7, 2012, by and between Moody National Wood-Hou Holding, LLC and Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.25 Hote! Management Agreement, dated November 7, 2012, by and between Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC and Moody National Hospitality Management, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.26 Promissory Note, dated November 17, 2006, by Woodlands Terrapin Investors I, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin I 11, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin IIL LLC, 537
Houston, LLC, Maven Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC and Miriam Hotel Houston, LLC, in favor of ARCS C tal M Co.,LP.(i P i by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.27 Consent, Modification and Assumption Agreement With Release, dated November 7, 2012, by and among Woodlands Terrapin I, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin
Investors II, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin Investors I1I, 537 Houston, LLC, Maven Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC, Miriam Hotel Houston, LLC, Terrapin Operator
Woodlands, LLC, Moody Wood-Hou Holding, LLC, Moedy National REIT I, Inc., Moody National Operating Partnership I, L.P., Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC, Brett
C. Moody and U.S. Bank National A iation, as Trustee, In-Interest to Bank of America, N.A., as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National
Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.28 Deed of Trust and Security Agreement, dated November 17, 2006, by and among Woodlands Terrapin I 1, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin I 1I, LLC, Woodland
Terrapin Investors 111, 537 Houston, LLC, Maven Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC, Miriam Hotel Houston, LLC and ARCS Commercial Mortgage Co., L.P.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.29 Security Agreement, dated November 7, 2012, by Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC in favor of U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, Successor-In-Interest to Bank
of America, N.A., as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.30 Assignment of Leases and Rents, dated November 7, 2012, by Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC in favor of U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, Successor-In-
Interest to Bank of America, N.A,, as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase
Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-X filed on November 15, 2012)
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1031 Assi and Subordination of M: A dated Ni ber 7, 2012, by Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC and Moody National Hospitality

10.32

10.33

21

3L1
312
321

322

Management, LLC in favor of U.S. Bank Narional‘;‘ssociation, as Trustee, Successor-In-Interest to Bank of America, N.A., as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank
National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

Indemnity and Guaranty A dated N ber 7, 2012, by Moody Nationat REIT ], Inc., Moody National Operating Partnership 1, L.P. and Brett C. Moody in favor of
U.S. Bank National A iation, as Trustee, ~In-Interest to Bank of America, N.A., as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as
Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-
LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

Hi dous Sub Ind ity A dated November 7, 2012, by Moody National Wood-Hou Holding, LLC, Moody National REIT J, Inc., Moody National

Operating Partnership 1, L.P. and Brett C. Moody in favor of U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, Successor-In-Interest to Bank of America, N.A., as Trustee,
Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9,
Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 15, 2012)

Subsidiaries of the Company

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
MOODY NATIONAL REIT I, INC.
Date: March 29, 2013 By: /s/ Brett C. Moody

Brett C. Moody
Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title(s) Date
/s/ Brett C. Moody Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President March 29, 2013
Brett C. Moody (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Robert W. Engel Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary March 29, 2013
Robert W, Engel {Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ William H. Armstrong Director March 29, 2013

William H. Armstrong, Il

/s/ Charles L. Homn Director March 29, 2013
Charles L. Horn
/s/ John P. Thomgson Director March 29,2013
John P. Thompson

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION TO BE FURNISHED WITH REPORTS FILED PURSUANT TO SECTION 15(d) OF THE ACT BY REGISTRANTS WHICH HAVE NOT
REGISTERED SECURITIES PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE ACT.

The registrant has not sent an annual report or proxy materials to its stockholders. The registrant will furnish each stockholder with an annual report within 120 days following
the close of each fiscal year. The registrant will furnish copies of such report and proxy materials to the Securities and Exchange Commission when they are sent to stockholders.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Moody National REIT 1, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-11 (No. 333-150612) and incorporated herein by reference)

32 Bylaws of Moody National REIT I, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612) and i P d herein by refé )

33 Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws of Moody National REIT I, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.3 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11
(No. 333-150612) and incorp d herein by refe

4.1 Form of Subscription Agreement (included as Appendix B to prospectus, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612))

42 Moody National REIT I, Inc. Distribution Reinvestment Plan (included as Appendix C to prosp incorp d by to Exhibit 4.2 to Pre-Effective Amendment No,
5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612))

10.1 Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement among Moody National REIT 1, Inc., Moody National Operating Partnership 1, L.P., Moody National Advisor I, LLC and
Moody Realty Company, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 and d herein by refe

10.2 Limited Partnership Agreement of Moody National Operating Partnership 1, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612) and incorp d herein by )

103 Moody National REIT I, Inc. 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11
(No. 333-150612) and incorp d herein by refe

10.4 Moody National REIT I, Inc. Amended and Restated Independent Directors Comp ion Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 and i P d herein by

10.5 Dealer Manager Agreement (filed as Exhibit 1.1 to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (No. 333-150612) and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.6 MNHP Note Holder, LLC Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement, effective June 3, 2011, by and among Moody National Operating Partnership 1, L.P., Moody

National Mortgage Corporation and the other Members party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 9, 2011 (the “June Sth
Form 8-K”) and incorporated herein by reference)

10.7 Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2011, by and between Patriot Bank and Moody National Realty Company, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the June 9th Form 8-K

and incory d herein by r

10.8 Assignment and Assumption of Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Moody National Realty Company, L.P.
and MNHP Note Holder, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference)

10.9 Renewal, Extension and Modification Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between MNHP Note Holder, LLC and Moody National HP
Grapevine Trust (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the June 9th Form 8-K and incorp d herein by )

10.10 Assignment of Notes and Liens, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Patriot Bank and MNHP Note Holder, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to
the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference)

73




Filer: Moody National Form Type: 10-K Period: 12/31/12 Job Number: q13-00480 Rev: -NOT DEFINED- Sequence: 77

Submission: Document Name: mnrt-10k_123112.htm Saved: Printed: 3/29/2013 16:11:35
831@quality Description: Annual Report ~NOT DEFINED- Created using EDGARizerAgent
10.11 Commercial Loan Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and among Patriot Bank, MNHP Note Holder, LLC, Moody National Realty

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

i0.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

1022

Company, L.P., Moody National Mortgage Corporation, Moody National Management, L.P. and Brett C. Moody (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the June 9th Form 8-K and
incorporated herein by reference)

Promissory Note, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by MNHP Note Holder, LLC in favor of Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the June 9th Form 8-K
and incorp d herein by reft

Collateral Assignment of Notes and Liens, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between MNHP Note Holder, LLC and Patriot Bank (filed as
Exhibit 10.8 to the June 9th Form 8-K)

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Moody National Mortgage Corporation and Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.9
to the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference)

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Moody National Realty Company, L.P. and Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.10
to the June 9th Form 8-K and incorp d herein by refe )

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Moody National Management, L.P. and Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to
the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference)

Limited Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011 and effective as of May 5, 2011, by and between Brett C. Moody and Patriot Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the June 9th
Form 8-K and incorp d herein by ref )

Amendment to Promissory Note, effective June 3, 2011, by and between Moody National Perimeter REIT JV Member, LLC and Moody National RI Perimeter TO, LLC (filed as
Exhibit 10.13 to the June 9th Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference)

Assif and A ption of Purchase Ag dated as of April 12, 2012, by and between Moody National Companies, LP and Moody National Wood-Hou Holding,
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8K filed on April 13, 2012)

Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 22, 2012, by and between Moody National Companies, LP and Woodlands Terrapin Investors I, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin Investors
11, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin Investors III, LLC, 537 Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC, Miriam Hote! Houston, LLC and Terrapin Operator Woodlands, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 13, 2012)

First Amend to Purchase Ag , dated as of April 6, 2012, by and between Moody National C ies, LP and Woodlands Terrapin I I, LLC, Woodland
Terrapin I 11, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin I 111, LLC, 537 Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC Miriam Hotel Houston, LLC and Terrapin Operator
Woodlands, LLC (incorp d by to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 13, 2012)

Agreement of Purchase and Sale, dated August 14, 2012, by and among Moody National RI Perimeter Holding, LLC, Moody National RI Perimeter Master Tenant, LLC and
6096 Barfield Road, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant”s Current Report on Form8-K filed on August 20, 2012)
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10.23 Fee and Exp Waiver Agr , dated September 28, 2012, by and among Moody National REIT 1, Inc., Moody National Operating Partnership I, L.P., Moody National
Advisor I, LLC and Moody National Realty Company, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14,
2012)

10.24 Hotel Lease Agreement, dated November 7, 2012, by and between Moody National Wood-Hou Holding, LLC and Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8- filed on November 15, 2012)

10.25 Hotel Management Agreement, dated November 7, 2012, by and between Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC and Moody National Hospitality M: LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.26 Promissory Note, dated November 17, 2006, by Woodlands Terrapin Investors I, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin I 11, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin I NI, LLC, 537
Houston, LLC, Maven Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC and Miriam Hotel Houston, LLC, in favor of ARCS C ial Mortgage Co., L.P. (incorp d by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8- filed on November 15, 2012)

10.27 Consent, Modification and Assumption Agreement With Release, dated November 7, 2012, by and among Woodlands Terrapin 1, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin
I 11, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin I 111, 537 Houston, LLC, Maven Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC, Miriam Hotel Houston, LLC, Terrapin Operator

Woodlands, LLC, Moody Wood-Hou Holding, LLC, Moody National REIT 1, Inc., Moody National Operating Partnership I, L.P., Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC, Brett
C. Moody and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, Successor-In-Interest to Bank of America, N.A., as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National
Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.28 Deed of Trust and Security Agreement, dated November 17, 2006, by and among Woodlands Terrapin Investors I, LLC, Woodlands Terrapin I 11, LLC, Woodland:
Terrapin Investors HI, 537 Houston, LLC, Maven Houston, LLC, Marc Hotel Houston, LLC, Miriam Hotel Houston, LLC and ARCS Commercial Mortgage Co., L.P.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.29 Security Agreement, dated November 7, 2012, by Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC in favor of U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, Successor-In-Interest to Bank
of America, N.A., as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8K filed on November 15, 2012)

10.30 Assignment of Leases and Rents, dated November 7, 2012, by Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC in favor of U.S. Bank National A iation, as Trustee, -In-
Interest to Bank of America, N.A., as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase
Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

1031 Assi and Subordination of Manag, Ag , dated N 7, 2012, by Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC and Moody National Hospitality
Management, LLC in favor of U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, Successor-In-Interest to Bank of America, N.A., as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank
National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

75




Filer: Moody National Form Type: 10-K Period: 12/31/12 Job Number: q13-00480 Rev: -NOT DEFINED- Sequence: 79

Submission: Document Name: mart-10k_123112 htm Saved: Printed: 3/29/2013 16:11:35
631@quality Description: Annual Report -NOT DEFINED- Created using EDGARizerAgent
1032 Indemnity and G Agr dated November 7, 2012, by Moody National REIT 1, Inc., Moody National Operating Partnership I, L.P. and Brett C. Moody in favor of

U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, Successor-In-Interest to Bank of America, N.A., as Trustee, Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as
Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-
LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2012)

1033 Hazardous Sub Indemnity Ag) dated N ber 7, 2012, by Moody National Wood-Hou Holding, LLC, Moody National REIT J, Inc., Moody National
Operating Partnership I, L.P. and Brett C. Moody in favor of U.S. Bank National A iation, as Trustee, S In-Interest to Bank of America, N.A., as Trustee,
Successor by Merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9,
Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-X filed on
November 15, 2012)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Moody National REIT 1, Inc.
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Moody National REIT I, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of D« ber 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related

d of i equity, and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. In connection with our audits of the
we have also audited the ﬁnanc:al statement schedules as listed in the accompanying index. These lidated financial and financial hedules are the
ibility of the Company's Our ibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lidated financial are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged
to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal corm'ol over fi nancml Teporting. Accordmgly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the and di in the the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by as well as evaluating the overal! financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such lidated financial referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financiat posmon of the Company as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with g principles ly pted in the United States of America. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial hedules, when idered in relation to the basic lidated financial taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the

information set forth therein.
/s/Frazier & Deeter, LLC
Frazier & Deeter, LLC

Atlanta, Georgia
March 29,2013
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MOODY NATIONAL REIT L, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2012 2011

ASSETS

1,066,890

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
gisi9304 ¢
179,846

s

{he Operating Pactnership

67 equity: : S

o1ders” A L : ;
Common stock, $0.01 par value per share; 400,000,000 shares authorized, 1,373,279 and 576,377 shares issued and outstanding at

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MOODY NATIONAL REIT [, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years ended December 31,
2012 2011

Revenue

wwsks

11,974 —

) (jﬂxer hotel revenue

Interest income from note receivable

658,268 383,413
e

B
Expen
Hotel operating expenses

S
O S 09

%Qcomrolling interest from consolidated joint ventures

i

422,872

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MOODY NATIONAL REIT §, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
Years ended December 31,2012 and 2011

Noncontrolling Interest

in Operating
Common Stock 0 Preferred Stock [0 Additional Partnership Noncontrolling
Number Number Paid-In Accumulated  Number Interest in Total
of Shares  Par Value [ of SharesO Par Value Capital Deficit of Units Value Joint Venture Equity

P

] anvary 1,20/
Issuance of common steck and
operating partnership units, net of

inleres!

Balance at December 31, 2011 576377 $ 5764 0 —M§  — $4885131 §  (803,717) 100 5 884 § 1049257 55137349
Balance at Tomiany 1 sy s s s

Tssuance of common stock and

operating partnership units, net of
offering cost
{ g cost

stock p
to dividend reinvestment plan
Compersation pl

ted
Stock/unit-based }:ompensation )

Dividends anq
declare

See ying notes to cor d financial
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MOODY NATIONAL REIT I, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011

- Changes in operating assets and liabilities -
i

R

91381 $§ 37 765

) Dwndends payable

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Moody National REIT l lnc.
Notes to Consolidated Fi
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

1. Organization

Moody National REIT 1, Inc. (the “Company”) was formed on January 15, 2008, as a Maryland corporation and has elected to qualify as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”)
commencing with the year ended December 31, 2011. The Company was organized to acquire a diverse portfolio of real properties, primarily in the hospitality sector, as well as other
commercial properties, real estate securities and debt-related investments. As discussed in Note 6, the Company was initially capitalized with the sale of shares of its common stock to
Moody National REIT Sponsor, LLC (“Sponsor”) on February 19, 2008. The Company's fiscal year end is December 31.

On May 2, 2008, the Company filed a registration statement on Form S-11 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) to offera maxm\nm of $1, 000 000,000 in
shares of its common stock to the public in its primary offering and up to $100,000,000 in shares of its common stock to its stockholders p to its distrit plan
(the “DRIP”). On April 15, 2009, the SEC declared the Company’s registration statement effective and the Company commenced its mmal public offering. The Company offered shares to
the public in its primary offering at a price of $10.00 per share, with discounts available for certain purchasers, and to its stockholders pursuant to the DRIP at a price of $9.50 per share.
On October 12, 2012, the Company terminated its initial public offering and commenced its follow-on public offering (discussed below). As of October 12, 2012, the Company had
accepted subscriptions for, and issued, 1,126,253 shares of its common stock in its initial public offering, including 29,580 shares of stock p to the DRIP, in
offering proceeds of $10,966,713.

Prior to the termination of the initial public offering, on February 14, 2012, the Company filed a registration statement on Form S-11 with the SEC to register a following-on
public offering of up to $1,000,000,000 in shares of the Company’s common stock. In the follow-on offering the Company is offering up to $900,000,000 in shares of the Company’s
common stock to the public and up to $100,000,000 in shares of the Company’s stock to its stockhold to the DRIP. On October 12, 2012, the follow-on offering was
declared effective by the SEC and the Company terminated its initial public offering and commenced the fol]ow—on offering. As of December 31, 2012, the Company had accepted
subscriptions for, and issued, 1,317,307 shares of common stock in the Companys initial public offering and follow-on offering, including 36,065 shares of common stock pursuant to
the DRIP, resulting in aggregate offering proceeds of $12,812,414.

1 thold

The Company is offering shares to the public in the follow-on offering at a price of $10.00 per share, with discounts available for certain p and to its
pursuant to the DRIP at a price of $9.50 per share. The Company's board of directors may change the price at which the Company offers shares to the public in the follow-on offering
from time to time during the follow-on offering, but not more frequently than quarterly, to reflect changes in the Company’s estimated per-share net asset value and other factors the
Company’s board of directors deems relevant.

On February 8, 2012, the Company was required to temporarily suspend its initial public offering due to the fact that the Company’s previous auditors, Pannell Kerr Forster of
Texas, P.C., notified the Company that they coutd not be considered independent for the 2009, 2010 and 2011 ﬁscal years The Company subsequently engaged Frazier & Deeter, LLC to
audit the Company’s 2009, 2010 and 2011 lidated financial and to review its 2011 interim The Company d its initial public
offering on March 13, 2012.

The Company intends to use substantially all of the net proceeds from its public offerings to acquire a diversified portfolio of real properties, real estate securities and debt-
related investments. The Company’s real property will consist primarily of hotel properties located in the United States and Canada that it owns exclusively or in joint ventures or other
co-ownership arrangements with other persons. The Company may also invest in other property types consisting of mulifamily, office, retail and industrial assets located in the United
States and Canada as well as securities of real estate panies and debt-related inv . The Company may also make opportunistic investments in properties that may be under-
developed or newly d and in properties that we believe are undervalued.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s portfolio consisted of (1) a 74.5% joint venture interest in a mortgage note (the “Hyatt Place Note™) secured by a hotel property
located in Grapevine, Texas, commonty known as the Hyatt Place Grapevine hotel (the “Hyatt Place Property”) and (2) a 91-suite hotel property located in The Woodlands, Texas,
commonly known as the Homewood Suites by Hilton - Woodlands (the “Woodlands Property™). The Company began operations on May 27, 2010 with the acquisition of a 75% joint
venture interest in a hotel property located in Atlanta, Georgia commonly known as the Residence Inn by Marriot Perimeter Center (the “Residence Inn Property”). The Company sold
the Residence Inn Property to a third-party buyer on August 23, 2012.
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Moody National REIT 1, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial St
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

The Company’s advisor is Moody National Advisor I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Advisor”) and an affiliate of Sponsor. Subject to certain restrictions and
limitations, Advisor is responsible for ing the Company’s affairs on a day-to-day basis and for identifying and making acquisitions and investments on behalf of the Company
pursuant to an amended and restated advisory agreement (the “Advisory Agreement”) by and among the Company, Moody National Operating Partnership I, L.P., the Company’s
operating partnership (the “OP”), and Advisor.

Substantially all of the Company’s business is conducted through the OP. The Company is the sole general partner of the OP. The initial limited partners of the OP are Moody
National LPOP I, LLC (“Moody LPOP”) and Moody OP Holdings I, LLC (“Moody Holdings”), each an affiliate of the Sponsor. Moody LPOP invested $1,000 in the OP in exchange for
common units and Moody Holdings invested $1 000 in the OP in exchange for a separate class of limited partnership units (the “Special Units”). As the Company accepts subscriptions
for shares of its stock, it ially all of the net proceeds of its public offering to the OP as a capital contribution.

The OP’s partnership agreement provides that the OP will be operated in a manner that will enable the Company to (1) satisfy the requirements for being classified as a REIT for
tax purposes, (2) avoid any federal income or excise tax liability and (3) ensure that the OP will not be classified as a “publicly traded partnership” for purposes of Section 7704 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Internal Revenue Code™), which classification could result in the OP being taxed as a corporation rather than as a partnership. In
addition to the administrative and operating costs and expenses incurred by the OP in acquiring and operating real estate assets, the OP will pay all of the Company’s administrative
costs and expenses, and such expenses will be treated as expenses of the OP. The common units of the OP may be tendered for redemption once they have been outstanding for at least
one year. At such time, the Company has the option to redeem the common units for shares of the Company’s common stock, cash or a combination thereof at the Company’s sole
discretion. The Special Units will be redeemed pursuant to the OP’s partnership agreement upon the termination or nonrenewal of the Advisory Agreement or upon certain other events
outside of the control of the Special Unit holder. Upon the termination or nonrenewal of the Advisory Agreement by the Company for “cause” (as defined in the Advisory Agreement)
all of the Special Units will be redeemed for $1.00. As described in more detail in Note 8, upon the occurrence of any of the events outside of the control of the Special Unit holder which
trigger redemption of the Special Units, the Special Units will be redeemed, at the Advisor’s option, for shares of the Company’s stock, a non-interest bearing issory note
payable solely from the proceeds of assets sales, or a combination thereof.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The Company p its lidated financial with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) as outlined in the
Financial Accounting Standard Board's A ing dard: Codlﬁcauon (the “Codification” or “ASC”). The Codification is the single source of authoritative accounting principles
applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP.

The Company’s lidated financial include its and the of its subsidiaries over which it has control. All intercompany profits, balances and
transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

The Company’s lidated financial include the of its consolidated subsidiaries When the Company is the primary beneficiary for entities deemed to be
variable interest entities (“VIEs”) through which the Company has a controlling interest. I in entities acquired are eval d based on GAAP, which requires the consolidation of

VIEs in which the Company is deemed to have the controlling financial interest. The Company has the controlling financial interest if the Company has the power to direct the activities
of the VIE that most significantly impact its economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses or receive benefits from the VIE that could be significant to the Company. If the
interest in the entity is determined not to be a VIE, then the entity is evaluated for consolidation based on legal form, economic substance, and the extent to which the Company has
control and/or substantive participating rights under the respective ownership agreement. The Company did not have a VIE interest as of December 31, 2012.
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There are judgr and esti involved in determining if an entity in which the Company has an investment is a VIE. The entity is evaluated to determine if it is a VIE by,
among other things, d ining if the equity i as a group have a controlling financial interest in the entity and if the entity has sufficient equity at risk to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support.

Use of Estimates
The p ion of fi ial in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
panying financial and notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Organization and Offering Costs

Organization and offering costs of the Company are incurred by Advisor on behaif of the Company. Pursuant to the Advisory Ag the Company is obli dto
reimburse Advisor or its affiliates, as applicable, for organization and offering costs incurred by Advisor associated with each of the Company’s public offerings, pmwded that within
60 days of the last day of the month in which a public offering ends, the Advisor is obligated to reimt the Company to the extent organization and offering costs incurred by the
Company in connection with the completed public offering exceed 15. 0% of the gross offering proceeds from the sale of the Company’s shares of common stock in the completed public
offering. Such organization and offering costs shall include selling jons and dealer fees paid to the dealer manager, legal, accounting, printing and other offering
expenses, including marketing, salaries and direct expenses of Advisor’s employees and employees of Advisor’s affiliates and others. Any reimbursement of Advisor or its affiliates for
organization and offering costs will not exceed actual expenses incurred by Advisor.

ded d

d as an

All offering costs, including selling issions and dealer fees, are as an offset to additional paid-i pital, and all organization costs are

expense when the Company has an obli to Advisor.

As of December 31, 2012, total offering costs were $4,132,374 for the initial public offering and $746,040 for the follow-on offering. Organization costs were $28,083 for the initial
public offering. Offering costs of $946,944 and $184,570 were incurred directly by the Company for the initial and follow-on offerings, respectively. The Company has reimbursed
Advisor for $28,083 in organization costs and $742,134 in offering costs for the initial public offering and $583,324 in offering costs for the follow-on offering. The Company has a
$481,801 receivable from Advisor for offering costs, which is recorded as an offset to additional paid-in capital. The remaining $2,903,243 in offering costs is not a liability of the
Company because such costs exceed the 15% limit.

Income Taxes

The Company has made an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Interal Revenue Code commencing with the taxable year ended December 31,
2011. Prior to qualifying to be taxed as a REIT, the Company was subject to normal federal and state corporation income taxes. The Company previously determined not to make an
election to qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code because it had a net operating loss for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 and had fewer than 100 stockholders
as of December 31, 2009 and 2010.

As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to federal corporate income tax to the extent it distributes its REIT taxable income to its stockholders, so long as it
distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable income (which is computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction or net capital gain and which does not necessarily equal net
income as calculated in accordance with GAAP). REITs are subject to a number of other organizational and operations requirements. Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as a
REIT, it may be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property, and federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income.

The Company leases the hotels it acquires to wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiaries that are subject to federal, state and local income taxes. The Company accoums for
income taxes using the asset and liability method under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax | attributable to diffe the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. The Company records a valuation allowance for net deferred tax assets that are not
expected to be realized.
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The Company has reviewed tax positions under GAAP guidance that clarifies the relevant criteria and app h for the ition and of in tax positi
The guidance prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial ition of a tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in 2 tax return. A tax
position may only be recognized in the financial statements if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be ined upon ination. The Company has no material uncertain

tax positions as of December 31, 2012.

The preparation of the Company’s various tax returns requires the use of estimates for federal and state income tax purposes. These estimates may be subjected to review by
the respective taxing authorities. A revision to an estimate may result in an assessment of additional taxes, penalties and interest. At this time, a range in which the Company’s estimates
may change is not expected to be material. The Company will account for interest and penalties relating to uncertain tax provisions in the current period results of operations, if
necessary. The Company has tax years 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 ining subject to ination by various federal and state tax jurisdictions.

Concentration of Credit Risk

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash deposited in certain financial institutions in excess of federally insured levels. The
Company diversifies its cash and cash equivalents with several banking institutions in an attempt to minimize exposure to any one of these institutions. The Company regularly
monitors the financial stability of these financial institutions and believes that it is not exposed to any significant credit risk in cash and cash equivalents or restricted cash.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk with respect to its joint venture interest in the Hyatt Place Note. As a significant investment of the Company, the failure of the

borrower on the Hyatt Place Note to make payments of interest and principal when due, or any other event of default under the Hyatt Place Note, would have an adverse impact on the
Company’s results of operations.

Valuation and Allocation of Real Property — Acquisition

Upon acquisition, the purchase price of real property is allocated to the tangible assets acquired, isting of land, buildings and tenant impr , any d debt,
identified intangible assets and asset retirement obligations based on their fair values. Identified intangible assets consist of above-market and below-market leases, in-place leases, in-
place contracts, tenant relationships and any goodwill or gain on purchase. Acquisition costs are charged to expense as incurred. Initial valuations are subject to change during the
measurement period, but the measurement period ends as soon as the information is available. The measurement period shall not exceed one year from the acguisition date.

The fair value of the tangible assets acqunred consists of land, buildi i fixtures and equip Land values are derived from appraisals, and buildings are
Iculated a I cost less d iation or the Company’s estimates of the relative fair value of these assets using d d cash flow analyses or similar methods. The value
of the building i is depreciated over the esumated useful life of thirty-nine years using the straight-line method. The value of furniture, fixtures and equipment is based on their fair value

using repk costs less d ion

The Company determines the fair value of assumed debt by calculating the net present value of the scheduled mortgage payments using interest rates for debt with similar
terms and remammg maturities that the Company believes the Company could obtain. Any difference between the fair value and stated value of the assumed debt is recorded as a
orp and ized over the ining life of the loan as interest expense.

In allocating the purchase price of each of the Company’s properties, the Company makes assumptions and uses various estimates, including, but not limited to, the estimated
useful lives of the assets, the cost of replacing certain assets, discount rates used to determine present values, market rental rates per square foot and the period required to lease the
property up to its occupancy at acquisition as if it were vacant Many of these estimates are obtained from independent third party appraisals. However, the Company is responsible for
the source and use of these esti These esti arej 1 and subject to being imprecise; accordingly, if different estimates and assumptions were derived, the valuation of
the various categones of the Company s real estate assets or related intangibles could in turn result in a difference in the depreciation or amortization expense recorded in the
Company’s i These variances could be material to the Company’s results of operations and financial condition.
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Valuation and Allocation of Real Property — Ownership
Depreciation or amortization expense are computed using the straight-line and accelerated methods based upon the following estimated useful lives:

Years

nd improvements

Impairments

For real estate the Company owns, the Company monitors events and changes in circumstances indicating that the carrying amounts of the real estate assets may not be
recoverable. When such events or changes in circumstances are present, the Company assesses potential impairment by comparing estimated future undiscounted operating cash flows
expected to be generated over the life of the asset and from its eventual disposition, to the carrying amount of the asset. In the event that the carrying amount exceeds the estimated
future undiscounted operating cash flows, the Company recognizes an impairment loss to adjust the carrying amount of the asset to estimated fair value for assets held for use and fair
value less costs to sell for assets held for sale. There were no such impairment losses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

In evaluating the Company’s investments for impairment, the Company makes several esti and i including, but not limited to, the projected date of
disposition of the properties, the estimated future cash flows of the properties during the Company’s and the projected sales price of each of the properties. A change in
these estimates and assumptions could result in a change in the estimated fair value of the Company’s propemes which could then result in an impairment or a material change to the
Company’s financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Hotel including room, food, b ge, and other ancillary revenues, are recognized as the related services are delivered. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed
and an allowance for potemlal credit losses is provided against the portion of accounts receivable that is estimated to be uncollectible. Interest income is recognized when earned.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand or held in banks and short-term investments with an initial maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes reserves for debt service and insurance, as well as reserves for property improvements and furniture, fixtures, and equipment, as required by certain
management or mortgage debt agreement restrictions and provisions. Restricted cash also includes cash collateral deposited with a bank related to a loan that may be used by the
Company toward the payments of principal and interest of the loan and any other amounts due under the loan in the event of default.

Valuation of Accounts Receivable

The Company takes into consideration certain factors that require judgments to be made as to the collectability of receivables. Collectability factors taken into consideration
are the amounts outstanding, payment history and financial strength of the tenant, which taken as a whole determines the valuation.

Morigage Note Receivable
The Company provides first-mortgage financing in the form of a note receivable. This loan is held for investment and is intended to be held to maturity and accordingly, is
recorded at cost and net of the allowance for losses when a loan is deemed to be impaired. Premiums, discounts, and net origination fees are amortized or accreted as an adjustment to

interest income using the effective interest method over the life of the loan. The Company discontinues recording interest and amortizing discounts/premiums when the contractual
payment of interest and/or principal is not received.
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Impaii of Note Receivabl

The Company reviews the note receivable for impairment in each reporting period pursuant to the applicable authoritative id: A loan is impaired when, based
on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts recorded as assets on the balance sheet ’I'he Company applies normal loan
review and underwriting dures (as may be imp} d or modified from time to time) in making that judgment.

When a loan is impaired, the C impairment based on the present value of expected cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate against the value

of the asset recorded on the balance sheet. ’f’he Company may also measure impairment based on a loan’s observable market price or the fair value of collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. If 2 loan is deemed to be 1mpa1red the Company records a valuation allowance through a charge to eamings for any shortfall. The Company’s assessment of impairment is

based on iderabl: and The Company did not record a valuation allowance during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses include prepaid property insurance. Other assets include a receivable from a third-party property management company.

Deferred Costs

Deferred costs consist of deferred financing fees and hotel franchise costs. The deferred financing fees are recorded at cost and are amortized to interest expense using a
straight-line method that approxn-nates the effecnve interest method over the life of the related debt. The franchise costs are recorded at cost and amortized over the term of the franchise

contract, A If of deferred costs was $20,564 and $49,125 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Expected future ization of deferred ing fees
and hotel franchise costs is as follows:

Years Ending
December 31

Total s 183219
Earnings (Loss) per Share

Eamings (loss) per share (“EPS”) is calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding dunng each penod Basic and diluted EPS are the same for all
periods presented. Non-vested shares of restricted stock, totaling 8,125 shares, held by the Company’s ind d are included in the calculation of earnings per share

because the effect is dilutive. Restricted stock was included in primary earnings per share because the restricted stock participates in dividends.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There are no new unimplemented accounting pronouncements that are expected to have a material impact on the Company’s results of operation, financial position or cash
flows.

3. Investment in Hotel Properties

Investments in hotel properties consisted of the following at December 31, 2012 and 2011:
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December 31,
2012 2011
= 0w
5,901,500

Buildings and improvements

Fimiture, fixtir quipment. e e
1518505

_Total cost

o

! - . G e L BB
Investment in hotel propemes net $ ll 942 238 § 7,028,732

On May 27, 2010, the Company acquired its joint venture interest in the Residence Inn Property through Moody National R1 Perimeter JV, LLC (the “Perimeter Joint Venture™).
The Company owned a 75% interest in the Perimeter Joint Venture through Moody National Perimeter REIT JV Member, LLC (the “Company JV Member™), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the OP. Moody National RI Perimeter TO, LLC (the *Moody JV Member”), a limited liability company wholly owned by Brett C. Moody, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, owned a 25% membership interest in the Perimeter Joint Venture. On May 27, 2010, Moody National RI Perimeter Holding, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Perimeter Joint
Venture (“RI Perimeter Holding™), acquired fee simple title to the Residence Inn Property by purchasing the interests held by twenty-seven tenant-in-common owners {collectively, the
“Seller”) for an aggregate purchase price of $7,350,000, comprised of a cash payment to the Seller of $2,350,000 and the assumption and modification of $5,000,000 of existing
indebtedness on the Residence Inn Property (as described in Note 5), plus closing costs, transfer taxes and certain payments to third parties in connection with fees incurred by the
Seller.

In ion with the isition of the Resid Inn Property, the Company formed Moody National RI Perimeter MT, Inc. (the “Residence Inn TRS”), a taxable REIT
subsidiary. The Company JV Member owned 75% of the outstanding equity interest of the Residence Inn TRS and Brett C. Moody owns 25% of the outstanding equity interest. Upon
the closing of the acquisition of the Residence Inn Property, Moody National RI Perimeter Master Tenant, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Residence Inn TRS (the “Residence
Inn Master Tenant”), entered into an op g lease to which RI Perimeter Holding leased the Residence Inn Property to the Residence Inn Master Tenant. The
Residence Inn Property was sold on August 23 2012 as descnbed in Note, 11, Discontinued Operations.

On November 8, 2012, Moody National Wood-Hou Holding, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the OP (“Moody Holding”), acquired fee simple title to the Woodlands
Property from third party sellers for an aggregate purchase price of $12,000,000, comprised of a cash payment to the sellers of $5,088,578 and the assumption and modification of an
existing mortgage loan secured by the Woodlands Property with a pnncxpal balance as of the closing date of $6,911,422 and an original principal amount of $7,500,000, plus closmg
costs. The purchase price of the Woodlands Property, excludi p was allocated o land, buildings and improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment in the
amounts of $2,460,000, $8,960,! 000 and $580,000, respectlvely Acquxsmons costs of $365,720 were i d and exp din ion with the acquisition of the Woodlands Property.
The Company has recognized approximately $437,000 in revenues and $354,000 in losses for the Woodlands Property since November 8, 2012. In connection with the acquisition of the
Woodlands Property, the Company formed a taxable REIT subsidiary (the “Woodlands TRS™). Upon the closing of the acquisition of the Woodlands Property, Moody National Wood-
Hou MT, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Woodlands TRS (the “Master Tenant”), entered into a Hotel Lease Agreement pursuant to which the Master Tenant leases the
Woodlands Property. Moody National Hospitality Management, LLC, an affiliate of the Company, the Woodlands Property p to a Hotel M; Ag; with
the Master Tenant.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is presented as if the Company acquired the Woodlands
Property on January 1, 2011 This information is not necessarily indicative of what the actual results of operations would have been had the Company completed the acquisition of the
‘Woodlands Property on January 1, 2011, nor does it purport to represent the Company’s future operations:

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011

B
264 737

Revente
Income from commumg opmtxons

381, e

b ! - : Lo Ll 306502
Net income per common share, basic and diluted $ 1.08 § 0.72
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4. Notes Receivable
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, notes receivable were $12,468,400 and $12,655,433, respectively.

On June 3, 2011 (the “Closing Date™), and effective as of May 5, 2011 (the “Effective Date”), the Company acquired a joint venture interest in the Hyatt Place Note pursuant to
the transaction described below. The Hyatt Place Note was issued by Moody National HP Grapevine Trust, a Delaware statutory trust (the “Trust”), in favor of Patriot Bank, a Texas
banking association (the *“Patriot Bank™), and is secured by a lien on the Hyatt Place Property. As of the Closing Date, the Hyatt Place Note had an outstanding principal balance of
$12,759,199.

On the Closing Date, the OP, Moody National Mortgage Corporation (“Moody National Mortgage™), an affiliate of the Sponsor controlled by Brett C. Moody, and certain of
the holders of ownership interests in the Trust (collectively, the “Trust Members,” and, together with the OP and Moody National Mortgage, the “Members”), entered into the limited
liability company agreement (the “Note Joint Venture Agreement”) of MNHP Note Holder, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Note Joint Venture”). On the Closing Date, the
Note Joint Venture acquired the Hyatt Place Note from Patriot Bank for an aggregate purchase price of $12,759,199, exclusive of closing costs. The Note Joint Venture financed the
payment of the purchase price for the Hyatt Place Note with (1) a capital contribution to the Note Joint Venture from the OP and the Trust Members, and (2) the proceeds of a loan from
Patriot Bank evidenced by a promissory note in the aggregate principal amount of $11,483,280 (the “Acquisition Note”). For additional information on the terms of the Acqguisition Note,
see Note 5. As of December 31, 2012, the OP’s membership interest in the Note Joint Venture was 74.5%, the Trust Members’ membership interest in the Note Joint Venture was 11.5%
and Moody National Mortgage’s membership interest in the Note Joint Venture was 14%.

On the Closing Date and effective as of the Effective Date, the Note Joint Venture and the Trust entered into a Renewal, Extension and Modification Agreement which
extended the maturity date of the Hyatt Place Note and amended the terms of the Hyatt Place Note. The entire unpaid principal balance of the Hyatt Place Note and ali accrued and
unpaid interest thereon is due and payable in full on February 1, 2018 (the “Maturity Date”). The Hyatt Place Note accrued interest at a fixed rate of 5.15% per annum from the Closing
Date through August 21, 2012 (the “First Change Date™). For the period from the First Change Date through August 21, 2015 (the “Second Change Date™), the Hyatt Place Note will
accrue interest at 5.15 %, which is a fixed rate equal to (a) the variable interest rate per annum published in The Wall Street Journal as the “Prime Rate” for the U.S. (the “Prime Rate”) in
effect as of the First Change Date, plus (b) 1.90%. For the period from the Second Change Date through the Maturity Date, the Hyatt Place Note will accrue interest al a fixed rate equal
to (a) the Prime Rate in effect as of the Second Change Date, plus (b) 1.90%, provided that in no event will the interest rate exceed the i interest rate permi licable law
(the *“Maximum Rate”). The Prime Rate at December 31, 2012 was 3.25%. The Trust may prepay the Hyatt Place Note, in whole or in part, at any time without penalty or premuxm

The Trust’s obligations under the Hyatt Place Note are secured by, among other things, (1) a Deed of Trust, Security Ag; and Fi ing St by the Trust for the
benefit of Patriot Bank (the “Deed of Trust”) with respect to the Hyatt Place Property and (2) an Assignment of Rents by the Trust for the benefit of Patriot Bank (the “Assignment of
Rents™) with respect to the Hyatt Place Property. On the Closing Date and effective as of the Effective Date, the Deed of Trust, the Assignment of Rents, the Hyatt Place Note and all
other loan documents related to the Hyatt Place Note were assigned from Patriot Bank to the Note Joint Venture pursuant to an Assignment of Note and Liens by and between the
Patriot Bank and the Note Joint Venture.

The estimated fair value of the Company’s note receivable as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 was approximately $12,468,400 and $12,655,433, respectively. The fair value of the
note ivable was esti d based on di: d cash flow analyses using the current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements as of the respective
reporting dates. The discounted cash flow method of assessing fair value results in a general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.
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5. Debt

The Company’s agg) borrowings, secured and d, are reviewed by the Company’s board of directors at least quarterly. Under the Company’s Articles of
Amend and R (as ded, the “Charter”), the Company is prohibited from borrowing in excess of 300% of the value of the Company’s net assets. “Net assets” for
purposes of this calculation is defined to be !he Cumpany s total assets (other than intangibles), valued at cost prior to deducting depreciation, reserves for bad debts and other non-

cash reserves, less total liabilities. The p: g is Iy expected to approximate 75% of the aggregate cost of the Company’s assets before non-cash reserves and
depreciation. However, the Company may temporarily borrow in excess of these amounts if such excess is approved by a majority of the Company’s independent directors and
disclosed to stockholders in the Company’s next quarterly report, along with an explanation for such excess. As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s debt levels did not exceed 300%
of the value of the Company’s net assets.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company’s debt-to net assets ratlo exceeded 300%. The Company s independent directors approved such excess debt due to the fact that the
Company'’s board of directors believed that the Company’s di was adeq ly secured and the Company was able to service its outstanding indebtedness
under the terms of its financing agreements.

As of December 31,2012 and 2011, the Company’s notes payable consisted of the following:

Principal as of Principal as of Interest Rate at
31, D ber 31, D ber 31,

2012 2011 2012 Mamrig Date
R T e

Hyatt Place Acquisition Note ”
AHfilinted Promissty 5
Woodlands Loan

(1) Loan was paid in full upon sale of the Residence Inn Property on August 23, 2012,
(2) Loan was paid in full on May 27, 2012.

Residence Inn Loan

In connection with the acqulsmon of the Residence Inn Property described in Note 3, on May 27, 2010, R Perimeter Holding and the Residence Inn Master Tenant,
(collectively, the “Borrower™), entered into a modification on the existing indebtedness on the Residence Inn Property in the form of a secured loan in the aggregate principal amount of
$5,000,000 (the *“Property Loan”) from Citicorp North America, Inc. (“Citi”) to the Borrower pursuant to a loan agreement (the “Property Loan Agreement”). The entire unpaid principal
balance of the Property Loan and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon was due and payable in full on June 6, 2015. Interest on the outstanding principal balance of the Property Loan
accrued at a per annum rate equal to 6.50%. The Borrower made a monthly payment of interest only from the date of the Property Loan Agreement through the monthly payment due in
June 2012. The Property Loan was paid in full upon sale of the Residence Inn Property on August 23, 2012, The Company paid a prepayment penalty in connection with payment of the
Property Loan of $391,232, which is included in interest expense.
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Affiliated Promissory Note

On May 27, 2010, in connection with the acquisition of the Residence Inn Property, Company JV Member issued a promissory note in favor of the Moody JV Member in the
aggregate principal amount of $200,000. The entire principal amount of the promissory note and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon was due and payable in full on May 27, 2012, and
the unpaid principal amount of the promissory note accrued interest at a rate of 1.25% per annum. The promissory note was repaid in full on May 27, 2012.

Acquisition Note

In connection with the acquisition of the Hyatt Place Note, on the Closing Date and effective as of the Effective Date, the Note Joint Venture borrowed $11,483,280 from Patriot
Bank pursuant to the Acquisition Note and the Commercial Loan Agreement by and among Patriot Bank, the Note Joint Venture, Moody National Mortgage, Moody National
Management, Moody National Realty Company, L.P. (*Moody National Realty™), an affiliate of the Sponsor, and Brett C. Moody (the “Loan Agreement”).

The Acquisition Note requires monthly installment payments of principal and interest of $54,704 with the entire unpaid principal balance and all accrued and unpaid interest
thereon due and payable in full on May 5, 2018 (the “Acquisition Note Maturity Date”). The Acquisition Note accrued interest at a fixed rate of 3.00% per annum through August 21,
2012 (the “First Acquisition Change Date”). For the period from the First Acquisition Change Date through August 21, 2015 (the “Second Acquisition Change Date”), the Acquisition
Note bears interest at a fixed rate of 3.00% which is equal to (a) the Prime Rate in effect as of the First Acquisition Change Date, minus (b) 0.25%, provided that in no event will the
interest rate exceed the Maximum Rate. For the period from the Second Acquisition Change Date through the Acquisition Note Maturity Date, the Acquisition Note will bear interest at
a fixed rate equal to (a) the Prime Rate in effect as of the Second Acquisition Change Date, minus (b) 0.25%, provided that in no event will the interest rate exceed the Maximum Rate.
After the occurrence of and during the continuance of any event of default under the Loan Agreement, the unpaid principal balance of the Acquisition Note and all accrued and unpaid
interest thereon will bear interest at the Maximum Rate. Patriot Bank may collect a late fee in the amount of 5.0% of any installment of principal and interest due under the Acquisition
Note that is more than ten days past due. The Acquisition Note may be prepaid, in whole or in part, at any time without penalty or premium. Principal payments of $326,291, $336,355,
$346,730, $356,577, $368,423 and $9,269,282 are due for the years 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and thereafter, respectively. As of December 31, 2012, there was $11,003,658 outstanding on
the Acquisition Note.

The Loan Agreemem provides for customary events of default, some with corresponding cure periods, including, without limitation, pay defaults, breaches of
ions in the Loan Ag; or any other loan document, bankruptcy related defaults, the dissolution or liquidation of the Note Joint Venture and the occurrence of any
matenal adverse effect (as deﬁned in the Loan Ag; ). The Loan Agr also provides that it will be an event of default if, among other events, the OP and Moody National
Realty cease to collectively own and control, dlrectly or indirectly, at ]east 51% of the equity interests in the Note Holder Joint Venture or the OP ceases to serve as the sole manager of
the Note Joint Venture. Upon an uncured event of default under the Loan Agreement, Lender may declare all amounts due under the Acquisition Note immediately due and payable in
full.

The performance of the obligations of the Note Joint Venture under the Acquisition Note is secured by a Collateral Assignment of Note and Liens by and between the Note
Joint Venture and Lender (the “Coll 1A ), p to which the Note Joint Venture pledged and collaterally assigned to Lender, and granted Lender a security interest in,
all of Note Joint Venture's right, title and interest in and to, among other items, (1) the Hyatt Place Note and all indebtedness evidenced thereby, (2) the Deed of Trust, (3) all other loan
documents relating to the Hyatt Place Note, and (4) all right, title, interest and claims of the Note Joint Venture as the owner of the Hyatt Place Note, including any and all payments of
any kind payable to the Note Joint Venture by the Trust by reason of the Note Joint Venture's ownership of the Hyatt Place Note. Pursuant to the Collateral Assignment, upon any
event of default under the Loan Ag or the Coll I Assi alt due and payable by the Trust under the Hyatt Place Note will be due and payable to Lender.

In addition, (1) Moody National Mortgage, Moody National Management and Moody National Realty have each ditionally and ir bly d the prompt
payment when due of all of the Note Joint Venture’s obligations under the Acquisition Note and the Collateral Assignment and (2) Brett C. Moody has pmvxdcd a limited guaranty of
the Note Joint Venture’s obli under the Acquisition Note and the Collateral Assignment.

F-i6




Filer: Moody National Form Type: 10-K Period: 12/3112 Job Number: q13-00480 Rev: -NOT DEFINED- Sequence: 96
Submission: Document Name: mnri-10k_123112.htm Saved: Printed: 3/28/2013 16:11:35
631@quality Description: Annual Report -NOT DEFINED- Created using EDGARIizerAgent

Moedy Nanonal REIT l, Inc.
Notes to Consolid.
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Woodlands Loan

On November 8, 2012, Moody Holding acquired fee simple title to the Woodlands Property from unaffiliated third party sellers for an aggregate purchase price of $12,000,000,
comprised of (1) a cash payment to the sellers of $5,088,578 and (2) the Company’s assumption and modification of an existing mortgage loan secured by the Woodlands Property with
an original principal amount of $7,500,000 (the “Woodlands Loan”) from U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee for the Registered Holders of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial
Mortgage Securities Trust 2006-LDP9, Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-LDP9 (the “Lender™).

In connection wnh the acquisition of the Woodlands Property by Moody Holding, Moody Holding assumed, as modified, the Woodlands Loan pursuant to a Consent,
Modification and A Ag by and among Moody Holding and the Lender. As of November 8, 2012, the Woodlands Loan had an di inciple balance of
$6,911,422.

The entire unpaid principal balance of the Woodlands Loan and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon will be due and payable in full on December 6, 2016. Interest on the
outstanding principal balance of the Woodlands Loan will accrue at a per annum rate equal to 6.0%. In the event that, and so long as, any event of default has occurred and is
continuing under the Woodlands Loan, the ding principal balance of the Woodlands Loan and any unpaid interest thereon will bear interest at a2 per annum rate equal to the
lesser of (1) the highest interest rate permitted by applicable law and (2)11.0%. In addition, in the event that any payment due under the Woodlands Loan is not made when due, Moody
Holding will pay a late charge in an amount equal to 5.0% of the amount of the overdue payment. Moody Holding may, upon at least thirty days prior written notice to the Lender,
prepay the Woodlands Loan in full without penalty at any time following the date that is three months prior to the maturity date. In certain circumstances a prepayment of the
Woodlands Loan will be subject to a prepay penalty calculated in d with the promissory note evidencing the Woodlands Loan. Principal payments of $123,201, $130,908,
$139,097 and $6,507,807 are due for the years 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively. As of December 31, 2012, there was $6,901,013 outstanding on the Woodlands Loan.

The performance of the obligations of Moody Holding under the Woodlands Loan are secured by, among other things, (1) a security interest in the Woodlands Property and
other collateral granted to Lender pursuant to a Deed of Trust and Security Agreement, (2) a security interest in all personal property, accounts, inventory and other collateral related to
the Master Tenant’s operation of the Woodlands Property granted to Lender by Master Tenant pursuant to a Security Agreement, (3) an assignment of the leases and rents of the
Woodlands Property in favor of the Lender by each of Moody Holding and Master Tenant, (4) an assignment of all of Master Tenant’s right, title and interest in and to the property

g and the subordination of all of the prroperty manager’s rights and interests with respect to the Woodlands Property to the liens and interests of the Lender

to an Assi and Subordination of M and (5) an absol to pay, and agreement to indemnify the Lender with respect to, certain of the

obhgatlons and liabilities of Moody Holding under the Woodlands Loan granted to the Lender, on a joint and several basis, by Brett C. Moody, the Company and the OP.

In additi toaH dous Sub Indemnity Ag (the “Envil 1 Indemnity”), Brett C. Moody, the Company, the OP and Moody Holding
(collectively, the “lndemmtors ) have agreed to jointly and severally xndemmf'y and hold harmiess the Lender from and against any losses, damages, claims, suits or other liabilities of
any nature that the Lender or the Woodlands Property may suffer or incur as a result of, among other things, (1) any violation of any environmental law related to or affecting the
Woodlands Property, (2) the presence, release or threat of re!:ase of any hazardous, toxic or harmful substance on, in, unde‘r or affectmg the Woodlands Property or it surroundings, (3)

any breach of or failure to comply with the Envir d y by any I itor, and (4) the of the Env ity. Pursuant to the Environmental
Indemnity, the Indemnitors also make certain covenants and agreements with respect to the Woodlands Property, including maintaining pli with envi I laws and
performing any 'y envi 1 diation of the Woodlands Property.

The estimated fair value of the Company’s note payable as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 was approximately $17,904,671 and $16,519,304, respectively. The fair value of notes
payable was estimated based on discounted cash flow analyses using the current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements as of the respective reporting
dates. The discounted cash flow method of assessing fair value results in a general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.
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6. Equity
Capitalization

Under the Charter, the Company has the authority to issue 400,000,000 shares of common stock and 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock. All shares of such stock have a par
value of $0.01 per share. On February 19, 2008, the Company sold 22,222 shares of common stock to the Sponsor for $200,000 in cash. Pursuant to the Company’s Independent Directors
Compensation Plan, the Company issued 15,000 shares of restricted stock on May 18, 2010; 7,500 shares of restricted stock on August 24, 2011; 5,000 shares of restricted stock on May
9, 2012; and 7,500 shares of restricted stock on August 14, 2012. On February 29, 2012, the Company cancelled 1,250 unvested shares of restricted stock previously granted to an
independent director in connection with such director’s resignation. As of December 31, 2012, the Company had issued 1,317,307 common shares in the Company’s public offerings,
including 36,065 shares issued pursuant to the DRIP. As of December 31, 2012, there were a total of 1,373,279 shares of the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding.

The Company’s board of directors is authorized to amend the Charter, without the approval of the stockholders, to increase the aggregate number of authorized shares of
capital stock or the number of shares of any class or series that the Company has authority to issue.

Distributions

On May 20, 2010, the Company authorized and declared a cash distribution to its stockholders contingent upon the closing of its acquisition of an interest in the Residence Inn
Property. The distribution (1) accrues daily to the Company’s stockholders of record as of the close of business on each day; (2) is payable in cumulative amounts on or before the 15t
day of each calendar month; and (3) is calculated at a rate of $0.002192 per share of the Company’s common stock per day, which, if paid each day over a 365-day period, is equivalent to
an 8.0% annualized distribution rate based on a purchase price of $10.00 per share of common stock.

The following table summarizes distributions paid in cash and pursuant to the DRIP for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012.

Cash Distribution Paid Total Amount of
Distribution Pursuant to DRIP Distribution
1 1

First Ovarier 2612
Second Quarter 2012 35,856 .
Third Giante 201 s

61,504

Fourth Quarter 2012
Fowr ”

(1) Distributions are paid on a monthly basis. Distributions for all record dates of a given month are paid approximately 15 days following the end of such month.
(2) Amount of distributions paid in shares of common stock pursuant to the distribution reinvestment plan.
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Ne iling I in Consolidated Joint Ventures

Noncontrolling interest in lidated joint at D ber 31, 2012 was $466,495, which represented ownership interests in the Note Joint Venture, and is reported in
equity in the consolidated balance sheets. Income from lidated joint venture attributable to these 1ling i was $373,806 and $75,362 for the years ended December
31,2012 and 2011, respectively.

7. Related Party Arrangements

Advisor and certain affiliates of Advisor receive fees and compensation in connection with the Company’s public offering and the acquisition, management and sale of the
Company’s real estate investments.

Selling Commissions and Dealer Manager Fees

Moody Securities, LLC (“Moody Securities™), the dealer manager of the Company’s public offering, receives a selling commission of up to 6.5% of gross offering proceeds
raised in the Company’s public offerings. Moody Securities may re-allow all or a portion of such selling commissions earned to participating broker-dealers. In addition, the Company
pays Moody Securities a dealer manager fee of up to 3.5% of gross offering proceeds raised in the Company’s public offerings, a portion of which may be reallowed to participating
broker-dealers. No selling commissions or dealer manager fee are paid for sales pursuant to the DRIP. As of December 31, 2012, the Company had paid Moody Securities $746,368 and
$144,416 in selling commissions related to the initial and follow-on offerings, respectively, and $190,626 and $40,154 in dealer manager fees related to the initial and follow-on offerings,
respectively, which has been recorded as an offset to additional paid-in capital in the condensed consolidated balance sheet.

Organization and Offering Costs

Advisor and its affiliates will be reimbursed up to 15% of offering p ds for of organization and offering exp (i selling issions and the
dealer manager fee payable to Moody Securities) not to exceed actual expenses incurred. Advisor will be responsible for the payment of organization and offering expenses to the extent
they exceed 15% of gross offering p ds, without against or reimt by the Company. As of December 31, 2012, Advisor and its affiliates had incurred organizational
and offering expenses of $3,214,000 and $561,000 related to the initial and follow-on offerings, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, Advisor and its affiliates had incurred
organizational and offering exp of $2,813,000 related to the initial public offering. As of December 31, 2012, total offering costs were $4,132,374 for the initial public offering and
$746,040 for the follow-on offering. Organization costs were $28,083 for the initial public offering. Offering costs of $946,944 and $184,570 were incusred directly by the Company for the
initial and follow-on offerings, respectively. The Company has reimbursed Advisor for $28,083 in organization costs and $742,134 in offering costs for the initial public offering and
$583,324 in offering costs for the follow-on offering. The Company has a $481,801 receivable from Advisor for offering costs, which is ded as an offset to additional paid-in capital.
The remaining $2,903,243 in offering costs is not a liability of the Company because such costs exceed the 15% limit described above. The Company’s initial public offering terminated
on October 12, 2012. Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, within 60 days following the last day of the month in which the initial public offering terminates, Advisor must reimburse the
Company to the extent that the organization and offering costs bome by the Company in connection with the initial public offering exceed 15% of the gross offering proceeds to the
Company from the Company’s completed initial public offering. Organization and offering costs borne by the Company in connection with the Company’s completed initial public
offering did not exceed 15% of the gross offering proceeds to the Company from the Company’s completed initial public offering.

Advisory Fees and Expense Reimbursement

Advisor, or its affiliates, receive an acquisition fee equal to 1.5% of (1) the cost of investments the Company acquires or (2) the Company’s allocable cost of investments
acquired in a joint venture. With respect to investments in and originations of loans, Advisor will receive an origination fee in lieu of an acquisition fee. The origination fee will equal
1.5% of the amount funded by the Company to invest in or originate such loan. As of December 31, 2012, the Company had paid an acquisition fee of $180,000 to Advisor in connection
with the acquisition of the Woodlands Property which is included in property acquisition expense. Advisor waived its acquisition fee in connection with the acquisition of both the
Residence Inn Property and the Hyatt Place Note. As of December 31, 2012, the Company had not paid any origination fees to Advisor.
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Advisor will receive a debt financing fee of 1.0% of the amount avallable under any loan or line of credit made to the Company. It is anticipated that Advisor will pay
some or all of these fees to third parties with whom it sut to fi ing for the Company. As of December 31, 2012, the Company had not paid any debt financing
fees to Advisor due to the fact that Advisor waived its debt financing fee in connection with the financing of the Residence Inn Property, the Hyatt Place Note and the Woodlands
Property.

The Company pays Advisor a monthly asset management fee of one-twelfth of 1.0% of the aggregate cost (before non-cash reserves and depreciation) of all real estate
investments held by the Company at month-end. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company incurred asset management fees of $33,303 and $137,041, respectively,
which are recorded in corporate general and administrative exp inthe panying consolidated of operations. Advisor waived the asset management fee for the
months of February 2012 and March 2012 and May through December 2012,

1f Advisor provides a substantial amount of services in connection with the sale of a property or other investment, Advisor or its affiliates also will be paid a disposition fee
equal to 3.0% of the contract sales price of each property or other investment sold, provided that total real estate commissions, including the disposition fee, do not exceed 6.0% of the
contract sales price. As of December 31, 2012, the Company had not paid any disposition fees to Advisor because Advisor waived the disposition fee in connection with the sale of the
Residence Inn Property.

The Company will reimburse Advisor for all operating expenses paid or incurred by Advisor in connection with the servnces provided to the Company, subject to the limitation
that the Company will not reimburse Advisor at the end of any fiscal quarter for any amount by which its total operating exp (including the asset fee) for the four
fiscal quarters then ended exceed the greater of: (1) 2% of the Company’s average invested assets, or (2) 25% of the Company’s net income determined without reduction for any
additions to reserves for depreciation, bad debts or other similar non-cash reserves and excluding any gain from the sale of the Company’s assets for that period (the “2%/25%
Limitation™). Notwithstanding the above, the Company may reimburse Advisor for expenses in excess of the 2%/25% Limitation if 2 majority of the independent directors determines
that such excess expenses are justified based on unusual and non-recurring factors. For the four fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012, total operating expenses of the Company were
$970,563, which included $138,278 in op g eXp incurred directly by the Company and $832,285 incurred by Advisor on behalf of the Company. Of the $970,563 in total
operating expenses incurred during the four fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012, $599,681 exceeded the 2%/25% Limitation and is not an obligation of the Company. Additionally,
Advisor has incurred $2,490,553 in operating expenses on the Company’s behalf prior to the four fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012. Subject to a future determination by the board
of directors, this amount is not reimbursable to Advisor nor an obligation of the Company.

Advisor waived all expenses reimbursable to Advisor for the seven fiscal quarters ended December 31, 2012 to the extent such expenses had not been previously reimbursed to
Advisor. Advisor further acknowledged that afl expenses incurred directly by the Company and incurred by Advrsor on the Company’s behalf during the waiver period shall be paid by
Advisor on behalf of the Company. Total reimt waived or d by Advisor were $1,243,824 as of December 31, 2012.

P

Property Management Fees

The Company has engaged Moody National Hospitality Management, LLC, an affiliate of the Company (the “Property Manager™), as its property manager. The Company pays
Property Manager a market-based property management fee in connection with the operation and management of properties. As of December 31, 2012, we had paid Property Manager
management fees of $13,102 and accounting fees of $2,500 pursuant to the terms described below.

In ion with the isition of the Woodlands Property on November 8, 2012, the Property M: was d by the C: y to manage the Woodlands Property
to a Hotel M: Ag between the Property Manager and the Master Tenant (the “Management Agreement”). Pursuant to the Management Agreement, Master
Tenant pays the Property Manager a momhly base management fee in an amount equal to 3.0% of the Woodlands Property s gross operating revenues (as defined in the Management
Agreement). In addition, the Property Manager receives a monthly $2,500 fee for providing centralized accounting services and is eligible to receive additional fees for technical,
procurement or other services for the Woodlands Property to the extent Master Tenant requests such services p 10 the M: Ag The M:
has an initial ten-year term, and thereafter will avtomatically renew for four consecutive five-year renewal terms unless either party provides wmten notice of termination at least 180
days prior to the end of the then current term. In the event that Master Tenant terminates the Management Agreement for any reason other than the Property Manager’s default, Master
Tenant will pay Property Manager a termination fee equal to the base management fee estimated to be earned by the Property M: for the ining term of the M.
Agreement, as adjusted for inflation and other factors; provided, however that so long as the Woodlands Loan remains outstanding, Master Tenant may terminate the Management
Agreement at any time upon 30 days prior notice without paying any termination fee.
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Perimeter Joint Venture

As discussed in Note 3, the Company owned a 75% membership interest in the Perimeter Joint Venture through the Company JV Member. The Moody JV Member, a limited
liability company wholly owned by Brett C. Moody, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, owned the other 25% membership interest in the Perimeter Joint Venture. Brett
C. Moody also owned a 25% equity interest in the Residence Inn TRS. Under the terms of the joint venture agreement, the Company JV Member was entitled to receive 100% of cash
from operations until it received cumulative distributions equal to a 10% per annum, cumulative non-compounded retum on its invested capital (the “Preferred Retun”). Once the
Company JV Member roce\ved the Preferred Return, the Moody JV Member was entitled to receive 100% of cash from operations until it received cumulative distributions equal to a
10% per annum, ded return on its d capital. Th fter, each member received distributions in accordance with their respective percentage interests.

The Residence Inn Property was sold on August 23, 2012 as described in Note 1 1, Discontinued Operations.
Note Joint Venture

As discussed in Note 4, as of December 31, 2012, the OP owns a 74.5% membe-rshxp mterest in the Note Joint Venture, Moody National Mortgage owns a 14% membership
interest in the Note Joint Venture and the Trust Members own the ining 11.5% t in the Note Joint Venture. Pursuant to the terms of the Note Joint Venture
Agreement, Moody National Moﬂgage is entitled to receive approximately 14% of all dxsmbunons of cash from operations of the Note Joint Venture and the OP and the other Members
are entitled to receive the remaining approximately 86% of distributions of cash from operations of the Note Joint Venture in proportion to their respective membership interests in the
Note Joint Venture.

The Note Joint Venture Agreement provides that cash proceeds from a sale, exch ref ing or other disposition of the Hyatt Place Note will be distributed as follows: (1)
first, to each Member of the Note Joint Venture in proportion to their respective unreturned capital contributions to the Note Joint Venture until each member’s unreturned capital
contributions have been reduced to zero; (2) second, to Moody National Mortgage until Moody National Mortgage has been distributed an amount equal to approximately 14% of all
distributions made to all Members (mcluswe of all pnor dlsmbutmns) and (3) thereafter, approximately 14% to Moody National Mortgage and approximately 86% to the OP and the
Members in proportion to their resp in the Note Joint Venture. In addition, so long as Moody National Mortgage or Moody National Management has any
outstanding guaranty of any indebtedness of the che Joint Venture, (1) the OP wxll in good faith consult with Moody National Mortgage and ider any Is or
recommendations of Moody National Mortgage regarding any possible refi of indebted on the Hyatt Place Note or any sale of the Hyatt Place Nole and (2) any sale of the
Hyatt Place Note will require the consent of Moody Nanonal Mortgage, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.

Affiliated Promissory Note

In connection with the acquisition of the Residence Inn Property, Company JV Member issued a promissory note in favor of the Moody JV Member for an aggregate principal
amount of $200,000. The promissory note accrued interest at 1.25% per annum. The entire principal amount of the promissory note and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon was paid
in full on May 27, 2012.

8. Incentive Award Plan

The Company has adopted an incentive plan (the “Incentive Award Plan”) that provides for the grant of equity awards to its employ di and and those
of the Company’s affiliates. The Incentive Award Plan authorizes the grant of non-qualified and incentive stock options, restricted stock awards, resmczed stock units, stock
appreciation rights, dividend equivalents and other stock- based awards or cash-based awards. Shares of common stock will be authorized and reserved for issuance under the Incentive
Award Plan. The Company has also adopted an independ p ion plan (the “Indep Di Comp jon Plan”) p to which each of the Company’s
then current independent directors were entitled to receive 5,000 shares of restricted stock when the Company raised the minimum offering amount of $2,000,000 in its initial public
offering. Each new independent director that subsequently joins the Company’s board of directors will receive 5,000 shares of restricted stock on the date he or she joins the
Company’s board of directors. In addition, on the date of each of the first four annual meetings of the Company’s stockholders at which an independent director is re-elected to the
Company’s board of directors, he or she will receive 2,500 restricted shares. Subject to certain conditions, the non-vested shares of restricted stock granted pursuant to the Independent
Directors Compensation Plan will vest and become non-forfeitable in four equal quarterly installments beginning on the first day of the first quarter following the date of grant;
provided, however, that the restricted stock will become fully vested on the earlier to occur of (1) the termination of the mdependem dlrector s service as a director due 1o his or her
death or disability, or (2) a change in contro) of the Company As of December 31, 2012, there were 1,966,250 shares ilable for future i under the Incentive
Award Plan and the Independent Directors Comp ion Plan.
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On May 18, 2010, the Company raised the minimum offering amount of $2,000,000 in the Company’s initial public offering and each of the Company’s then serving independent

directors received an initial grant of 5,000 shares of restricted stock to the Independent Directors Comp ion Plan, Iting in an initial i of 15,000 shares
of restricted stock in the aggregate. On August 24, 2011, the date of the 2011 annual meeting of the Company’s stockholders, each of the Company’s three ind dent di
received an additional grant of 2,500 shares of restricted stock upon their reelection to the Company’s board of directors, Iting in an i of 7,500 additional shares of restricted
stock in the aggregate. On February 29, 2012, Lawrence S. Jones resigned as a member of the Company’s board of directors and forfeited 1,250 unvested shares, leaving a balance of
21,250 shares issued p to the Independent Directors Comp ion Plan as of March 31, 2012. On May 9, 2012, a new independent director, Charles L. Homn, was elected to the
board of directors and was issued 5,000 shares of restricted stock p to the Independent Di C ion Plan. On August 14, 2012, the date of the 2012 annual meeting of
the Company’s stockholders, each of the Company’s three mdependent directors received an additional grant 0f 2,500 shares upon their reelection to the Company’s board of di
resulting in an issuance of 7, 500 addmonal shares of restricted stock in the aggregate. As of December 31, 2012, a total of 33,750 shares of restricted stock have been issued by the
Company to the Company’s independ p to the Independent Di p jion Plan.

The weighted average grant date fair value of the shares of restricted stock issued by the Company p to the Independent Di C ion Plan was $10.00 per

share based on observable market transactions occurring near the dates of the grants. The Company recorded compensation related to such shares of resmcted stock ratably from the
grant date to the date the shares become fully vested based on the fair market value of such shares at the date they were granted. The Company recorded compensation related to
shares of restricted stock of $100,086 and $74,347 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. As of December 31, 2012, there were 8,125 non-vested shares of
restricted stock granted p to the Ind dent Directors Comp ion Plan, of which 2,500 were granted on May 9, 2012 and 5,625 were granted August 14, 2012. The

expense of $56,264 will be recognized during the first, second and third quarters of 2013.

The following is a summary of activity under the Ind dent Directors Comp ion Plan for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:
Weighted
Average Grant
Number of Date Fair
Shares Value
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9. Subordinated Participation Interest

Pursuant to the limited partnership agreement of the OP, the holders of the Special Units will be entitled to distributions from the OP in an amount equal to 15.0% of net sales
proceeds received by the OP on dispositions of its assets and dispositions of real properties by joint ventures or parterships in which the OP owns a partnership interest, after the
other holders of common units, including the Company, have received in the aggregate cumulative distributions from operating income, sales proceeds or other sources equal to their
capital contributions plus an 8.0% cumulative non-compounded annual pre-tax return thereon. The Special Units will be redeemed for the above amount upon the earliest of: (1) the

occurrence of certain events that result in the termination or non-renewal of the advisory agreement or (2) a listing of the Company’s stock on a national securities exch
10. C i and Conti; i

Restricted Cash

Under certain and debt agr existing at D ber 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company escrows p required for i real estate taxes, capital

improvements, hotel furniture and fixtures, and debt service.

The composition of the Company’s restricted cash as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

iR e

Debt service o b ' ' ) B — 81,089
. i i B
e e ey
Management Fees
Under a management agreement with an unaffiliated third party for the management of the Residence Inn Property (the “RI M: "), Resids Inn Master
Tenant paid a monthly property management fee totaling $165,643 and $235,255 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, whnch amount equaled 7.0% of the
Residence Inn Property’s gross revenues (as defined in the RI Management Agreement), as well as an annual incentive fee equaltoap ge of the Resid Inn

Property’s annual available cash flow (as defined in the RI Management Agreement). The Management Agreement was terminated in August, 201 2 in connection with the sale of the
Residence Inn Property, as described in Note 11 below.

11. Discontinued Operations

The historical operating results and gains (losses) from the disposition of certain assets, including operating properties sold, are required to be reflected in a separate section
(“discontinued operations”) in the lidated of operations for all periods presented. As a result, the r and exp of the Resid Inn Property through
Perimeter Joint Venture and the Residence Inn TRS are included in income (loss) from discontinued operations in the panying lidated of operations for all
periods presented.

On August 14, 2012, Perimeter Holding, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Perimeter Joint Venture and holder of fee simple title to the Residence Inn Property, and Residence
Inn Master Tenant (together with Perimeter Holding, the “Seller”) entered into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale for the sale of the Residence Inn Property to a third party buyer for an
aggregate purchase price of $9,150,000. Perimeter Holding originally purchased the Residence Inn Property for an aggregate purchase price of $7,350,000 plus closing costs, transfer
taxes and certain payments to third parties in connection with fees incurred by the seller of the Residence Inn Property. The sale of the Residence Inn Property closed on August 23,
2012. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, the Seller and the buyer equally divided all escrow fees and sales and transfer taxes in connection with the sale of the Residence Inn
Property, and all other closing costs were apportioned between the Seller and buyer. In connection with the sale of the Residence Inn Property, Residence Inn Master Tenant’s lease of
the Residence Inn Property was terminated.
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A portion of the proceeds from the sale of the Residence Inn Property were used to repay the $5,000,000 loan obtained to acquire the Residence Inn Property (the “Residence
Inn Citicorp Loan”). In ion with the prepay of the Residi Inn Citicorp Loan, Seller paid $391,232 of the prepayment penalty and the buyer paid $291,232 of the
prepayment penalty. In addition, the Seller paid Residence Inn by Mariott, LLC (“Marriott”) the $600,000 franchise termination fee payable pursuant to the Management Agreement
with Marriott in connection with the termination of the Management Agreement. Advisor waived its disposition fee in connection with the sale of the Residence Inn Property.

The following table shows the 1 and exp of the ab described discontinued operations

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011

Revenue

312 856

17993 §

12. Income Taxes

The Resxdence Inn TRS and 1he ‘Woodlands TRS are a C- Corporanons for federal income tax purposes and use the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Tax return
p are ized in the fi 1 when they are “more-likely-than-not” to be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities result from porary dif] Temporary dif} are diffe t the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported in the fi 1
that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future periods. A valuation allowance may be placed on deferred income tax assets, if it is determined that it is more likely than not that
a deferred tax asset may not be realized.

No provision for income taxes has been made for the Company (other than the Residence Inn TRS) for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 as it made an election to be
taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code commencing with the taxable year ended December 31, 2011. Prior to January 1, 2011, the Company was
subject to federal and state income taxes as it had not elected to be taxed as a REIT. No provision for income taxes had been made with respect to the Company (other than for the
Residence Inn TRS) for the year ended December 31, 2010 because the Company incurred a net operating loss and has no carryback potential.
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The ition of the TRS’s deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

s

Deferred tax liability:

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had no operating loss carryforwards.
The income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31,2012 and 2011 consisted of the following:

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011

105,600
(6,300)
93360

The reconciliation of Federal statutory and effective income tax rates for the Residence Inn TRS which apply to its income before income taxes of $7,000 and $250,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

The Woodlands TRS had a net operating loss of $38,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012, which may be carried forward with any unused portion expiring in 2032.

13. Subsequent Events
Status of Offering

The Company commenced its initial public offering of up to $1,100,000,000 in shares of the Company’s common stock on April 15, 2009. On October 12, 2012, the SEC declared
effective the registration statement for the Company’s follow-on offering and the Company terminated its initial public offering. The Company issued 1,126,253 shares of the Company’s
common stock in the Company’s initial public offering, including 29,580 shares issued pursuant to the DRIP, resulting in gross offering proceeds to the Company of $10,966,728. As of
March 19, 2013, the Company had pted i rs” subscriptions for, and issued 1,527,016 shares of the Company’s common stock in the Company's initial public offering and
foliow-on offering, including 43,708 shares issued pursuant to the DRIP, resulting in aggregate gross offering proceeds to the Company of $14,833,078.

Distributions Declared

On December 31, 2012 the Company declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $91,381, of which $67,200 was paid in cash on January 15, 2013 and $24,181 was paid
pursuant to the DRIP in the form of additional shares of the Company’s common stock. On January 31, 2013 the Company declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $93,909 of
which $68,777 was paid in cash on February 15, 2013 and $25,132 was paid pursuant to the DRIP in the form of additional shares of the Company’s common stock. On February 28, 2013,
the Company declared a distribution in the aggregate amount of $87,898 of which $64,602 was paid in cash on March 15, 2013 and $23,296 was paid pursuant to the DRIP in the form of
additional shares of the Company’s common stock.
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Potential Acquisition

On February I1, 2013, the Company entered into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale relating to the acquisition of a Hyatt Place hotel property located in Germantown,
Tennessee (the “Hyatt Place Hotel), from an unaffiliated third party seller, for an aggregate purchase price of $11,300,000, excluding acquisition costs. The Company intends to finance
the acquisition of the Hyatt Place Hotel with proceeds from its ongoing public offering and approximately $7,600,000 of indebtedness secured by the Hyatt Place Hotel.

Opened in August 2009, the Hyait Place Hotel features 127 gi designed to d ded visits with space for work, study and entertainment. The
guestrooms feature a refrigerator, 42" flat-panel HDTV, Hyatt Grand Bed, and flexible workspace with task lighting. Other amenities include Wi-Fi internet access throughout the hotel,
24-hour StayFit@Hyatt fitness center, heated outdoor pool, and 24/7 guest kitchen and bakery café. The Hyatt Place Hotel offers 1,025 square feet of flexible meeting space and offers
all-inclusive meeting packages tailored to specific corporate and group travel needs.

The acquisition of the Hyatt Place Hotel is subject to substantial conditions to closing, including: (1) obtaining appropriate financing for the acquisition of the Hyatt Place
Hotel; (2) the sale of a sufficient number of shares of the Company’s common stock in the Company’s public offering to fund a portion of the purchase price for the Hyatt Place Hotel;
and (3) the absence of a material adverse change to the Hyatt Place Hotel prior to the date of the acquisition. There is no assurance that the Company will close the acquisition of the
Hyatt Place Hotel on the terms described above or at all.
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MOODY NATIONAL REIT I, INC.
SCHEDULE Il
REAL ESTATE ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
DECEMBER 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Gross Amount at which

Initial Cost to Company Carried at Close of Period
Building, Cost Capitalized Buildi Accumulated Original
Ownership Imp; 3 bseq to Improvements Depreciation and  Date of Date
Descrigtion i Percent  Encumbrances Land and FF&E Total quisition Land Total ® _ Amiortization  Construction Acquir
Honiew
8
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Subsidiaries

Moody National Operating P hip 1, L.P. (Del

Moody National Perimeter REIT JV Member, LLC (Delaware)
Moody National Rl Perimeter JV, LLC (Delaware)

Moody National RI Perimeter Holding, LLC (Delaware)
Moody National RI Perimeter MT., Inc. (Delaware)

Moody National RI Perimeter Master Tenant, LLC (Delaware)
MNHP Note Holder, LLC (Delaware)

Moody National Wood-Hou Holding, LLC (Delaware)
Moody National Wood-Hou MT, Inc. (Delaware)

Moody National Wood-Hou MT, LLC (Delaware)
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

], Brett C. Moody, certify that:

L

2.

T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K. of Moody National REIT I, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for controls and p dures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(g)}
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the regi its idiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
Teport is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
1

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in d: with g ly p
accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our lusions about the effecti of the discl
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intemal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit cc ittee of the regi ’s board of di (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of interal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2013

/s/ Brett C. Moody

Brett C. Moody

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)
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EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

1, Robert W. Engel, certify that:

1.

2.

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Moody Nationai REIT 1, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact y to make the made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and ntrols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

1 1

and p d or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
Tuding its lidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this

a) Designed such di
information relating to the registrant, i
report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be desxgned under our supervision, to provxde
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in d: with g pted
accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit ittee of the regi ’s board of di (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2013

/s/ Robert W. Engel

Robert W. Engel

Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Moody National REIT 1, Inc. (the “Company”) for the
year ended December 31, 2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), the undersigned, the Chief E ive Officer and President of the
Company, certifies, to his knowledge, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 29,2013

/s/ Brett C. Moody

Brett C. Moody

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President
{Principal Executive Officer)
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Moody Nationa! REIT T 10-K
EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Moody National REIT 1, Inc. (the “Company”) for the
year ended December 31, 2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), the undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Secretary of the Company, certifies, to his knowledge, that:

m) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly in all material the fi ial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 29, 2013

/s/ Robert W. Engel

Robert W. Engel

Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary
{Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




